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May it please the Commissiont

I will argue in behalf of five mccused, namely, YAMIMOTO,
Kaguharu, EZURE, Shigeru, HLYLSHI, Umeji, SLGLRA, Mesashiro and UCHIDZ ,
Fumio, among the twenty accused in this case. My argument consists
of three parte; in Part I, I will argue with regard to murder alleged
in specifications 1 and 2 of Charge I} in Part II, with regard to the
acoused YAM/MOTO'S neglect of duty alleged in specificetions 3 and 4
of Charge I, and lastly in Part III, with regerd to the erime in
viclation of article 199 of the Criminal Code of Japan alleged in

| the specificetion of Charge II.

PLRT I: CONCERNING SPECIFICATIONS 1 and 2 OF CHLRGE I:
(1) In behalf of the accused, HLYASHT, Umeji and SAGLRL, Masashiro.

In the evidence produced by the prosecution, the testimony
of witness, ROMLN THMETUCHL above referred to the accused HAY/SHI and
SLGARA, The witness ROMLN THMETUCHL, a native employee engaged by the
South Seas Kempeitai at the time of the incident, took the stand on the
tenth dey of the trisl and testified that in the evening of that day
he saw through the opening in the window up in front of hie quarters
Commanding Officer Iieutenmant Colonel MIYLZLKI and the membere of the
Kempeitei, and that he recelled seeing the acoused HLYILSHI and SLOLRL
among them but was not sure of it, 5inee, a8 ho has testified thet he
got a glance through a slight opening in the window at dusk, the testi-
mony of this witness not only with regard to the accused HLYISHT and
SLGLRA but mlso with regerd to the other persons whom he said he saw
in the grthering is highly unreliable, and it must be said that the
portion of his testimony rolating to the mssombly, docs not merit
eredibility.

Tb. controvert the above, the accused HLYLSHI toock the witncse
stend on his oom bohelf on the sixteenth day of the trial end clcarly
stated thet he did not go to the scone of the execution becruse he
was in bed in his quarters all day long unable to walk as a wound caused
by stepping on a pail when he had gone to KOROR to grther some building
materials nbout a week prior to the incident, developed a suppurotion,

Thie testimony of HAY.LSHI is in no way e mere self-scrving
statement, HLY/SHI'S testimony is uncquivoeally corrobornted by the
testimony of dofensc witness GOMI, RISLKU, Not only defense witneces
GOMI, but three witnesses for the prosecution have acknowledged, thie
fact with one accord, That is, witnesses for the prosecution, NLKLAMURL,
Keguo, YOMADA, Kiyoshi, and TLK:HISHI, Genji, all have testified in
cross=examination that the aceused HLYLSHI at the time of the inecident
mas confined to his bed in the barrecks beocruse he hurt his foot by
stepping on a nail, Prrticularly, witness TAKAHLSHI testified, "2
few days prior to the incident HLY/SHI had gone to KOROR to colleot
building meaterial, 4Lt thet time he returned with a neil in the bottom
of his foot, The wound caused by this nail resulted in a suppuration
and he suffered from it, A4 thet time, corpsman sergeant HONGAMA
was hospitaliszed and I treatoed HLY.SHI's wound.® He clearly explained

why the scoused HAYISHI had not perticipeted in the caxecution of the

missionaries and othors,

»gas(3)n




| Thus, thc ovidenco that the aecused HAY/SHI did partieipote

| in the executiop is very work, while the cvidence that HAY/SHI 814 got

| participate in the ewocution is overwhelming, substantinl nnd merits
high credibility, Consequently, ae it bhns now bocome evident beyond

| the remotest dowbt that the accusod HLYASHI 4id not partieipote in the

| execution of the mlessionnries and others, I am firmly convineced thet the

‘ acoused HLYLSHI 4s not guilty of murder slleged in specificntions 1 nnd
2 of Charge I ond the specification of Charge II,

| Next, the accused SLGLRL taking the witness stand on hik é&m

| behalf on the sixteenth day of the trial, testified thot he did not
ticipate in the execution of the missionaries and others, becsuse on

| day of this incident he had the road lock out duty and was on duty

| noar GASUPAN HIGHWAY near the Kempeitni, while the majority of the
members of the Kempeitai had gone to the scene of the exveution - from

| 1800 to 2200,

|

I

| This testimony of SLGLRL is not o more self=serving stotoment
| eithor, Witnessos for the prosccution YAMAD., Kiyoshi, TLKIHASHI, Genji,
| ond TMLIZUMI, Keishiro have all smcknowledged in cross-comminntion
| that the accusod BLGARA had the road look out duty on the day of the
incident. That is, vitness YLMADL in cnswer to one of the questions,
| namely, "Do you recnll SLGLRL'S neme in thie connection?" replied, "I
think SLGIRL was on road lock out duty,® Witness TLKLHASHI when asked,
"Tou testified just now thot there was one person told to romein on dny
duty and that one was you, But you menn thet there was one other person
| besides you who was on duty, By your ru?ly you mennt that there was onhe
| other person besides you who was on duty‘™, he replied, "That ie so,"
Then asked in the next question "Who waos th.‘l.u other person?", he onswered
"It was Superior Private SLGLRL.® Sinco witness TLKLHLSHI remrinod at
the unit as the non commissioncd officer on duty that day while the
ma jority of the undt members had gone to the scene of the execution, me
must admit this testimory of TLEKLHASHI merits high crodibility. ILastly,
the witness IM.IZUMI, Keishiro, in snswer to onc question, namely,
®"Other than the day duty Eruuﬂnal, wore there any other duty personnel
'\who had to remein at the mckﬂ", he replied, "is I recall I believe
there mas also a road lookout duty.® Then in the next question vhen he
vae asked, "Do you know who had the rondlookout on the day of the incident?®,
{he rnnpmdnd, *When I came out from the small path, out into the ru:-d, I
recall seeing Superior Privnte SLGARL standing on the left of me.®
| This tuatinom of TMLIZUMI is definite and clear, Thus, it is cvident
|rithout the slightest doubt from the nbove cited taatimn.? of the pro-
‘secution witnesses that the accused SLOLRL did not participete in the
|muut1an of the missionaries and others, having remained at the unit
lon road look out duty at the time of tha ineddent, I, therofore, main-
tain thet the accused SLGARL is "not guilty® of mirder alleged in
|Specifications 1 and 2 of Charge I, end in the specifiertion of Charge II,

i (2) In behalf of the ncouscd, EZURE, Shigeru end the ncousod
|DCHIDE, Fumon

' The acecusod, EZURE and UCHIDL went to the scene of the
execution of the six missionaries and the HONDONERO femily; but both
coused had nlready been excluded from the teams in charge of the
ssionaries and others, as EZURE and UCHIDL were et the scene of the
ution as orderlies for Becond Lieutensnt BLNO end Detachment
er NLKAMURL respectively, This fect has been proved beyond
sonable doubt by the testimony of both of these accused and by the
utm of prosecution witmesses, SLNO, Giich{ (with regerd to the
rv Kiyoshi (with regard to the accused UCHIDA)
{uith regnrd to both of these accused,)
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| were mere lowly soldiers, #ould not have operated ag an encoura nt to
tthot, be

-,

Therefore, their duties wore execlusively to trensmit the
orders of N'K/MURL or SLNO to their recipients, SLNO, however; was
not assigned any wpoelnl duty concorning the execution (Defense vitness
SLNO - question &) rnd therefore, he went to the seche only beeruse he
had been ordered by Cotmandimg Officer MIYLZLKI to como along os a
spoctator (vitness EZURE question 68); so it wns not noccssnry for
SLNO to tranemit nny order, nor as a matter of fact, did he tronsmit
any order through EZURE (Defense witness SLNO question 7). NLKAMURA
was the officer in dharge of earrying out the execution at the scene, |
but seceording to the tuﬁiuunr of the accused UCHIDL such vwoe the ;
eituation at the sceme of the execution that the recipilent could directly
receive orders from the person who gave the orders; so his orders were
directly given to the recipiont and there was no neccesity for the
orderly to trensmit them;, nor as o metter of foct did UCHIDL trensmit
any Oﬁﬂ!‘ of NLKIMURL, Thus, the accused, EZURE and UCHIDL ms the
orderlies for N/K.MURL and SLNO respectively, did not in any way parti-
cipete in the execution,

Mere presence at the scene of o crime does not, in itself,
constitute participntion in it, ULmericen references concerning this
stete ns follows: First, Wharton's Criminal Lew; Volume I, Section y
states: "Merely witnessing n orime, without intervention, does not make
a person a party to its commission, unless his interference vns a duty,
rnd his noninterference was designed by him and opercted ss &an encourage=
ment to or protection of the perpetfator.® Furthermore, imerican Jurise
prudence, Volume 26 Homielde, Section 60 states: "One who is mercly
present and sees thnt a homléide is about to be conmitted, and yot
in no manncr interferes, ie hot thercby deemed to participote in the
commission of the offense, Feilure to prevent the homielde, or teeit
assent to, silent acquiescence in, secret approval of, or consent
to the act by one present, genernlly does not moke him guilty, vhere
there is no previous understanding, although ne to the conscnt there ore
some stotements to the contrary." lastly, Clerk end Marshall's, &
Trontise on the Lew of Crimes, Scction 167, states: "To render one
guilty as principal in the scéond degrec, he must in some vmy participote
in the commiseion of the offense, by aiding or abetting the actusl
perpetretor of the deed, Mere prescnce at the time of offonse is committed,
and acquiescconce or frilurc to meke any offort to prevent its commission
or to epprehend the offender, i® not emough,® These accused who were
only subordinetes, ocould mot havo had eny legel duty to prevent the
commigsion of the alleged erimo; vhich was ordered by their superior
Commending Officer MIYLZLKY and commended by tholr superior, Detrchment
Commander NAKIMURL; furthormore, with regard to the crime committod under
such circumstencos, the presence of these accused at the scene vho

or protection of the perpetrator, Therefore, the adcused ca

guilty es participants im the alleged crime only because they were pres
sent ot the scene, unless the fact has been proved thnt the nocuscd
themselves perpetrated the crime, or committed some overt act to ink
stignte, cncourage, aid or abet the perpetrotor. However, since the .
pogused, EZURE woe told by C cor MIYAZLKT when he ass

in front of tho Kompeitai Barracks mn the day of the incidont that
agcordonce with opders of Divieion Headquarters the miesionarics will

be axecuted,", the mccused procecded to the scene of the executioh knowing
that the missionaries wore to be exeouted, Therefore, opposition mey

be paised at this point that sinco he went to the scene with the Jmovledge
that a erime woe going to be committed, he is guilty as an accomplive,.
m, a8, Clark and Marshall, clearly states in their *Trectise on the

of " already cited, "Mere knowledge of the offense and mental
a \ ammurﬂqumnmmum-m
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‘I 1et us pouw whether thege aceused did any overt nct

which dan be coneeived ns conbtituping pnrt‘.l.ui tion in o crime during
|'I the cmutiun in quebtion, It is &n t they were not the
I| executd “ that 1s, trotord of 'I:.ha beenuse thoy verc not
| Ebet® of Vo tie, odbOek Dacim. 4 sip 40.nat

a non perpetrotof
1iable for sn act done by a perpetrator, he must have done some ovork
net in order to instignte, cncournffe, aid or abet the perpetrator, ap I
have mentioned above.

Tho atts that can be recogn.i:ad as done by these aédcused; fhom
| the time they left the Kempeitei thay returned to their unit; om

| the dny of tﬁ incident, ne showm the gvidence producced before thie

| eourt; are, vith regard to the abcused E y follew:

|

(n) Ho ohriied the beol hgs of the missionaries from their
Quartels to the trucks woiting on the GASUPLN HICHWLY, by orders of
| Commanding Officer MIVLZLKI,

:, e ca on his ’ er o co! ’
' (b) He carried on his back, by order of Second licutensnt SLNO
'| one of the victims - a five year old boy, for about fifteen metere vhere

| the road was bed, between GLSUPLN HEIGHTS where they got off the truck

||nnd the ecenc of the oxceution,

|.
(e) He helped by Second Licutenernt SLNO's orders, in burying
I wark after the execution,

| With regord to the ncoused, UCHIDL, his acts are identienl with
| the above (e) end ().

Dogs the nbove enumernted acts constitute aiding or abetting
in n crime? Black's Iaw Dietionanry, Third Edition, defincs "Lid and
Lbets" ns, "That kind of connection with the commission of a crime which,
ot common law, rendered the person guilty es a principel in the second
degree. It consiste in being present ot the time and place, and doing
some act to render aid to the actunl perpetrator of the zrime, though
without toking a direct share in its commission." In short, "aid or
abet" means to do some nct vhich helpa the perpetrrtor without sharing
in the perpetration of the offense, In other words, it is sn act to
|fecilitote the consummntion of en offense. Therefore, it must be done
prior to the perpctration of the offense being commenced, or during the
|eourse of perpetration. It goes without saying that in this sense ,
|to have helped in the work of b after the execution wag over, does
|not constitute Yaiding" or "Lbett in a erime., In [(wericep and Ena“ph
\law there is a concept “accessory after the fect,” byt this ides, ﬂa{
ir11, desrls with misprision or the crime of concealing eriminels, that
|l case in which o person who regeives , relieves; comforts, or assista
epother with knowledge but it does not, in any way consist of ne1pm¢ in’
|the work of burial efter murder is committed. b oo
|

Bext, Muln&!ﬁnhlﬂ#ﬂmﬂmhﬂml of
misploperies and others, Since the accused, UCHIDL, has testified
thidmmmmt%dulmﬂuduﬁm-mhmm
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very well been parried out by toking only the missiomnries and others
to the scene without their belongings, the mere act of crrrying their
belongings, absolutely cannot be rog ed a8 having foeiliteted the {
barrying out of thd.l o orej this act also does not

sonsitute "aiding® of tiugJ in thc constimmtion of tho  offense.

Then, doe# the nct of earrying the child about £ifboon moters
on the way to the scene, constitute "piding™ in the offense? This
question is related to Charge II, but I'shall orgue it here, for
convenienco's sake. With regord to this point the accused EZURE tock
the witness stand on his om bohnlf on the eighteenth dry of the trial
ond in reply to the cross exnmination by the judge advoerte ond re-dircet
oxaminntion by the defense counsol, testified to the offect that the
child eould not walk on thc way, for about fiftcon meters, beesusoc the |
grass wapg high; Second Lieutecnant SLNO sceing this said, "Can't you see
that the child can't wolk? It's a phty. Carry him on your beck,® so
as EZURE rleo had tho same feeling, he carried the child on his bnek, but
he did not knov for surc vhether the child wne g ning to be executed or
not. (Refercnee: Questions: # 83, # 174, # 175, #1756, # 216, # 217, end
#220,) According to this testimony of EZURE, he did not heve the slight-
cat intent of "piding®™ in the exocution vhen he carried the child on his
bagk; he merely did the act boeceuse he saw thet the child wes in
difficulty end corried him on his back as he was uneble to repress his
pitiful feeling toward the child in difficulty. Thet is, there exdsted
no eriminal intent on his pert with rogerd to this peint,

Lesuming thet thore remnins an inferonce thrt the accused EZURE
could not hrve been unawaro thet the said child would be executed,
ve cannot say as yet thrt his nct of carrying the child freiliteted the
consumetion of the offense, becouse, there exists no reasonnble crusnlity
between his act and the consummation of the offcmse, That is, even if l
the secused had not earried the child on his beck, the child would hove
valked by himself to theo scene toking perhaps a little more time; ond
agrin, even if the acoused hnd not earried him and proceeded, ®so the act
of esrrying the child could not hrve freiliteted the execcution.

Generelly specking, effects (consequenccs) erising from a |
certein act vould spread infinite)y. Therc is & populer enying omong
the jurists of Jepan that, "When the wind blove, cat's skin sells well,®
This saying eatirizes the ridiculous nrture of some theory of ceuserlity
(the so-galled condition theory), but crusality in the legel n-:mse 1s i
not po far-fetched as this, If ve should spenk of thie theo
erusnlity vith regerd to eriminal law, an effoct {nc-nnoqunncrﬁv of & cer=
tedn met moens only an effact (consoguonce) heving bearing upon the |
constitution of an offense. Though there are numerous snd veried
theories of ceusality in crimimal law, the theory of adequate crusality
is regarded es the most and wvalid influcntial, This theory holds
that among the vorious conditions which oppose the effeet (consequence),
the conditions possessing such neture ns in generol from our doily
experionce cnuses a certein effect rre the only ones said to heve crusole
ity with regrrd to such effect (eonsoquence,)

In other wopds, this thecory excludes such an effect (conse=
quence) as regrirded u' mere coincidence from the legel point of view
from all the effects (co uences) arising from & eertein act; ond
selecting only the legelly (unlowfulness and responsibility) importont
tﬂtmn?cﬂmuama:r attempt to reeognizc ecnusnlity between the act |
and the effect. With rshmn to an Amoricen trootise coneorning
eausality, American Jurisprudoncet Volume 26, Homieido Seetion 50
states: "To warrent a convietion for homicide, the death must be the
natural and probable consequonge of the mlll'f'lll lﬂt,....".......,.!
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' mentioned above, Our drily experience doea not wrrront e judgment that

| IMLIZUMI, vere also included emong those to whom thies order of MIYAZLKI

| tHe ¢hild by the accuscd and the faot that the child wns executed.

|| transmit the orders of the Unit Commander and Detachment Commander ae
| n8 an explanatory note for my being free to walk mbout at the ecenc.®

| about in order to transmit the specific orders of the commanding officer

| satisfeactory, and there is no noed of discuseing this point any further,

-
=
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The term "noturnl and probobly consequensc® therein found,
I believo, is opproximetely the seme na the theory of adequate causnlity

if the accused had not earried the child, the child would hnve been
executed; therefore, therc 18 no adequate crusality betwe of carrying

Consequently, this act aleo, does not constitute "aiding® in the con=
submation of the offenso,

With regard to tho accused UCHIDL, other tham the point which
I have mentioned previously, there is a stetomont in hie confession
vhich is linble to be mistnderstood., It reads, "I wnlked dowm sbout wheore
the unit commandar was, up to the sceond or third man from tho right
(ee the person, used to transmit the orders of the unit commander and the
detachmont commander.") The accused, UCHIDL took the stend on his owm ;
behalf and explnined this point as follows: "I was merely giving my gencral |
duties at the scone of the execution, I wae not there for the purpose |
of relaying orders specifiocally nor when I was walking between Commanding
Officer MIYLZ/KI ond Detachment Commender MNAKIMURL was I relaying
orders.", and he further explained as; "When I wrote, 'I walked to a
placo in the resr where the officers were,'! as a resson for having been
free to walk about, I put this in parenthesis that as a person used to

| In short, this statement in his confossion, docs not meen thet he walked

and the dotachment officer #t the seene, but thet he was free to walk
about_the Heede bednube he was tho oMerly for Detcshment Commander NLK!«
MURL,/differont status from the others. This explanation is, I boliave,

Lostly, I am constrained to say n fow words with regord to
| the testimony of prosecution witness IMLIZUMI, Keishiro vherein he
' 8nid, "As to the others who were not on the teams the commanding offiocer
| told them that since the missionarics might mnke an escerpe = gunrd the
area.® This point of IMLIZUMI'S testimony was not cleer to the end
vhether MIYLZLKI'S words were directed to all persons, or only to
SUMID. UNIT personnel, or to the orderlies and SUMIDL UNIT men excluding
the members of the teams, But finally, in answer to the question by the
President of the Commission, he repllied whnt heo belioved to be correct,
was thnt "MIYLZ/KI ordered all those not on temms or others will act as
guards in cose these missionories attempt to escnpe.® Aecording to this
 testimony by witnees IMLIZUMI, orderlics such me the accused EZURE and

'was addressed, When the scoused, EZURE and UCHIDA took the stand, both

| however testified in cross examinction by the judge advoerte thot these

| words were addressed to all vho were present and not any perticiler party
|4n the group, and moreover, that it was not an order but that MITAZLKI

| drow evoryone's attention to this point, ALeccording to the above testi-

| mony of the sccused EZURE and UCHIDL, they were not assigned to guard
|sgainst the cscepe of the missionorics. Moreover, the member of the teams
|assigned to the missionaries and others, followed and escorted them after
alighting from the trucks at GLSUPLN Hﬁﬂ!ﬂ'ﬁ until arriving nt the scene,
80 the execution teams were those who were in charge of gurrding to
prevent the missionaries' escepe. It is inconcelveble end beyond ocur
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| common knowledge to believe that MIYAZAKT would further impose duties
'1 upon the others besides the members of the teams to guard against the

| Homieide Seotion =

miseionaries' escape, After all, it is proper and reasonable to regard
these words of MIYAZAKI as caution against the missicnaries' escape
vaguely addresged to all, Consequéntly, we cannod conceive that the

. moccused EZURE and UCHIDA were made to participate in this execution

by these words of MITAZAKI,

Therefore, as stated in American Jurisprudence, Volume 26,

gD: "In the absence of preconcept or conspiracy
the inactive presefe of the accused, with intent to render aid if
necessary is not sufficient," the accused EZURE and UCHIDA who did not
do anything at all in connection with the execution at the scene, cannot
be held responsible for murder, because of the mere fect thet they were
present at the scens of the execution.,

We must, however, take notice of the following statement
which follows the above cited portion of the American Jurisprudence
which reads: ",,... although in some cases, the rule is qualified by

| holding the inactive presence, with intent to render aid if mmnﬂ',
| eufficient if the principal knew of the presence with intent to aid,”

Clark and Marshall alsoc has a statement worthy of notice which reads:

"It is not necessary, however, thet actual physical eid shell be given,

It is enough to make one a principal in the second degree if he is

| present in concert with the actual perpetrator of the offense, for the
of assisting 1f necessary, or of watching and preventing inter-

ference or detection, or for the purpose of encouragement,® (Clark

and Mershall, Ibid, Section 167, page 214,) Though it hes herdly been

. proved who the actual perpetrators were in the present case, in view of

this opinion, the persons who were amsigned to the exscution teems, even

though some of them may not have shot the missionaries, may not, perhaps,

'ha absolved from responsibility as principals in the second degree.

In spite of that, those who were mere spectaters such as the acoused

EZURE and UCHIDA, are not to be held responsible as principels or

| acceseories, They are still imnocent,

Among the porsons who went te the scene of the execution,

. there is a vast difference in stetus between the persons who were aseigned

to & team charged with a misgionary, and those whoe went to the scene as
nﬂeﬂiaa fur efficers, The former by being assigned to 2 team were,

| a8 a matter of course, imposed with the duty of carrying out the execu-
| t4on, Wherees, the latter hed merely the duty to transmit the orders

| of the offiﬂaﬂ to whom they were rttached; and the fact thet they were
assigned as orderlies does not immodiately mean thelr pnrtiuiputiun in
the execution, Rather,by being assigned as orderlies, they were oxeluded
from the teame in charge of the cxeeutien, In other words, by being

| orderlies they were excused from the duty of earrying out the exegution,

If by reason of an accident happeming to a person in charge
of the execution caused by some unforseen occurrence at the scene, MIYA-
ZAKY hod ordered the accused EZURE or UCHIDA to substitute for him in
the exooution, they would have had to obey this order, because bgth were

| subordimates of MIYAZAKI, But in order to assign them to the oxecution,

there must have been another specific order to thim effeet, other than
the order assigning them as orderlies, During the course of this exescu~
tion, however, they did not receive any speeifiec order assigning them to
the execution. Consequently, they were not members of the execution
tenms when they left the Kempeital mor were
#t the scene until the exeoution was over., In
EZURE and UCHIDA were both wanting in the so=called *Int
Af necessary,” or "the purpose of assisting if nepessery® cited
It 15 believed thot for this same rea
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Consequoently, tho accused EZURE and UCHIDA are of the firm
belief that as to Specifications 1 and 2 of Charge I, and as td the
specification of Charge II, thoy are "not guilty,®*

(3) In behalf of the ncotifed YAMAMOTO, Kigtharu,

£1though much has Been said about the mccused YAMAMOTO,
Kazuharu and the SUMIDL UNIT in the course of this trinl, the méet
important points as to the accused YLMIMOTO are, I believe, rs follows:

(2) Besides lending out two trucks (of course, one had
elready been assigned to the Kempeitai) that he himself went to the
scene of the execution with the members of the Kempeitai,

(b) When the mccused YAMAMOTO ceme to know that the
missionnries were to be executed, and

(¢) How the men of the SUMIDA UNIT participated in the said
exeocution at the socene,

In the following, I shall advance my argument with regnrd
to these three points,

(a) Why did the mocused YAMAMOTO go to the scene of the
execution?

The accused YLMIMOTO'S testimony wes the only evidence
produced before this cowrt which explained this point, YLMLMOTO
tock the witness stand on hie on behalf on the nineteonth doy of the
trial and testified with regerd to thie point, in summnry, as follove:

In the morning of the day of the incident, Ldjutont ICHIKAWA
of the KEMPEITLI visited YLMAMOTO and requested the loan of two trucks,
When YLMAMOTO asked about the use of the trucks, ICHIKAWA
that they were going to be used to escort spies, YLMAMOTO replied
he was willing to lend them the trucks, but inquired at the same
time about the authorisation from Division Headquarters which was
necessary for his unit to lend out vehicles, ICHIKLWL replied that
arrengements had already been made with Division Headquarters snd that
the said authorisation would come through presently. {4fter ICHIKAWL
had left, YILMIMOTO promptly sent a messenger to a company, end had
them prepare one truck, He vmaited for the arrival of the division
authorisation, but saw no sign of it when the designnted time, 1800
ceme, Since the Unit Commander Major SUMIDL was obesent from the t
thet day, YAMLMOTO was uneasy in view of his responsibility as adjutant,
about lending out vehieles without authorisation from the division
86 around 1800 he left his office and proceeded towards the G HIGH~
WLY about thirty meters away, There he met the commanding officer of
the Kempeitai, lieutenant Colonel MIYLZAKI, MIYLZAKI then said, ™is we
are going to use the truecks todny, in accordance with the orders of
Divieion Hemdquarters, the authorisation will come without feil. If
it should not come, I'1ll assume the responsibility , so don't worry.®
YAMAMOTO still felt unecsy about the matter, and after exchenging a few
werds with MIYLZLKI decided to accompany him,

Acgording to the above explanation of the accused YAMIMOTO,
it vas a ve responsibility on ‘' his part ae adjutant to Commanding
Officer 8 » to lend out vehioles and personnel (driver and assistant
driver) without the authorisation of Division Hendquarters while
Commanding Officer SUMIDL wae absent; #0 in order to fulfill hie
reepongibility he accompanied the cotmminding officer of the itai
to the scene of the execution, This action an the part of _
was only natural, and his explonation is sufficient to warranmt our
understanding,
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(b) When did the accusod YLMAMOTO come to know that the
missionnrics were to be excouted?

With rogard to this point also, there is no evidence other
than the accused IAMAMOTO'S testimony; so let us weigh his testimony,
In reply to the croes exnmination by the judge advoeste, he replied
ag followe; ae this is an dmportant peint I shell eite direetly from
the record:

"123. Q. When did you first learn that these people
were going to be executed? to

4, MIYAZLKT after ordering air roid lock outs Aake up
their positions, we advanced into the jungle, and I think it sms then
that I questioned him, "What are you going to do?', Lt first he
did not answer and when I repeated the question he said, 'You will see
when you get there,! and when I pressed him again he seemed to get angry
and said, "We are going to knock them off,'"

LAccording to this teetimony by the accused YLMIMOTO, he first I
knew about the exeocution of the missionaries and othere while he wae pro-
ceeding in the jungle on the wmy to the scene, after getting off the |
truck at GLSUFAN HEIGHTS. Is this testimomy true? When ICHIKLWL ,
requosted the loan of trucks, he stanted.that they were to be used to
escort spies and did not reveal the true purpose, Perhape MIYAZLKI
did not disclose hies intention to TAMLMOTO vwhen he first met him on
GLSUPAN Road (ot least there is no evidence thet he did,) beeause as
it is clearly shown by the testimony of the accused EZURE and a few
other witnesses, MIYLZLKI had repeantedly warned his subordinntee at
the assembly and also on the way to the missionaries' house not to have
the missionories detect hie intention of executing them, Nonme of I
MIYAZIKI's subordinntes alse who were all csutioned to conceal this .
purpose, must have told YLMAMOTO about it. While on the way to the
scene, ILMIMOTO was sitting in the assistant driver's seat apart from
the members of the Kempeitei, so he must have had no chance to spenk -
either to MITAZLKT or to his subordinates during this time, Thus, we .
must admit, that the acoused YAMAMOTO'S testimony in whioh he stoted
that he did not know MIYAZAKI'S intention to execute the missionerics
end others until he questioned MIYLZLKI on the way to the soene in
the jungle is justified,

Since YLMLMOTO knew of the mdssionaries' execution prior to
its taking place, and since the vehiecles thot he had loaned out were
used for the execution and his act resulted in siding MIYLZLKI'S
offense, it is believed that TLM.MOTO should have remonstrrted with
MIYAZAKT and stopped the execution the moment he wos avnre of the
true state of affairs, if he truly wanted to withdraw from having any
part in the execution, Such an argument is duly expected with regnrds
to this point, particularly so when the accused YAMAMOTO has elaimed
that he had accompanicd MIVLAZLKTI in view of his responsibility towards
Commanding Officdr SUMIDL., Such an argument is only naturel, ond
logieal. But it would have been most difficult, almost impossible
from common sense of Japanese (I am not in a position to speak about
the attitude of an Lmerican) for YAMIMOTO who had been thinking all the
way that the vehigles were to escort sples, then suddenly told nesr the
scene of the exeouytion that the missionories were going to be exgouted,
to say, "That is not the way I understood it. In that casc I should
not have loened you the vehicles, I will immedintely turn back with
them," Particularly is it true, vhen we poneidir the fact thnt MIYAZLKI J
was a puperior officer of another ' unit, but neverbheless was YLMAMOTO!
superior, {8 a Japanese military man who had been inoulcated
his military life with the precept "implioit obedience to superior order"
YAMLMOTO could not hrve possibly taken such an atti he had
the courege of a true benevolent person who would "ea himgelf to
realise perfect virtus® ap Confusius would put it, Iav 18 not made for
the benevolent, but for the worldly, There ccnnot be any law antieis
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In relation to this point, there still remains the problem
of his toking with him armed men from his unit. While there is greert
variance in the testimony of the various witnesses with regerd to the
number of SUMIDL UNIT men who went to the scene that day, it is obvious
that the testimohy of the ncoused YLMLMOTO and witness KUMIGLI, Satoshi
both of the SUMIDA UNIT merits higher credibility than thet of the
vitnesses of the Kempelitel as regerds this point, because the men from
the SUMID/ UNIT are better qualified to testify as to the activities
of that unit that night than men from an entirely different unit, the
Kempeital, UOccording to the testimony of the accused YLMAMOTO and the
vitness KUMLGLI, tho men of the SUMIDL UNIT who were at the secene

that night beeides YLMAMOTO and KUMAGAI, were NAMEKLW., Genji, two drivers

and one assistant driver - six persons in sll, Lmong t.hau men KURAGLI
was the orderly for YAMLMOTO and it was customary in the Japanese lArmy
that an orderly accompany the officer vhenever he went out, NLMEKLVA,
Genji went along ne an assistant driver, so this ie also natural.

Thus, there wae not a single umnecessary man who went to the scene or
its vicinity along with YLMAMOTO,

With regnrd to the point that the SUMIDL men were armed,
it 18 considered all too natural for a soldier to carry his rifle
when he went out of his barracks under the preveiling battle conditions,
vhen the enemy bombings were constant and intense and landing invesion
tns imminent, I, therefore, believe that further argument is not
necessory with regard to this point,

(¢) How did the men of the SUMIDL UNIT come to participate
in the exeoution of the missionnries?

The evidence produced in this court concerning this point
is divergent and wanting in unity, Witness NAKLMUR!, Kasuo in direet
examinction by the judge advocate replied: "Then Commanding Officer
MIYLZAKT said to First Lieutonant YLMAMOTO, 'T will turn over the right
half to the SUMIDL UNIT, do have them shoot,™ Then he says: “Socon
after Commending Officer MIYAZLKI said this, First Lieutmant ICHIKAWA
told YAMEMOTO as follows: ' I ansk you to teke care of the four from
the right. '™ He relayed this to YLMAMOTO, When the same vitnese was
nsked in cross examination, "Who ordered these members of the SUMIDL
UNIT to shoot?®, he answered, "I do not remember,® Then in the next
quegtion when he was ceked, Did MILZAKT order them to shoot?,® he
enswered, “Commanding Officer MIYAZLKI gave the order,®

Then, Witness SLNO, Giichi, replied in the redirect exsmination
"Commanding Officer MIYLZLKT said to Captain YLMIMOTO, 'Since it is the
order of the Division Headquarters, have them shoot,! au!h:m
at the scens of the exscution had them shoot.® Then to/question
"ifter MITAZLKT said this to YAMAMOTO, 4id you see YLMAMOTO do anything?,®
witness BLNO replied, "I saw YAMIMOTO say to the mon thet he had brought
to the scene, ‘!mandymnhnot"

Furthermore, witnese KUMLGLI, Setoshi, testified in direct
examipation by the judge advocate as follows' ®Fhe Commanding Officer
wvas talking with adjutant YLAMIMOTO, He was seying thet it vas by
orders of the Division Headquarters and for the SUMIDAUNIT to place
some men ot his dispoeal," "And when ndjnt.uut YLMEAMOTO was silent,
Colonel MIYLZLKT repeated the same demand,® 'M.'zar this repeated
urging, YAMANOTO turned around end said, 'It ean't be helped, NLMEKAWL,
stop foyvard, "

Agcording to the test of the obove thres witncsses

it seems as if the accused Y/MIMOTO'S will was interposed when the
SUMIDL UNIT mem partisdipated in the exeoutiony
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fis ogainst the above, the accused TAMIMOTO took the stand
on his own behalf and testified in direct examinotion as follows:
"Touching NLMEKLT'L, one of the SUMIDA men, on the shoulder, MIYLZLKI
said, "We will ask the SUMID/ UNIT men to help in the execution,'®
"I was shoocked when MIYLZLKI made the request for mssistance, nnd I
replied that "I must refuse that men from my unit, which ie a trenspor-
tetion unit, perticipete in accordance with your request,'® "Even
though I am the adjutant of the SUMIDL UNIT I have no authordty
to order SUMIDL men to assist.,® Lfter two or three questions and |
ansvers to the same effect were reperted, he further testified ns
follows® "Colonel MIYLZLKI, touching NLMEKAWL'S shoulder, said,
'"This is b ordars of Division Headquarters. Do you mean to say that
you ere not going to obey these Division Headquarters orders? We are
in the face of the enemy, you fool!'™ and then "MIYLZAKT pushod N.MEKLVL
forward telling hm to shoot,"

ﬂunnﬂimﬁu the above testimony of YAMIMOTO, he repectedly
refused when MIYLZLKI asked him to heve the SUMIDA UNIT men take part
in the execution, Despite his reperted refusal, MIVLZLKT ignored his
protest and objection, and forced NLMEKLFA into the execution,

If the nccused YLMLMOTO hnd tostified to this effeet for
the first time in this court room, it might be regrrded as his mere
self serving declarntion. But, long before he had the benefit of
counsel, he had alrendy to this effect steted in his statecment submitted |
to the prosecution on the 23rd day of Jamuary of this yesr, which reods
rs follows: "When MIYLZLKI tapped NLMEKLVA'S shoulder and saying 'You!,
rushed him forward, just st the same time, Commnnding Officer MIYAZAKY
gave the opder '"Fire'!.™ I believe this statcment definitely proves thot
YLMAMOTO'S above cited testimony was not a mere self serving stotement,

Morcover, even prosecution witness IM.IZUMI, Keishiro
on direct examination testified to the following effect: "Then Lieutenant
Colonel MIYLZLKY said to Adjutent YLM.MOTO of the SUMIDL UNIT, *.'"Won't
you have your men of the SUMIDL UNIT shoot also?' YLMLMOTO said s
end then after thot he said, "I would 1like the Kempeitai to do 1t."
Then Captein NAKAMURL went over to Adjutant YLMLMOTO and asked some of
hie men to come out but he vas refused by the adjutant, so then the
commanding offieer went over to the adjutant and seid, "Since this
is by the orders of Division Hendqunrters thore is nothing to worry about!,
and MIYLZAKI then faced the men of the SUMIDL UNIT and spoke to them,
Lfter that two men of the SUMIDL UNIT came forward."

This testimony of IMLIZUMI is 4n- ete accord vwith that of
the ecoused YLMLMOTO, FPorticulerly, as IMA accompanied MIYAZLKI
thnt doy as his orderly, his testimony merits the highest credibility
80 far as the actions 05 MIYAZLKT are comcerned, Furthermore, it is
obvious that YAMAMOTO 444 not think of this after listening to IMATZUMI'E
testimony, because YIMAMOTO had alreedy expressed this in his statement
submitted to the judge ndvooate dated 23 Jemunry of this yenr,

Ve may safely conolude thet the testimony of the acoused YAMie
MOTO backed by the testimony of such a eredible and matorial witness as
IMLTZUMY ie true over the counter testimony by the other prosecution
witnessas,

The eircumstanses bein g ad testified to by tho accused
himself, he camnot be held re for the participation of the
SUMIDA {NIT men in the exsoution _
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| An argument may be raised, hovever, to the effect thet YAMAMOTO

I etill cennot be shsolved from responsibility as senior officer present

I from the SUMIDA UNIT at the mcene, because he left his subordinates

. to the free dispasel of MIYAZAKT and did not teke positive stepe to
check NAMBKAWA when he was obout to participate, even though NLMEKAVA's {
participation was due to the coeroion on the part of MIYAZLKI and no
will of YLMAMOTO was interposed. This argument is reasonsble, and as a

I matter of fact, the judge advooate msked the mccused in his croses

| exnmination, "Did you tell him (NAMEKATA) mot to participate in this

| executioni®, to this YAMLMOTO briefly answered, "I didn't have & chance

| to stop him.," YLMIMOTO'S stetement which was cited above, however,
explains more clearly and coneretely the cireumstances at the time. That
is TLMAMOTQ stetes, "When MIYLZAKI tepped NLMEK/WL'e shoulder and saying
'"You'! end rushed him forwerd, just at the same time, Commanding Officer
MIY.ZIKI gave the order 'Fire!™, eo there was not even a split second
between the two instances, In Paragraph four (4) of the srme stotement
he stotes further to explain this point in detail: "If there had been
time, I believe the subject of stopping it could have becn t out
but there was no such chance at all, Moreover, as he (MIYLZLKI) was t&
Commanding Officer of another unit and ae he waes & superior officcr,
nothing cen be done by a person from another unit,"

Under such pressing clrcumstances who eould expoet the acoused i
YLMIMOTO to check NIMEKLVL'S participationy In other words, would it not
be pressing YLMIMOTO for the impossible to impose upon him the duty
of checking NLMEKLVL from participating in the execution? Ve ask your
impartial and penetrrting observetion with regerd to this point.

Furthermore, in relation to the above point, there is a portion
in the statement made by the accuscd EZURE which reads, "I remember
an officer from the SUMIDLUNIT was talking with the unit commander
\ asking that the shooting be done in order to test the cournge of the
young soldiers.® However, as it is stated in Section 186 of Haval |
) Courts and Boards, "Admissions of one joint conspireator are available
ageinst others == Foundetion must be 1eid by either direct or circum-
ptantinl e¢vidence sufficlent to esatoblish prima focice the fnct of con<
spiregy between the parties, unless the judge advocate states thet
conspirncy vill later sppenr from cvidence to be adduced." and also in
| Lmerican Jurisprudence, Volume 26 Homicido, section 381 clearly states:
|  M™Clearly, an admission by one person is not evidence against another just
|  becruse it happens that they are co-defendante, The mere fnet that
two defendants are boing tried for an offonse is not sufficiont to
ronder in e confession made by one of them admissible agninet the other,
| Vhen gonspirscy is esteblished, everything said, written, or done by
| any of the conspiretors during the progress of the conspiracy and im
|| eoxooution or furthersnce of the purpose thereof i deemed to have been
i || said, done or written by everyone of thom and may be proved ngainst ench
other., The foregoing general prineiples have been applicd many times
in prosecution for homicide, The axistence of a conspiracy to commit
murder operates to render the declaration of one of the conspiretore
admissible ageinst another charged with the murder, even though the
declarent is not on trial, but only in so far as they are stotoments
made in furtherance of the conspirmcy, FProof of the existence of a
conepiracy and the partioipation therein of the accused is requisite to
the admiesibility against the accused of a de¢laration as onhe made by A
conspirator,® So a statement made by one accused detrimental to another
is inadmissible as evidence in the present ease where no allegation of
| conspirecy 48 clanimed, ' Only when EZURE testifies to the same effect a8
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written in his stetcmont, that portion of his stotement tould be com=
petent evidance. Thus, the judge rdvoocrte persistently pursued this:
point 4n his cress cxnrination vhen the socused EZURE took the mitnoss
stand, In spite of this persistent questioning, the nccusod EZURE
mointerined his testimony throughout, steting, "That wes o mistoko qgn my
recollection, It vas the revorse. The Commonding Officer, MIYLZLKT,
seid to the officer from the SUMIDL UNIT, 'Since your unit is n trons-
portrtion outfit you don't heve much chance to shoot, so hrve your men
shoot,'™ Then finally, when the nccused EZURE vne asked by the President
of the Commiesion to whet portion of the strtement he referred when he
seid he hed mande A grave mistrke, he onsvered thet he had the Commanding
Officer MIYLZLKI end the officer of the SUMIDL UNIT reversed in relation
to the conversation of heving the SUMID. mon shoot, Consequently,

as EZURE testifiod to the contrery throughout while on the Titness. stond
vith regnrd to the above cited portion of his strtoment, this portion
cannot be admitted se evidence any longer, irrespective of EZURE'S
testimony being given veight or not, end I am of the firm cenvietion
thet the eriminnl responsibility of the accused,YLMLMOTO,cannot be
decided upon the basis of this portion of EZURE'S strtomont.

Therefore, I hold, on the grounds stated above, thrt the
accuscd ILMAMOTO is not guilty rs to Specificetions 1 rnd 2 of Charge I
rnd the specificetion of Charge II brsed upon the same frctes as the
former.

PLRT II, CONCERNING SPECIFIC./TIONS 3 rnd 4 OF CHLRGE I:

In this pert of my argumont, I shrll arguc ccncerning the
accusod YLMAMOTO's meoglect of duty as nlleged in specificrtions 3 and
4 of Charge I.

(1) Concerning the mccused YLMLMOTO'S duty to control hie subordinntesd,

In specifications 3 and 4 of Charge I the accused YLNLMOTO
is chnrged with neglect of duty in thet YiI'IMOTO, while senior officer
present from the SUMIDL UNIT at the scene, frilad to dischnrge his duty
to control the operrtions of co-defendcnt KLVAGUCHI, Vohel, NLMEKLTL,
Genji nnd others, nomes to the relntor unknorn, permitting the aforeseid
unls-fully to kill scven civilirns,

There is much vorirnce botveen the verdous witnesscs cs to the
| number of SUMIDL UNIT men vho perticipeted in the execeution of the
migsioneries nnd others, TVitness NLKINURL, Knzuo teatified, "The four
from the r‘.l.Eht- mere shot by the SUMIDA® UNIT®; witness §/NO, Giichi
tostificd, "I saw two or three men of the SUMID. UNIT shoot the
missionnries™; witness IMLIZUMI, Koishiro testified, "ifter two men
from the SUMIDL UNIT ceme out, they went to the far ond of the line

rnd relieved the two Kempels that were there,"

. lis against the above testimony, the accused YLMIMOTO tostified
| to the effect that, thdt the persons from the SUMIDL UNIT who boorded

| the truck snd proceeded to GLSUPLN HEIGHTS, were YLMAMOTO, his orderly

|| KUMLGLI, Satoshi, sssistant driver NLMEXLYL, Gonji, two drivers snd one
| mspistent driver = six persons in all, Three persons smong them were

|| ordered by Commanding Officer MIYLZLEY to stend air rrid Yook out vhen
they arrived at GLSUPLN HEIGHTS, so the remaining vere KUMALGLI, NAMEKLUL
and YAMLMOTO vwere the only ones who actuslly went to the ecene, ond
NAMEKAWA wes the only SUMIDL man who tme ordered by Commanding Officer
MITLZAKT to shoot,
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Moreover, witness KUMAGAI, Satoshl, likewise s SUMIDA UNIT
man testified: "NAMEEAWA and I attached ourselves to the adjutent
(meaning Adjutent YAMAMOTO).® "I saw NAMEKAWA step forward," "After
stepping forward he went, I think, toward the extreme right, and admitted
that NAMEEAWA was ths only SUMIDAUNIT persen who participated in the
miseionaries' execution., Though it is left to the discretion of the
members of the commission to decide which part of the inconsistent
testimony merites credibility, we hold that NAMEKAWA wae the only SUMIDA
UNIT men who participated in the missionaries! execution, because we
believe, from out common sense that the men firem the SUMIDA UNTT are
able to testify far more accursztely than those from the Kempeitai mp
regards the actions of the SUMIDA UNIT men, In other words, we maintain
thet actuslly thers wers no "other members of the said unit, names to
the relators unknown" as alleged in Bpecification 3 of Charge I,

Next, as regerds the co~defendant KATAGUCHI, Wahel, there is
no room for controversy that he was a SUMIDA UNIT man by the evidence
adduced before this court, that he was once detached from the SUMIDA
UNIT to the Kempeitsi serving as the driver of Detechment Commander |
NAKAMURA'S sedan, and thet KAWAGUCHI went to the scene of the execution,
ﬂﬁmahlu is whether hé went to the scene thet day as a member of the
8 UNIT or as & member of the Kempeitei, The evidence produced in
this court is alvays in agreement as regerds this point alse, First
witness NLKS » Kaguo testified, "Before this time, KINWAGUCHI ceme
to the Kempeited as & driver but I recsll at this time he went back
to SUMID! UNIT.® The witness SLNO, Giichi, testified: "I yecall that
he was driving for the commanding officer of the First Detrchment
while we ' ere on KOROR but when we came to BLEELTHULF I rceall thet he
went back to the SUMIDL UNIT."™ Witnces YLZMLDA, Kiyoshi, then toatified:
"I think it wae at the second assembly on the GLSUPLN Hiﬁm thet
KLFLGUCHI joined the oxeoution party." Ls if KLEAGUCHI jeined the
execution party as a member of the SUMIDL UNIT.

In eontrery to the above, proscoution witness IMATZUMI, Keishiéro
testified: "KINLGUCHI belonged to the SUMIDL UNIT but at this time I
recoll that he had come from tho KEMPFEIT. I.® I have clready shom thet
the testimony of both the accused Y/M.MOTO and witness KUMLGLI denied
the fect that KLWLGUCHI had gone from the SUMIDA UNIT, KLVIGUCHI him=
self stotes in his etetement thet ordered by Captein NAKAMURA to
accomprny him thot night, ho went to the scene of the exccution,

So it ie quite imfifferent to KLWAGUCHI vhether he went to the socne |
of the execution as o momber of the Kempoitel or es o member of the
SUMIDL UNIT, he camnot have given o folee stotement in rogord to this
point, Consequently, there is no longer eny room for argumcnt thet
H-bﬂéglinﬂﬂi hed gone to the seone of tho execution as n member of the
KF X,

Ls KLWLGUCHI was not a subordinate of the mccused YLMIMOTO
on the day of the excoution, YLMLMOTO had no responsibility to control
the cotiona of KAWLGUCHI., Even sssuming. thet YLMIMOTO had this
responsibility, there is no resson to hold YL.M.MOTO responsible for
KLW.GUCEI'S mctions because therec has been mo evidence adduced that
KLWLGUCHI was even aseigned to the expoution toom; not to speak of his
shooting tha mesionnrice and others.
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Thus, the problem of the spoused YLMAMOTO'S duty te - {
his eubordin-tce has core dowm to his duty over the anctions of NA [
Genji alone. Fermally spoeking, this question concerming N.MEKLWL elje,
ves outéide the control and supefvieién of the accused YLMLMOTO beoause,
08 testified by YLMLMOTO, the nuthoriention aes to the use of  ghe truck
issued by the Division Herdquorters rerd:! "Commnnding Officer SUMIDA
7ill despatch one truck including the driver and aesistent driver to the
Kempeital, end place them under the command of the commnrding offiger
of the Kempeitoi®, and NLMEKLFL, being an nssistant driver of one of the
trucks that dey, came undor the commend of Commanding Offiser MITAZIKI,
end was not under the control ond supervision of YLMAMOTO, though it
would have been difforent if YLMLMOTO'S orderly KUMAGLI had participated
| in the execution, Then ngain, substantively sperking, tho resson for

NAMEKLWL'S participoation in the exocution, as indige in the portien
| of my argument concerning Specificntions i and 2 of Charge I, wae be=

ceuse MIYLZAKT directly grve an order to NLMEKAWA and forced him to
participate, ignoring TLMLMOTO who. 4n the lemst . 41d not interposc
hip will agninst NLMEFLVA'S partieipation which was done within o
mbrnndth of time so it was impoesible for YLMLMOTO to check his

n,

I, thereforc, maintain from the above grounds thot the ncoused
YAMLMOTO is "not guilty® of speeification 3 of charge I,

| (2) CONCERNING THE LCCUSED YLMLMOTO'S DUTY TO FROTECT THE
| SEVEN CIVILIAMS,

In Bpocification L of Charge I, the anooused YLMLMOTO 1s
L charged with neglect of duty in thnt he fniled te protect seven |
olvilinns pormitting them to be unlawfully killed by the mombers of the
| Jopanecse armed forces,

| Hewever, is there nny duty on the part of the apcused YLMLMOT
' to protect these scven eiviliane? . It hns been clecrly brought out by wite
neseswr YLJDML, Toshihiko end 8LNO, Giichi thnt theee seven civilinns
| were uader the protection and surveillence of the South Sene Kempeitrd,
|| Witness YAJIM. testified to the effect that these civilians hnd formerly
| beon under the protection of the South Scre Government, but it hoceme
difficult for the South Sers Covormment to protect them beocruse of the
tensc war conditions, so the South Seus Govermment requested the
|\ eivilicne to bo tronseferred to the custody of Division Headquarters
|  which in turn had the South Seas Kompeltal protect and wateh them,
Furthcrmore, in cross cxaminetion by defense counsel, witneass SANO
/ whon neked: "Explain how those missionaries rnd employce cnme to bo

; under custody at the Kempoitai?®, repliod in n vory roundabout mamner,
vhich in pert reads: ®About the middle of ‘ugust 1944, the Kempeditnei
received n requost from a Jopenese force meay the place where these .
two missionnries (formerly residing in KOROR™ then evoounted from KOROR
to BLBEITHULP ) werc living steting thet they would like these mission=
ardes to be moved to some other ploce, L4t that time ns these foreignors
were under the protection of the westorn bronch of the South Sers Governe
ment, the Kempeitei mede a request to the Westcrn Branch of the
South Sens Govermment to make some orrengemoptto heve thepe missionaries
moved to some other plnce for it hnd been requested from the unit
stotioned there thrt they be moved, Socon after this, the Kempeitol
| received on ondey” from Divieion Heedquartars to hrve thesp miseionaries
] | rasssbled iwens plege and fo the Kempedtei to protect ead gurrd them,®

ppas(17)*




From the nbove cited testimomy, it is evident thrt the
civilis =cre under the protection of t.gu South Sers Kempedtrd,

The wessursability of protecting them, thereforo, rested upon MIYLZLKI,
Purthermore, it is nlso clerr without minutely referring to the evidence
thnt the execution of the missionrries and others wos chiofly done by
the merbers of the Kempeitni under the #irect command of Ideutencnt
Colonel MIYLZLKI., Tt goes without snying thot the acoused YLMAMOTP

hoé no authority teo control ti:c astions of the members cf tho Kempeitai,
It is on uncontroversinl frcl thrt Commanding Officer MIYALLYY vias

the supreme commonder at the ecene of the execution end thrt NAMEKLVL
was the only SUMIDL UNIT mnn who killed a missionary among the victims,
We may be able to understend the rerson if the ncoused YLMLMOTO were
held responeible in thrt he had violated his duty of pretecting the

one missiopary wvhich NAMEKLWL hed shot; but it ie beyond our remotest
understanding for the judge ndvoente to held the ncoused YLMIMOTO
responsible for the allegrtion in this epeeificotion thot he violnted
his duty to protect seven civilinns, A

Fith rogerd to the one missionsry which NAMEKAWL §41%ed, I
hrve elreedy explained in grect deteil the circumstances under vhich
he cape g nssigned to the missionrry, I wish, however, to reiterrte

that A'B nction wine by order of MITLZLKI without YLMAMOTO'S
gt L, i J 0 Tt

uﬂ.‘lﬂ interposed in the lerst, without YLMIMOTO having chence to
chegk V'L because it happened within a moment of time, and over

the objeotion and protest of YLMLMOTO, Consequently, there exists no
vidlation of duty to protect the seven civilians on the part of the
acoused YLMMOTO.

I, therefora, mvintain for the resrsons stated nbove thot the
aogteed Y.MLMOTO 1s “not guilty® ecs to Specifiontion 4 of Charge I.

PART XTI, CONCERNING THE SPECIFICLTION OF CHLRGE II.

In the specification of Charge II these necused are charged
with the marder of ten civilians ond olleged therein: ®This in violotion
of effective low, especiclly irticle 199 of the Criminal Code of Jeprn,®
The moin rerson for the judge advocnte to hove chefged the snme fncte
as alleged in Specificotions 1 ond 2 of Charge I, agrin in Charge II,
g8 violation of Lrticle 199 of the Criminnl Code of Jepan, it seems,
was because they considered thrt the offenses ngrinst the three vietims,
FILLMIN. UNT/LLN HONDONERO, BILT.Z/R UNTLLLN HONDONERO ond CLROLINE
UNTLLLN HONDONERO smong the ten victims does not constitute o var orime,
but are nothing but ordinary murder owing to the fagt that they were
netives, inhebiteamts of YLP IBLLND, The reason for slso including
the offenses ageinst the remsining seven victims in the specificrtion
vins, in conpiderntion thrt it might result so thet the aceused might
not eserpe punishment for the violation of the erimimal code of Japen,
even if found mot guilty of o war crime in case the netionalities of the
victime vere not estaiflished - thot is, they heve provided for the

Since the Owimipal Code of Jepnn, like mny obher law of Japen,
was ennctod by : of the legielntive povey of Jrpen re » fun-
- - § is ovidont thet the Joprnese courts alone,

0 court.as this _ ion
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The League of Nations on 17 December I920 granted o
Japau a Cluss "C" mondate cver all the former German Islands situated
i1 *he Srnfic Ocean and lying north of the equator; and under an
ordivauce (No. 26) for the Treatment of Judicial Affairs in the South
Scas Islands, enacted in 1923, the Criminel Code of Japan was the
effective law in the mendated islende ot the time of thiv incident,
Oun oy sbout 15 Beptember '944. n portion of the Palat Isiuwc was
occupiad by the armed forces cf tha Undtad States and a Wliftary
Govarnren® wan proeiaimed by Chester W, WIMITZ, Fleet Adricni,
U. 8. Havy, Commander in Chiaf, United Stutes Pacific Fleet and
Facific Oceen Area, and subsequently Proclamations to the People
of the Carcline Islands wers issued by and under the authority
of Chester W, NIMITZ, Fleet Admirsl, U, S. Navy, Commander in Chief,
U. 8. Papific Fleet and Pacific Ocean Area, and Military CGovernor
of the Caroline Islands,

Article IV of the above proclamation (No, 2) provides:
®Any persen who commits an aot which violates any provision of the

Japanese Penal Code in effect in these islands prior to the occupation

by the forces under my command, or the provisions of native law

customary in the islend, mey, at the discretion of the Militery Gevernor

or under his suthority, be brought to trial before an Exceptional
Mlitary Court,,..."; and Section 3 Article II of Proclamation No, 3,
states that such "Exceptional Military Courts shall have jurisdiction
over: (a) All offenses against the lawa and usages of war; and (b)
411 offenses under any proclamation, order or regulation issued under
Authority of my Militery Govermment; and (¢) Any offenses under the
local laws of the West Carcline Islandes occupied by the United States
Forces.,..."

Then, in accordance with Article II of the Trusteeship
Agreement for the former Jepanese mandated islands approved by the
SBecurity Council of the United Natiqns on 2 April 1947 and by the
Untted States Govermment om 18 July QQe7| the United States was
designated as the administrating authc of the Trust Territory
comprising the islands of the Marshalls, Carclines, and Morianas
Groups; thus the Military Covermment previously proclaimed by
Admiral NIMITZ was terminoted on 18 July 1947 by executive order of
the President of the United States, and a civil admindstration of

these islands was instituted under the responsibility of the Secretary

of the Nevy, Article II of Proglamntion No, 1 to the People of the
Trust Territory of the Preific Islands, issued by L. E. DENFELD,
M' u- S. Hﬂv' B_Iﬂor in ﬂhinf, hﬂmﬂ and Ul Ei- H‘Iﬂiﬂ.u
Fleet, and High Commissioner of the Trust Territory by designotion
of the President of the United States, providest that hy its terms
continie in force and effect, "all proclametions, re tions, ordi -
nances and orders of the former military govermment, » g
Judge advoorte contended that the Crimime] Code of Japan is still
the effective law of these territories.

-

In view of the nbove reasoning, there is no doubt that
the Criminal Code of Jopan still has effect in the United States
Trust Territory in the Pacific Jslande; and we sleo do not attempt
to deny this fact, In the follewing, however, I wigh to scrutinise
whether the Criminal Code of Japan is applicsble to the alleged
offenses of these scoused, and oven assuming that it is, whother

"588(19)"
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this um.g Commission copvened at Commander Marianas, Cuam, M.I.,
gun pundsh those nccused in accordence with thet Criminel Code of
Jnpan,

(1) IS MARTIAL LAW RETROSPECTIVE?

There is no room for controversy thet the Criminel Codo
of Japan was in force in accordance with Imperial Ordinnnce (mo, 26)
for the Treoatment of Judicial Affairs in the Bouth Seas Island,
enacted in 1923, over Babelthuap Islond, Palau Islands, where the
offenses were committed, ond on 18 September 1944 when the offenses
ocoured, The above Imperial Ordinapce, however, was effective as
long as Jepan exaroised her povereignty over the sedid island, but
ence Japan lost her sovereignty over the place by sumrendering to
the Allied Fowers in dugust (the 14th) 1945 and by the subsequent
occupation of the paid island by the American forces, the above
imperial ordinance lost its effect; and conmsequently the Criminal
Code of Japen wam no longer effective ns the law of Japan, The only
reason why the Criminal Code of Japan is still effective today in the
United Stotes Trust Territory in the Pocific Islands including
Babelthunp, is because of the above cited Procoamations of &dmiral
NIMITZ and the Proclamation of Admiral DENFELD which recognised
the contimued effect of the former. In other words, the Criminal
Code of Jepen is no longer effective as the law of Jopan, but as
the local law of the United Stetos in the Trust Territorice of the
Facifio Islands, Though its substance is identical with the Criminal
Code of Japan, the source from which the effect of the law is
secured, is quito different between the time when the alloged offensee
were committed and the time after the occupation by the American
forees. The very roason for the Judge Advoente to have asgked this
Commiseion, an American court, to cpply this lew, I believe, is
attributed to the fact thet he, too, acknowledges this as the loeal
law of the Unitod Stetes. Otherwlise, there would be no reason for
requesting an Admerdionn Military Commiesion to apply the Criminnl
Code of Jepan as a law of Jepen,

Then, when does the Criminal Code of Japen as an American
local law, become effective? Neodless to say, it became effective
when Ldmiral NIMITZ issued the proclametion in Bebelthuap, after the
ocoup: tion of the American Forces, This is quite evident, in view of
Article 9 of Procoemation No, 2, end Article 10 of Proclametion No, 3,
vhich have already becn cited in the above. That is, both Articles
specifiecally prowide thet: "this proclrmation will become effective
in each or part thereof within the occupled territory on the dete |
of its first publicstion,® It scems to me thrt the J advoeate
interpreted this provision, that if, one or more isla ina
were occupled and proclameation issued thereon, the proolema would
be effective on the other islands in the group which have not
been oceupied, and sinee this proclamation was ennounged on elin
Islande, among the Palau Group after being oé ed by the lmericen
Forces, he considered thrt the proclrmetion w also be effective
in Babelthuap end the other islands of the Falay Group which were
not yet ocoupied, and thus requosted judieinl e to be teken
of the fact that on or about Beptember 15, 1944 Palau Islands
were opcuped by the aymed forces of the Uniped States, This intention

|
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the laws and customs of Iamd, Lmnex to Hague Convention of 18
Ostober 1907 providear fTerritory is considered ogcupied when
actually placed under the authority of the hostilé army, ‘The
occupation extemds only to the territery where sueh ruthority
has been cstablished end is in a poeition to assert itself." In
view of thia prewimion, occupetion must be aeccompanied by actual
control of foroes, it doee not aseume legnl effect by mere pro-
clrmation of ocoupation, just as if mere declarstion of blockade
is not enough for maritime blockade without actual control over n
u;rt.uin body of wnter by actual naval force to effectuate the blocke
nda,

The President of the Commission promptly noticed thie
point and took judicial notice after amending the said item teo
read: "That on or about September 15, 1944 a portion of the Pnlau
Islands was ocoupled by the armed forces of the United States ,,..."
We wieh to express our highest respect to the penetrating observn-
tion of the President and the impartial attitude of the Members of
the Commission as indicnted with regerd to this item of the judicial
notice.

In view of the above, there is no room for doubt that
the ebove proclamations became effective, as far as Babelthuap is
copcerned, from the date the said proclemations were made public en
Bebelthuop nfter being occupied by the Lmerican forces, To
interpret the articles of the above mentioned NIMITZ proclomation
ag such, ond in such manner only, is in conformity with the universal
legislative policy of modern civilized countries which prohibits
retronctive criminal legislation, and in harmony with the fundemental
principles of modern interprotative eriminal juri ence which
denies retrospective effect in criminal law, The “onstitution of
the United States specifieally provides in Paragraph Three, Seotion
Nine of Artiele I thereof as follows: "po.,...ex post facto lew shall
be passed,” and in Parngraph One of Section Ten of the same article
as: "state sholl .... pass ,.... no ex post facto law ,,..." and
prohibite any retrosepctive punishment law to be cnacted by the
Federal or State Congrees., Therefore, Lirticle 9 of Froclametion
No, 2 and Article 10 of Froclrmation No, 3 alresdy mentioned are
Empur and natural proviaions materialising this spirit of the
ongtitution of the United States.

dn "ex post focto law", within the meoning of this proe=

‘bibition, is "ome which, in its operntioh, makes that criminal
vhich was not o at the time the action was performed, or which
increases the punishwent, or, in short, which, in relation to the
offense or its comeequenses, alters the sithation of a w‘w to
his disadventage.” In other words, thie prohibition in ‘ou-
etdtution clearly prevents the legislatures from punishing né 2 orime
an’'aet previously committed, nnd which wad or not punishable
when eommdtted, and from aggravating an offonse ously committed,

At this point, an argument may be roised that as regards
offenses such ag muprder, which has hitherto been invariably deemed
as crime in every human society irrespective of time snd place,
there is no unjustice in - retrospeotive effeet o long
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provented, the lowie in force 4n the country,® Charles G, FENWICK,
professor of Bryh Mewr College, in imterpreting this article states

as follows: (C,0, FENWICK, Intarmationel Law, page 486): ®in obli-
grtion is therefore imposéd upon the belligorent to maintsin the
existing civil and criminal law insofér as is compatible with the
existence of a state of war and the eafety of the Army &f ocoupation,
Such new mensures as may be enmacted in mccordance with the necessitie

of the abnormal situation possesses in respect to the eitisen body,

the force of lew gnd their cbservapec may bhe gecured by the impositiop
of such pepolties s the occcupent may doom DECESBOIY....~...The
authority thus sct up by o belligerent in oceupied territory and the
acts done 4n the mrursurnce of it are technieally du&gmt-ed os "Militaxy
Govermment®, vhile the law enforced by the Military “overnment is
known as "Mertial Low,® Professor OPFENHEIM'S interpretetion of the |
same article is as follows: (OPPENHEIM'S International Lew, Veol, II, |
section 169, Rights and Duties in genernl of the Oegupant, peges -
341-342) "Le the occupant actuslly excroises authority and as the
legitimete Covernment is prevented from exercising its authority, the |
occupant pcquircs a temporary right of administretion over the terri-
tory and its inhabltont; and all legitimnte steps he trkes in the
exercise of this right must be rocognized by the legitimate Covermment
after oscupation hos cefsed ,...uvee ooo In oarrying it (the admin-
istretion of the occupent) out the occupant is totelly indcpendant

of the constitution and the lawe of the territory, aince occupation

42 ap aln of worfere, and the and gafety of his forces,
ond ihe purpose of mar, stoand in Lforeground of his » 2nd
Eust be promoted under oll : end conditions. erscore
supplied by Defense Counsel,) . elthough ns regordes the sefety

of his army and the purpose of war the: occupent is vested with an nl=-
most absolute power, as he is not the sovereign of the territory

he has no right to make changee in the law, or in the administration,
other than those which are temporarily necessitatod by his interest
in the maintenance and safety of hig army ond the realisntion of the
purpose of war,"

Though an armed force of & certain country occuples a
portion of the enemy territory, the said territory does not immediafely
beoome the territory of the ocecupant. The question as regards such
territory is ultimntely decided 4in the Pesnee Treaty. This temporary
nature of the occupation imposes various limitations on the exercise
of power on the part of the oseupanmt., The above mentioned artiele (43)
is one of such limitrtions imposed. The objective of the ocecupant
to exeroise its authority is, as evident in the explanations of
FENWICK and OPPENHEIM cited above, to maintain the safoty of its armed
forces and to restore publie order in the oecupied territory and
stability of the livelihood of the inhabitants, Needless to say,
offenses committed prier to the occupatipn, have no beering upon
the safety of the ocoupying power; nor hag it hordly effect upon
the public order of the ocecupied territory and the of the
inhabitants after the cceupation, In view of the above purpoge of
the oceupant to exercise its nuthority in the ocourded territary, there
is not the plightest noccessity of recognising retroagtive effeet in

of erimipal law of the modern ecivilised countries, Therefore, WINTHROP
in his "Militory law and Frecedents®, sepond d::ion section 1906,

gos 837838 statea: - "Jurisdiction - se to time, in offense,

be brought within cognigance of a mil{tory m‘h _
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the war or other exigency outhorising the cxercise of military
er. Thus, a militerv commonder, in the exercise of Military \
Mmmu%ummm
zhatever good intention, m%n
mitied pricr io the ocoupa®Rom.” -

fﬂ) HAS THIS MILIT/RY COMMISSION JURISDICTION OVER THESE
OFFENSEE IN CLSE MLRTILL LLW IS RETROSFECTIVE?

Even if we econcede this point and udﬂtumpaetivu
effect in martial law in the above mentioned NIMITZ tions,

say that even the offenses committed prior to the ocoupation of Babel=
thuap by the imerican forces, are punishable by the Criminal Code of
Japan which was proclsimed to have contimued effect after the occupation
in accordence with the above proclamstions, can this military commission
take cognisance of such offenses? Definitely Notllll!! I shall explain
the reason for this in the following.

Proclamntion No, 3 issued by Ldmirol NIMITZ deals with
Exceptional Military Courts and Article II, Section 3,(b), thercof,
provides: "Exceptionnl Militery Commission shell have jurisdiction
over all offenses under any proclamation, order or regulestion issued
under the authority of my Military Govermment.” This military
| commission, I believe, is cne of such Exceptional Military Courts
' established upon the basis of the Proclemation by Admiral NIMITZ,
The reason for providing in paragraph 3 of the precept for Military
Commisedion as: "The military ccemission shall be competent to try
\ all offemses within the jurisdiction of execptional military courts, |

' ceves” T Beligve, cannot mean anything but this,

Let us, however, lock back and eonsider to whon the above -
metions arc addressed, Noedless to say, thay arc addressed
to the People of the West Caroline Islonde (former Japancse manfated
. Pacific Islands.) Can these accused very well be included among
these inhabitents? These nccused should simultonecusly become
. priscners of var at the time when the above proclamnticns of [dmiral
NIMITZ became effective over Babelthuap, Palau Islands, thot.is
vhen Babelthuap was occupied by the American forces. On the other hand,
the time vhen these acocused were relessed from the stetus of pri-
soners of war, was, when they left Babelthuep for Japan to be
demobilized. That ie, these nccused could not hove possibly aecquired
the status of inhabitents of Bebelthuap Island even for & single
i day, L prisoner of war has a peculinr status undér internatiopal
- law and his legrl status greatly differs from thet of an inhabitant
of an ocoupied territory. The above proclamstions of Admiral NIMITZ
are in no way oblivious of this peculiar status of a prisoner of
war, That is, Proglamation No. 2, Article I", §ection 2 provides:
#Jurisdiction over person ,,... Jurisdiction of every Exceptional
Military Court shall extendto all persons in the area except see.,
(c) priscners of war.®, and clearly scte aside prisoners of war out=
eide of the jurisdiction of the Exceptional Militery Court, Thus,
with respegt to the present case, this Militery Commission as an
Excepti Mlitary Court, has absolutely no jurisdiction over these
s If this M1litary Commission as an Exgeptional M{litary
" try thesa accused vho hod been priséners of war and who
‘having been omoe relesased from the stotus of priscners, were demob-
M-d“hmdﬂm,“;ﬂlhmm of

sity
I
. further serupulously to 3 the precept for
' unmmmm: ﬂmum.mma:um
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Japanese nationals and others who worked with, were employed by or
served in conngotion with the former Japanese Imperial Govermment,™,
because the Exceptional Military Court is aleo vested with jurisdie-
tion eoncerning offenses in viclation of the laws and customs of war,
(Reference above cited proclamation No, 2, Artiecle IT, section 3,(a))
41though likewise referred to in parngraph 3 of the precept, the jur-
iedictiom of the Exceptional Military Court and the jurisdiction over '
0ll Jepanese nationals end others who worked with, were oyed by
or served in conneotion with the former Japenese Imperial Yovernment,
consists of entirely differemt legal sources, The former is bosed
upon the anthority conferred by international lav as ah effect of
ocgupation, and has its source in the Hague Convention respecting
land warfare, artiele 43 end the above NIMITZ proclemations vwhich is
based upon this convention., It may try offenses ageinst the laws

ond customs &f war; but war crimes in this semsc are those committed
under contimued hostilities after the oeccupetion and such var crimes
are cogniszable and punishable in order to secure the safoty of the
oteupation forces, On the other hand, the lotter is the authority
to be sble to try and punish war erimes after the tormimetion of
hostilities, and 4s the authority to try and punish wor ecrimes vwith
noew signification which hone entirely doveloped during the couree of
the present war, It is based upon the Potsdam Declarstion, pnrtiwlnriy
soction 10 thercof, and the United States' Initinl Post-Surrender
Policy for Japan, perticularly Part III Political, b. war criminels
end others, which is based upon the Potsdem Declrration.

Ls we have seen in the above, this Military Commission
has dual character totelly different in nmeture, It seems, therefore,
that this commission operotes in some cases as an Exceptional Militery
Court, and in other as ver crime court of new significetion. Such en
attitude as functioning at first ae a court to try wvar crimce in
the new sense and whon this frils, attempting to operatc ae an
Exceptional Militery Court under the same procedure with regord to
the same accuscd and some offense should not in any way be alloved
in a court of o conatitutional stote.

law i8 n meosure of the wnluc of o person's act; and as its
proper noture it must be constant end inverisble. To try to messurp
a cortain thing with another ruler with a differont unit of mersure
because the first ruler did not produce the desired resulds, should
not be allowed. Lew 18 not such a dubious thing., Herein, lice the
authority of law. lav is not such a convenient and mutable thing.
Herein, we find the stability of law, What would be left, if authority
end stebility were stripped from lew? Justice would no longer exist
there, nnd frivelous opportunism would only proveil,

I am without the slightest doubt thot Honorable FPresident
and the Members of the Commisaion will listen to my foregoing srgument
and decide most impartially, With this, I sh4all conclude my last
argument in this court. .

Since assuming my present duty in Jume of lest yeer, throughe
out the pret tep months, I have by your kind guidence and suggestion
studiod and fomiliarized myself to some axtept with the prosedure
end lare of your oountry, for which I wish %o awveil myself of this

opportunity to express my sincere gretitude,

Respectfully,
KURATL, Hideo.
I hereby certify the f twanty-fouy (24) typewritten
poges, to be a true %mﬂmm
Japanese argument writtep in to the best of wy ty.
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TNAL ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED -~ ICHIKAWA, Tﬂ.lihi; ISHIYAMA, Zenszo;
SUGIMOTO, Takejij; ICHIMITA, Masao; OZAKI, Katesutoshi; TAMAMOTO, Tadashi
and YOKOYAMA, Kyohiss, delivered by defense counsel Mr, SANAGI, SADAMU at
Guam, Marianee Islandeé on 23 March 1948,

i-'--"l-----n---- -------------- -

Your Hensr the President and the Members of the Commission:

| I, as their dafense counsel wish to argus on behalf of Second Lieutenant
ICHIKAWA, Sergeant Major ISHIYAMA, Sergeant Major SUGIMOTO, Sergeant IGHI-
MIYA, Sergeant OZAKI, Sergeant TAMAMOTO, and Sergeant YOKOYAMA, seven of
the twenty acoused charged in thie case,

As a method of procedure it is desired first to discuss the general
facte and the actions of the mccused pertaining to these seven defendants
on the basis of the evidenpe submitted to this court in Fart I, .In Part II
I wish to argue on whether these accused should be convicted according to
the charges and specifications with which they are charged,

EART 1
CHAPTER I Examination of general facts on the basie of evidence,
\ | 1, BSuperior Order relative to the execution,

|

Despite the fact thet the Prosecution witness YAJIMA, Toshihiko denied |
that the order concerning the execution of the missionaries and others was
an order issued by Division Headquarters it may be deduced to have been such
from the clear testimony of the other prosecution witnesses, NAKAMURA, Kagzuo,
|EMIJ, O4ichi, YAMADA, Kiyoshi, TAKAHASHI, Genji, and IMAIZUMI, Keishiro thst
'they heard words to thet effeot from Lieutenant Golepel MIYAZAKT.

Insofar ae it was a superior order thers should be no difference i
:I.n the authoritetivenese of the order whether the man issning it were
Lieutenant Colonel Miyazaki or the Commander-in-Chief of the Divisioen,

|but viewing it from the stendpoint of the recipiemt of the order it is only

! instural te judge it to be of vital importance and sbsolutely irrevocsble rvhen
I,nnnin.g from the Supreme Commander of his area.

Eppecially is this true when the recipients of the order were second
lieutenante and noncommisesioned officers as was the case of these defandents,

2, War pitu & tion at the time of the incident.

At the time of the incidenmt Peleliu Island wae under siege, the main
island of the Palaus was being subjected to severe daily bombings, and a

landing of American forces on Bebelthuap judged imminent, The above may be
gleaned from the testimony of the prosecution witnesses, NAKAMURA, SANO .

TAKAHASHI, In cular, NOKAMURL, in answer to question 125 hu repld

that they were t constantly léidi air raid shelters besause of the |
intensity of the bombing about thet #ime and SLNO, who was in charge of ;
informetion at the Kempeitaf and mminteined constant 1iaison with Division r
Heedquarters testified thet he hgf’reveived ence to the effect thet
United States forces would be on Pelau ) the end of ‘August,




ok t 9

-

It is most nmeatural thet all personnel of the Jopenese forces at thet
me isolated on & solitary island and alienated from all succor and exposed
> severe deily bombings from extremely powerful lmerican forces in very close
proximity, deduced thet they were in a most precerious situstion where their
yery existences were at steke,

3. Reason for the execution.

Tt is not clear what reasons motivated the execution of the missionagjss
nd others, becsuse of the impossibility of securing avidence from those vhe
letarmined the execution,

However, in judging the defondants in this case, what Justifiable rma;u

floclded the suporior officors to do the execution or whother they follgwed
retiopel progodure in cerrying it out do not constitute grave issues., Tho pr
blem is in whet form did these accused heer the reesons for tho execution of
ore gad in whet mannor they were able to assces them on heering them,

eir

The, prosecution witness NLKAMUR., Kazuo, testified thet he wee told by
eutenant Colonel MIYLZLKI that the war siturtion wes urgent, that lnnding of
erican forces faced them, end that missionsries suspectod as sples were to

exsputed, The prosccution witness SLNO, has elso testified that he was to
fdeutetant Colonel MIYLZLKI that in viev of the urgent war situation the
nolicy of execution was an unavoidable militery meosure. Now, could these
subordinates, finding themselves in & wer situation s proviously deseribed
and being told such rensons, have accurrtely essesscd the logel propriety of
e order? It should be said thot it wee most noturel under the circumsteneaos

of thet time thet thoy could not have correctly judﬁid.

| 4. Porsomncl of the Kempeitai who were ordered to participete in the
ioxecution.

. The prosccution witness SLNO has testified in direct examinatisn thet
Tieutenant Colonel MIYLZLKI ot the Kempeitei officers' mecting geve the order)
that all Kempei end awdliary Kempei excluding the duty and sick persennel go
Ito the execution, The prosecution witnoss YLMLDL, Kiyoshi hos testiffed thet
despite the fact thot he was on day duty that dey he me ordered to participetie
4n the exccution because his duty was for the latter half of the night. Lge
[prosecution witness TLKAHLSHI, Genji hes testified thet the omly nersons r ng
et the barrncks during the time of the execution were himself and Superior -
'vate SLGLRE, the doy duty men, end the sick personnel. It is clcer from this
\testimony thet thie execution was on assignment for oll porsonnel of the Kempgis
:tai excluding the minimm of dey duty end sick personne]l and that all Kempeis
lend suxilisry Kempels were made to participate in 1t without sltermetive,

5, Duties mssigned to the defendants, cte.

(a) ICHIKLWL'S duty,

The defendant, ICHIKLWA, in his affidevit hes stetod that on the
morning of the incidept when the officers of the Kempeitei were assembled in
Iieutenant Colonel MIYAZLKI's room he was nssigned the following duties by
MTYLZLKI: nemely, (1) *o prepere two trucks and shovels, (2) to mointein
secreey within the Kempeitei, (3) to subordinate the noncommissioned of ficcrs
of the Generel Affairs Section to the commend of the First Detechment Commandpr,

Both prosecution witnesses NLKZMURL and SANO hove testified that IC
vho was adjutent was ordered to prepare the trucks and materials, ALe is made
clenr by this testimony the dutics essigned to the defendant ICHIKLNL in the
present incident were of an extremely light nature.

. (v) mnmummmfmm-rwm
officers.
of the testipomy showe thet noncommissioned '
mmmnmnm,muzﬁrmw
: *uou(2)*
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NAKLMURL in the presence of Iioutensnt Colonel MIYLZLKI at the generrl assembly
held within the Kempeitai compound en thet day ench to term tith ome . cuwxiliapy
Kempei and take charge of tho oxecution of one missionsry, In short, they wepe

ardored to become members of n firing squed. Under the conditions then pre- - {
valling they could not possibly evede this duty imposed on them.

6. The person in commend at the scene of the exeeution,

It 18 an indisputerble fret becked by the unanimity of the testimony
of many witnesses and the svorn affidrvits of the defendnnts thet ot the scen
rnf the exeoution, Licutonant Colonel MIYLZLKI hod the over »ll commond, nnd
| that First Detachment Commander N/KAMUR! had direct command of the firing

| ﬁqmdl

|

CHLPTER II. The acts of tho vorious defendentes in the present cese.
1, Conocerning defendent ICHIKLWL.

. The witnese who testificd et length on the defendnnt ICHIKLVL tme the
| prosecution witness NLKLMURL, He testified thnt ICHIKLWL hended the shovels
' to the nuxiliery Kempeis vhen members of the Kempeitedi were borrding the trucks,
thnt ICHIFLVWL hnnded the cendles to MIY.ZLKI and SLNO et the scene of the
| execution, ,that recoiving MINLZLKI's pistel ICHIKIWL hended 1t cither to
Warrant Officer NAKIMURL or Sergesant YOKOYLML, thot after MIYLZLKI had told
;E&_ Sn:;u:idu Unit men to shoot, ICHIKLW. said thu same thing to First Ideutemand
LMOTO,

| However, none of the witnceses who took the stand after NLELMURL have
verified his testimony, On the comtrory they have testified to the opposite,
' I bolicve thrt mombers of the commission were fully made awere of seversl

I instonces in his testimony which could not be given credibility. I

| The testimony of NLELMURL that ICHIEIWL hended out shovela to the
|$md11nr5r Kompeis hes been broken dovm by the counter-testimony of the

| proseccution ritness TLKILHESHI given in the course of the dircet examinrtion:
"I did not sec the swdliary Kompols being issucd enything, Thoy wont them-
gclves to the Hemdqunrtora! Barracks to pick up the shovels,®

=

NLKLIMURL's testimony thot ICHIKLW. at the scene of the execution hrndd
| eondles to the Commanding Offider, Lieutenant Colonel MIYLZLKI, end Sccond
Iieutenant SLNO, is not supnorted by SLNO'e tcstimony.

i N.KAMUR!.'s testimony that ICHIKLWL roceived ILieutcnant Colonel MIYLZLKI's
i | | plstol and handed it to cither Warrant Officcr NAKIMUR. or Sergeent YOROYLMA

is completely contreverted by witnessce SLNO end IMLIZUMI, who heve clerrly
stoted thet MIYLZLKI dircetly handed his plstol to "Famn‘h Officer NLKLMURL,
I Tt hes been proved by the clear and scourdte testimomy of TMLIZUMI
thnt NLKIMURL'e testimony to the offect thet ICHIKAWL ropested MIYAZIKI's -
thnt the Sumids Unit soldiors perticipate in the shooting to YLM.MOTO vae in
aerror, In short, IMLIZUMI, has stoted that it was NAKLMURL himself who
himself botweon HIILﬂ'.II m:ld YLMIMOTO and told the lattor cbout the Sumdde t

men taking part in the shooting,

It is plausible and croditeblo to all thet it wme HLKLMURL, thon tho
officor in charge of the shooting, who relayed the ‘erdor of MITAZLKI to YAM.
end it was no plege for ICHIKLWL, who was in no wvay comnccted with tho s »
to opon hie mouth, Baddmthlnbun we heve the testimony of the witness
mmtnrwmﬂmumﬂnat&emﬂmmm.
ovidenoe hres been submittod to show thrt the defendnnt ICHIKLWA a leon
role in the prosemt cesc, On the controry witnesses S84NO, YAMADL, ZUMT
ﬁd@nuwmmmmmmmh&dmnmnm

uuu(3)e
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Plooing togcther the nbove ovidence, the ncte of the defendnnt.ICHIKL
the doy of the incident do not nt nll tronsgress the scope of his duties
oh were given him thnt morning by licutennnt @olonel MIYLZ/KI, and ns
eviously delinected by defense counsel. In short, it is clonr thnt his on)
ty in actunl foet vas the preparction of the trucks,

True, he mny hrve held n light nt the secene of the execution, But it
ot only & neceseory but an ordinary thing that a persen errry n light nt md
eover, his hnving earried o light did not have any direct bearing on this
ion, beenuse according to the dingroms of the scene of the execution
ttoched to the sgorm affidryite of severnl of the defendants the lighte used
o {1lukinste and held clos ¢ firihg squad were held by some other persoms,
eoruse those dirgroms show thot the defendant ICHIEKLWL voe stonding at a place
removed from the firing squad,

2, Concerning the defondant ISHIYLML,

The prosecution witnesscs, SLNO, YLMLD/, and IMLIZUMI, and the defense
titness EZURE nll testified thot ISHIYLM. was at the sceno of the execution but
]hn tostimony as to what he did there could be preduced,

The defondnnt ISHIYLML himsclf hos recognized in his sworn cffidnvit
thet he tre ordered with the chnrge of one missionrry nnd thot he vns abaut to
shoot him, but thet while he vns heeitnting at the point of firing, eomebody
behind him, probebly Iioutcnant Colonel MIYLZLKI shot the viectim., Thore ie no)
evidence to corroborate this, but it is most probrbly & foct thet he wes at
Fll events a member of the firing squed.

| 3. Concerning the defendent SUGIMOTO.

411 the prosecution witnosses vho were members of the Kempeitai have
zuut.ifiﬂd thot the defopdent SUGIMOTO wae at the scene of the exscution and
e himsolf hre attested to the fact in his svorn affidavit, However, he hos
ptated in his evorn offidovit thrt he wre rolieved by o soldier of the Sumdda
Enit before the firing and thrt tho oxeoution onded without his hrving fired.
This hrs been further corrobornted by the defense witness UCHIDL, Fumio in his
rms-mtion.

4+ Tamsorwing the defendnnt ICHIMIYL,

rent to the scene of the expeution ns o member of the firing sqund., Hovewer,
t 18 probebly nlso o foect thot when he tried to fire hie pistol at the cesmapd
from MIYLZLKI, he vme mnnble to do so beecause of some trouble with hie pistol.
ecnuse, conoerming this foct which ICHIMIYL wrotc in his sworn affidevit, the
osecution rifmems, SLNO, remembered in his direet exnminntion thrt TCHINIYA
6 scolded by I&eut.::nnnt Colonel MIYLZ'KI because he had trouble with hie
istol, apd beoguse ho went on to testify that MIYLZLKT shot the yiectim vhe

d thus Pon stewed being shot,

5« “Concerping the @ecfendant OZLKI,

8 thoste previously mentiopmed did go te the scene of the ewecutdon
the firing squad, However, it is not clear vhat he did et the &
£ tion,

6. Concerning the defendont TLMLMOTO,

Hie co-defendntit EZURE stated in his svorn affidavit that TLMLMOTO shot
third vietim; but on the other hand when on the witness stond he testified
t he was not certain vhether TLMAMOTO did shoot, but that he had only a
gue r on, A4lthough it is mot certain thot the defendant -u.n.m dif
e feat thet he wos n member of the firing squad.

U4 )"

't Exnctly ns the evidepce shows, it 18 o fact that the defendont ICHINMIYA

a

-
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7. Cencorning the dofondant YOKORLME.

The defondant YOKOYIML in his sveter affidnvit most fronkly
stated his onn sctions at the secnc of tho cwecution. Mercever he stntod,
Without holding anything back, the fad¢ thnt he ves ordered to take chargd {
' of the exeaution of the womnn, n charge which would be most disliked by
anyone,

Consequently he tried to think of some way of eveding the charge,
but re thare wre no such wny, he nssumed the charge assigned him, Hevevenr,
he has stated in his sworn affidavit thrt his heart wre full, his hond
trembled, and when he fired his shot missed the vietim, This too} is
; probebly true, Thie foct is euprorted by the sworn cffidovit of SUGIMOTO
! wherein it is stoted: "Frem what I herrd Sergernt YOKOYLML wme chorged
. with a native but becnuse he missed the victim; Warrant Officcr NAKAHURL
shot her off," and by prosecution vitness YLMADA who tostified thot the
child token in charge by YOKRYLM. begrn to cry ond thet cither Licutenant
Celonol MIYLZLKI or Warrent Officer NLELMURL shot it,

In putting together all the nbove it may be nssumed as fret thrt
the defendants from ISHIYLW. through YOKOYLMA; six noncommissioned officexs'
wero sach toomed vith one nuxiliary Komped, anssigned one vietim, thrt thnq
verc members of the firing sqund and thnt they went to the scenc of the
execution,

Hewover, the noteorthy rnd importent frot here is thet these
noncommissioned officers were plnced under complete control of Lieutenant
Celencl MIYLZLKI and Iieutcnand NLK/MURL in connection with the execution
and thot their every nct including assombly, organization of teams, arms,
nnd other matorinl token, boarding of trucks, starting, nlighting from
\ trucke, tying up of priscncre, untying of snmo, and thelr shooting wae
carried out in accordonce with orders from cithor MIYLZLKY er NLK/MURL,

This point hee beon clearly Bhéwm by all the evidence submittod
to the cemmisaion and lceve no reom for argument .

| mmx

The seven defendants honded by ICHIKLRA have each of them been chorged
with the firet and sccond epopifientions of Charge I - "Vieclatien of the
I low and custome of wmr," and Charge II = nemoly, “Murder.® Defense
| counsel will argue on vhether the orimes nlloged are applicnble to these
- defendants on the basis of the genmoral focts and nctions of the defendnnts
J discussed in Farv I,

detail, and as these argumonts apply to the clients under my charge, I
desire tg argue in the main on Charge I, "Violation of the low and customs
of war,*

CHLFTER I en Charge I, "Viclation of the law and gustoms of war,"

1. I sincerely doplore the fact thot the missionaries and the fomily
of their employce totelling ten persons in all vere executed in this
ineident without proper procedurs, vhntever good rensons there sy hove
been, Espeolally ne the viectims wore missionnries, n women amd tvo

. children do I express ny deepest sympathy for the vigtime. Because I

|  eonnnet offer countor-evidence, I do not in any way obJoct to the present
execution incident being considered improper and in "viclation of the
1rw ond custome of war,"

|
[ i On Charge II, my m—cuunsefl;, M, KUWLTL,, hos already argued in
' |

"wou(s)"
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However, the problem here is vhother the prisonors arrcyed ot
the bar should be punished for the crime of "violation of the law and {
customs of war.® I, as defonse counsel, aver thot the defendnnts are
"not guilty®™ of tho orime with which they rre charged on the basis of
the speeirl polieies or regulations relative to the punishment of war
crimes * - vhich were wrlid in all nations of the vorld at the time of
this ineident.

| What then is the speoinl policy relative to punishmont of war
erimép?

' Fundrmentally, to kill wes considered one of the mnin meoone of
overcoming the enemy in var and this wos chaorncterized ~gnd*fufthernbore

| by the fact that all such nction wns conducted by orders of cemmanding

| officers, the policy of punishing acts in "violation of #he low rnd customp

, of var® in all nations of the world in the past was different in certnin

| respects from the gemeral civilian legnl outlook., ®omsequently, in

| theorles of international low aond in the military mamuals of the warious |
notions specirl punitive policies and regulrtions were esteblished, Defense
Counsel desires to study here these policies rnd reguletions in effect
nt the time of the incident.

: (e) In the firet place, the following appeers in paregreph 347

| of "The Rules of land Warfore of the War Department of the United States,”

| 1940 edition. "Individunls of the armed forces will not be punished for
these offensee in cese they are committed under the orders or sanction

| of their govermment or cemmenders, The commander ordering the cemmission

A | of such acte, or under whose suthority they sre committed by their troops,

mey be punished by the belligerent into whose hends they mey fall."

(b) The "Digest of International Law" paragraph 575, issued by
the Department of Stote of the United States in 1943 also quoted the nbove,

| (¢) The following paragraph is found under the heoding, "Obedienceé
[ to orders™ in the socond edition of "Militrry law and Procedents®, poge

i 297, published by the "Nor Department of the United Stotes:™ "It may be

| added thet an order which might not be regarded cs legal in time of pence,
| may furnish to the inferior obeying it a mvmplet defence in time of war,
08 being worrrnted by the lswe ond usegee of wor,"

s In short, it is clenrly showm thrt in the United Strtes, with
in the armed forces ns well ns from the International Low viewpoint, an

f act committed by a subordinnte in time of war in pursunnce of superier

| orders, even though it constitutes an illegel act in time of pence, will

|  not be punishable as 2 var crime,

(d) The &merican scholar on Intermational Law, Sheldon Glueck in
his book "Wnr Criminals" writes the following on page 148: *In time of var
a soldier cught to receive greater protection for obeying an order thnt
turns out to be unlawful; for at that time especially during a peried of
active hostilities, the discipline of o soldier should be more severe
becouse failure th tbey an crder on the ground of doubt ns to ite legrlity
could have very serious consequéhoes for an entire company or regiment.”

. (e) Prge 341 of "Manual of Militery Law® 1929 edition of the
British Lrmy reeds os folléws: "It is importent, however, to note thrt
members of the armed forces who commit such vicdations of the recognised
rules of warfrre ns are ordered by their govermment or by their commenderg
are not war and canngt therefore be punished by tha enemy. He
punish the or commnders responsible for such erders if thay -fr
into hie hande.®

"OURE6)*




The same bosk oh page 163 hos the following: "In mpst
cases the faet of the ordors having been given would ne doubt prove the
|| Ainnoeent intent of the suberdinate, and leed in practice to his acquittal \
, onn crirdnel charge "

(£} ™he an‘hority ea Tnternational Iew Oppenheim vrites in his
| lptornatioral Lo" ¥4 ML Eéition, Velume II, pnge 2441"Violation of rules
roghaoéline wrelero are wer onrimes only vhon committed writhoyt an erder
ot the n¢lizigerent guvormmcnt concerned, If members of the armed forces
| emnl violetivad hr order of their government thay ore not war criminals,
ra may not be puuished by the etomy.™

' (g) There are no specific instructions or rcgulations regarding
purizkwert of rar cvimes cither in the Navy or drmy in Jepan. Only,

| in Jopon ebsalrte obcdience to superier orders ot nll times 1s domnnded
| ena Cinuee 57 of "Mldtrry Crlminal Law® states thnt “thosc who do not
obey the orders of thelr suporiors will be severely punished.® It is ruled
thnt the punishment be especially sovere.during viar time,

Plecing togethor the above, it become# clear thrt at the time of
this incident, according to imericon and British Military mamels and
Internetional law thearies, end necdlese to eny nccording te Jrpnnese
Mlitary Criménnal Inw, it vas the paliocy or theo regulation thot sub-
ordinates be not punished for violation of the law and customs of warfare |
vwhen they acted on superier orders,

_ Defense counsel here desires te quste the fallewing noteworthy

| statement made by President of the United States Roosevelt en Octoboer 7,

\ 1942 in connection with the estrblishment of the Unitod Nntions War Crimes
Investigrtion Committea: "It is not the intentien ef this government ar of
the govermments associatod with us to rosort to mass reprisels, It is our |
intention thrt just nnd sure punishment shnll be meted out to the ring-
lenders responsible for the organized murder of thousends of imnocent
peréons and the commission of atrocities whiech have viclated every tenet
of the Christian Faith,"

: Defanse epunsel interprots end firmly beliewts this to metn that tﬂs
suprema policy of the Unitod Nations in the Punishment of War Criminnls
ie te punish the responsible ring-lenders and not te punish all and sundry
cannected with the inicdent, |

s . The defendants in thie case, effieers of very lew rank and nen=
| commissioned officers who were obedient to superior orders nnd vho acted
i | under the nbsolute control of their superiors should not, I bubmi%, be
. | punished for the crimes with which they nre charged even in the light of the
the policy heretafare followed in all notioms and of the intémt of the
Fresident of tho United States, but be released.

2, In reply ts defense counsel's arguments given above, the
may say that superior erders do not constitute o’ defemse Tor violation eof
the law and customs of wer apd that the recognised theory ot present ie
thot everyone be punished. True, the recent military manuale and theeries
of imtornatiennl lav read differently from the awgumiptes presented by.
defense counsel in the fore chapters, end they have been revised te
stote thot even subordinates upder superipr orders be made punishable,

"The Rulos of Lond Warfare® Basis Field Menual FM 27-10 issued by
the War Repartment in 1944, Section 345, reads as fellows: “Individuals
ond organisetions vhe vialate accepted ‘and eustoms of war may be
" punished therefory., However, the faet that the acts complained of vere I|

4 pursuant te order of \ senetiah may be taken
ﬁ:mﬂundmwwﬂﬂlfﬂd
in mitigntisn af punishment,®
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Huwevers thie vos promulgrted on November 15, 1944 by the
Chlaf «f Si.rf of the United States [rmy, as stoted in the same manual
enl artes tofs ineident.

‘i unitance of s clause on punishment of war orimes in
Crourh.in ‘wernation . lew Volume IT wms nleo revised in ite sixth
oo Lultt T il Telloving:

“The fict thot a rule of warfare has been violated in rursurnce
of an ¢rdecr ~f “he belligoront government or of aa imdividuysl bel) igerend
commanc ~ dows ot couprive the act in question of its character as o war
erimej no.vnir wv2d Iv. dn orineiple, confer upon the perpetrntor
immandis iv-a s lwoaent by the injured belligerent,®

dmever, thia revis‘on vas mnde ns statod in the foreword to the
revisol eliu’ odltion in Lujust of 1944, which was iseuced nfter the
autumn of 19... Ia shert, the revised poliey or tenching wee effoctunted
after the prosent incident.

Uz %o the present it has been rnd even now it is unjust to pundsh
en rct which prior to its commdssion wns not officinlly prohibited, be-
cause to do eo would be to change, arbitrarily, the legrl consequences
of an act,

Hence, defensc counsel submits thot it is inapproprinte thnt
the presently valld policy of punishment be applied retroactively and |
1 thrt the defondrnis in this case be punished nceording to that poliocy.

3., Even presuming thot it is decided to epply the presently valid
policy of punishment, r close exnminntion of these policies and ncaodemic
theories will show thrt the acts of the defendante in this cese may be
exemptod from punishment,

(a) The Amerisan "Rules of Lond Varfore® of November 1944 which
Defense Counsel just quoted stntes thet rcts done pursunnt to order of a
superior may be considored for defense.

(b) Oppenheim's International law sixth edition, Clause 253

| on The Flea of Superior Orders contrins the following passage: "Undoubted]ly,

- | 8 court confronted with the plen of superior orders ndduced in juris-

| diction of o vnr crimo is bound to tcke into consideration the foot that

I cbedience to military orders, .not obviously unlavful, is the duty of

' every member of the armed forces rnd thet the latter caonnot, .in condition

of war discipline, be expooted to welgh scrupulously the lcgrl merit of

| the order receivVeodj.sescssssnsssss SUch circumstances are probably in
themselves sufficient to divest the act of the stigma of a war crime.®

Could it be expected thet these noncommissioned officers were
- rble to welgh the legnl merit of the order vhen they werc told by the
' Supreme Commnnder thet the missionorics said to suspectod of ecsplonage
vere to be exoouted undor most adverse war conditions when the londings
of the enemy were oxpected at any time ns related in Chrpter I?

such judgment beccuse of the strict front line discipline and becruse
of the grert pressure of environment in the form of military necessity

i It is not only naturel if these defendnnts were unable to form
under adverse circumstences of war,

L B E q,. .




| (e) The fellowing passege may be found in the chapter titled

| "The Low of Ipd#vidual Reeponsibility" of the opening stotement fer the
| United States of Lmerice by Robert H., JLCKSON, Chief Ceunsel for the '
| United States nt the Prlace of Justice, Nuremberg, Germany, Nevember 21,

I 1945, reprinted in Robert H, JACKSON's beek, "The Nuremberg Case." !

I "esvs.That one who has cemmdtted criminnl met may not take refuge i
| in superior orders....." "Of course, we do not nrgue that the circumstance
under which one cemmits an act should be disregerded in judging its legnl
effeot. L consoripted privete en a firing sguad cannst expect to hold en
inquest on the vnlidity of the exseution.”

The six defendanta in this erse from ISHIYIM. to YOKOYAML
ware members of tho firing squrd, Lnd just se the cvidence shews they
|| were under the chasolute control of Colonel MIYLZLKI, and granted no margin
| for individusl diseretien, and mrde to mrve ond nct completely like mochings,
| Even Mr, Robert JLCKSON docs not meintein thet individual responsibility
be pursued nnd made punisheble for r momber of r firing equed placed under
circumstances such as prevailed in this ineident,

: Defense counsel is convinced thnt full rnd tvlec conslderction
of the President and Members of the Commission be grontcd his contention
that - through the arguments given esbove the seven defondants herded by
\ | ICHIELVL should not be punished for "Violotion of the law and customs
of war® with which they ecre charged in Charge I.

CHLPTER II. Charge II On the crime of "murder”.
The defendonte were further indicted in Charge IT with "Violation

of Clause 199 of the Criminn] Code of Japan®™ for their nct of murdering
ten victinms,

Hovever, my oco-counsel, Mr, KUWLTL has argued on Charge II in
deteil and e these arguments apply as they stond to the seven defendnnts
headed by ICHIKLWL, defense counsel discovering no need to add anything
furthor on this count will be omitted.

f CONCLUSTON: |

In closing, defense counscl, summing up important points in the | .
foregoing deelres to stress the following tve points, |

(1) Tt was a principle vnlid in all notions at the time of this
incident thrt even if an not of a member of the armed forces were in
violntion of recognised rules of warfare, if such were committed in .
pursunnce of superior orders it was not punishable by the enemy belligerent. |
Especinlly, the defendants in this cose 1ere trught only the precept thrt
thoy would be soverely punished if they did not obey euperior orders
in the Jopnnese [rmy Criminal law and did not know let alone trught
thrt they would be punished for ncte of oboylng superior orders, It is
not appropriate that these ignoront defendnnts be punished in accordeance
with a principle accepted efter the frct. |

"guu(9)*
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ARCUMENT FOR THE DEFENSE {
.In the case of YAMAMOTO, Kasuharu, et nls.
Delivered by

Mr, Takami Karasawa

May it please the commission:

I will deliver this argumeft {n behalf of eight aceused, namely,
FUJITANI, Yoshio; KAWAGUCHI, :ﬁ;;%; ANDO, Fukuichi; HIDAKA, Kinnosuke; ITO;
Mitsuyukd; NAKAMURA, Jiro; IW » Harukiehi, nnd OKAMURA, Gdntare, who
are among the twenty accused ih the case of YAMAMOTO, Kaguharu, et als,
charged with participating in the exeocution of the missiomries,

The judge advocate has maintainod and attempted to prove that all of
these eight accused were proseAt at the scene of the exeoution in this case,
However, as to some of these ndcused, the Judge advocate failed even to
prove that they were at the scene of the execution, while as to others he
. failed to prove that they took any part in the execution, remdering them
guilty in this case,

I shall argue first in behalf of each of these nccused and then for al)
of them together,

1. In behalf of FUJITANI, Yeshio:

With the proof of the prosecution as presented it is totally vague and |
uncertain vhat part the acecused Fajitani played in this ease,

| That night when the alleged erime was committed Fujitani remained in
the Kempeitai and was not present at the sdene of the exooution,

| The only evidence produced by the prosecution, which showed that the
accused Fujitani was then at the secene of the exeqution, was the tes

of witness Nokamura, Kaguo, Other than this, the same thing was indicated
1% the dingram of co-defondant Esure's confoasion and wap stated in the
confession of co-defendant Ichikawa, Co-defendant Epure, however, clearly
denied this point when he tock the witness stand in his own behalf, Ho
referred to the circumstances under which he wrote down the name of Fuji-

f tani in the dingram, and testified that the entry was not based upon his owm
memory,

Them hov aboat the confession of eo-defepdant Ishikawa? He had no
chance to testify gs to this point, ﬂ-umﬂlgmkm, a confession is
admissible as evidenge so far as it concerns relating te the
party who wrote it, and it has boen frequently argued t o confession
vhich relates to the matter of other persons is not nissible as evidence,
Therefore, I do not, iptend to argue further as regards point,

» We will notice
J a tendenoy that he is endeavering to aveid tho regponsibility which K-
take
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His testimonv which most eleaply shows thip tepdeney is that part econ-
perning the preparation of the execution, that coneerning the command ant
the scene of the execution, and that concerning the names of those who were
at the scene. According to his testimony, he nomed eight Kempeis and
assistant Kempeis who were vresant at the scene of the erecution, namely
Jugimoto, Iohimiyn, Tamamoto, Yckoyama, Eszure, Fujitani, Kawaguchi and Okn-
mura.,

Among these eight persons, only Ichimiyn and Olknmura belonged to his
detachment and mere his direct subordinates. The others, Sugimoto, Yoko-
yoma, Egure, Tamamoto, and Fujitani, were attached te the headquarters; and
Kamaguchi, according to his recollection, already had returned to the Sum-
ida Unit at that time,

With regard to our normal rotentiveness, our memory is clearer about
those nith whom we have special relation than toward those who were not 8o
related. Nakamura, homever, rocollected the heoadquarters personncl better
than his own subordinates, When we ecompare this matter with the other part
of his testimony, we shall eqaily find out that his testimony i1s insredible,
Therefore, we need not give mugh veight to his testimony in vhich ho named
the nccused Fujitani as a membey of headquarters,

Thus we find that there is no evidence,showing the accused Fujitand
was present at the scene of the exocutjon that day, Rather, it is clear
that he was not at the scene, '

Let us further examine this point in connection with the testimeny of
prosecution witness Imaizumi, On direct examination of the judge advocate,
he named the persons present at each of the three agsemblies, and yet he
did not name Fujitani as being present at either of these three assemblies,
Beside#, vhon he was eross-examinod by the ncoused, he testified concerning
Fujitani as follows:

"Q. Was Fujitani, who was Second Lieutenant Ichiknwa's orderly, not on one
of the teams?

A, I think ho was not assigned to a team,

Qy Do you know why Fujitani was not assigned to a team?

A, As I recall, I beliove the reason for this mas because he mas not at
the scene,

Q. Do you know why he was not at the sceno?

4., As I recall, he had just returned frem the hospital,”

This testimony of Imaisumi is almost decisive evidence concerning the
acoused Fujitani, and there 1s ne other evidence which tends to disprove

Other evidence worthy of attention is the testimony of witness Yamodn,
He testified that he saw Pujitani at the first asscmbly, but that he had -
no recollection of seeing him at the secene of the execution, If Fujitani
had beon presont at the scene of the execution, Yamada should have remes -
bered i1t, So the testimony that he does not recall seeing him at the scem
may allow us to conelude that Fujitani was not at the scene, Both Sano
and Takahashi, besides the above testimony, testified that they had no

recollection concerping Fujitand,
In view of the above evidence, it is an uncontradicted fact that Fuji-

w(2).




tani did not papticipate in the execution. Ewen if we nssume that Fujitani
was at the scene, his mere presence at the scone cannot be suffioient '
ground to hold Mm oriminally responsible, Even if we accept the tostikony
of Nakamura, Fujitani*s mere presence at the scepe does not lead to the goh
clusion that he was a member of the exeocution party. Therefore, it is ene
tirely useless to create such an nssumption agninst the accused FPujitani,

Fujitani, who did not even go to the scene of the execution, should be
acquitted of both Charge I and Charge II,

2. In behalf of the accused KAWAGUCHI, Wnhed:

Fhethey the accused Kawaguchi was a member of the South Sens Kempedtai
at the time of the incident, or was he nresent at the scene as o member of
the Sumida Unit is not an important queation for the nccused Kawaguchi him-
self, So I shall only point out that he has stated inm his confession that
he was then attached to the Kempeitai and went to the scene as the orderly
of Captain Nakamura according to his orders., The material question as re=
gards Kawaguchi is vhat part he played at the scene of the execution,

In his own confession, which was introdueed into ev¥dence by the prosc-

cutien, he t.aitlfie&, "I was holding a candle about soven meters behind amd
in the ﬂant-ar. But there is no other fact with which Kawnguchi might be

charged.

I have no intention to controvert the fact that Kanaguchi was present
at the scene of the execution, helding a2 candle, We must consider, homeves,
whether such an act can be so important as to constitute a crime, nnd nlso
rhat intent or cegnisance Kawaguchi had when he was holding the candle,

The latter is especinlly worth our careful examination, In order te
impose n eriminal rcasponsibility upen an individunl, it is necessary that
through intent he sought to effect an occurance of o certain punishable
result and that a certain act is done according to such intent,

It is & vory superficial conclusion to say that Kawaguchi was assiste
ing the murder becausc he was holding a candle,

According to Kawaguchi's own understanding, it was only natural for
him to hold a candle in a dark night, Aceording to his confession, since
he mas standing about seven metors behind, we can not interpref his act
evidently made theperformance of the nnoution pessible by what he did,

If Kawaguchi desifed to assist the performance of the execution by the
light of his oandle, he would have held the light right beside the versons
who fired, but the fact that he wns standing seven meters n to the rear
clearly shows that he had no intention of assisting the execution, Thus it
is impossible to immedirtely determine that he had the intent to assist 4n
the exccution from the fact that he was holding o lighted candle, In the
confession of his co-defendant Sugimoto, it is stated that everyone was
furnished a candle. If that is truo, it is impogsiblo to maintain that
Kawaguchi was assisting the execution omly bocause he was holding o coandle,
As a matter of fact, how much illumipating effect has n faint light of a
candle in an open ulenriu'l' From oyr ¢ommon sense and ordinary experienoce,
vwe can not coneeive that such light from a candle made it easier to perform
the exeoution,




agsist the oxeoution rhen he held that candle and that this candle light
did not moke tho porformance of the oxecution ensler at all, I request
that the accused Kawaguchi be found not guilty to both Charge I ond II.

that the aceused Ando was present at the scone of the exccution., "itncass
Takahashi only testificd that he recalled Ande boing present nt the second
assembly, the assembly on the road, and there is mo othor evidenee ot all,
Without proving whether Ando was presont at tho sccne of the exocution, he:
can the judge advoeate allego that he is guilty in this oase? Besides,
ritness Imnizumi testified, "I have a rocollection that I sar him somo=-
whore," but "At the scone I have no definite recolloction,” Furthormore,
witness Yomda, vhon he wns erosseexamined by the defense s to r-hothor
Ando was at tho scene, ansmered that he had no racolleotion,

that the accused Apdo rns nt the sceno,

their own behalf, testified that Ando mas nt the scene, I think it is
entirely up to the commission to oconsider this testimony and deecide which
ia trus,

is still impossible to deotermine thot he is guilty in this ecase on acecount
of his prescnce. Thore is ng evidence to shon thet he was o member of the
execution party in this case, There is no cvidence edthor to shorw thnt
Ando did any aect at tho sceno to nssief tho execution, The judge advoeate,
cannot maintain that he has oroyed the guilt of the accusod Ando beyond a
reasonable doubt,

a precedent that more presence at the scone of the execution does not im-
pose crimina' rosponsibility upon a persén, To nssume that Ando vas n
member of the oxecutdon party is agninst the rules of evidence and is not
permissible,

responsible for the execution in this cnse,

II.

and OKAMURA, Gintaro,

cal and there is no hocessity to argue seoarctely, I vill argue in bohalf
of them en bloo,

assigned to teams with Kempoi noncommissioned officers, Therefore, I shall
neifher argue nor opoose this point. -

In behalf of the nccused Kavaguehi, I hold that he had no intention to

3+ In behalf of the accused ANDO, Fukuighi:

There 18 not a single bit of ovidence of the nreseoution vhich shews

Aocording to tho above cited ovidenco, it is impossible to dotormine

Hevever, defense witnesscs Uchidn and Emure nho took the stand in '* ?

But, ovon if we assume that Ando mas at the sceno of the exeecution, it

Mony eonscs tricd in this court bofore, we may say, have established

Therofore, thero is no ground that tho accused Ando must be eriminally
I hold, in behalf of him, that ho 4s not guilty of both Charge I 2nd
4. In behalf of HIDAKA, Kinnosuke; IT0, Mitsuyuld; NAKAMURA, Jiro,

Sinco the facts ocpecerning the above four cocused are entirely identi.

All of thege four accused stated in their confosgions that they rore
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Non, how were those aceused assigned to teams? This question is cloar,
ly cnsworcd by the testimony of prosccution's ritnessos and tho confossions
of those acoused themsolves., But as to vhether the teams were organised
vhen thoy departed from the Kempeital, or vhen thoy arrived nt the seone
of tho execution, this tostimony and their confessions are not nlmways iden-
tical, HNevertheloss, it is uncontraditted that these teams were formed by
the direct erders and commond of Dotaschment Commander, Captain Naknmurn,

That is to say, that all of theso accused were not teamed up volunt e
ily, but were toamed up entirely by the will of their superior officers.
4is for thomsolvos, this will of the officer w=as beyond their econtrol, Can
a mattor which is beyond one's control make one eriminally linble?

As o mattor of faoot, can pe find any substantial difference botween
those four accuscd and mere ookers? If these nccused hnd entered the
teams of their ovn accord in ordor to perform the execution, thon they
should be criminnlly responsible, In such caso thoy nould he entirely
difforent from mled onlookers, Homever, so far a8 thesc accusell are cone
cornod, there is no substantial difforontiation between the two,

Ihn many previous trianl precise distinctions were made betrwecn snocta-
tors and those who were given orders, and the latter only were held orimi-
nally reeponsible for what they did, These nrecedents, I believe, are not
without eritieism, I rather think that even those who cccident=lly were
ordered to participate should be free from tho ecriminal responsibility, as
those who attended as spectators,

If we are held criminclly responsible for incidents caused by acei-
dental events which me can not cnticipnte or prevent to occur, it will be
impoasible for us to lead n neseceful socinl 1life even for 2 single day.

The positions of thesc four sccused are like those of Sano, Tamanod,
Imaigumd, ote.; the oply differcnce is coused by the intorposition of a
will of another person, th-t is the order of Captain Nakamura, which hap-
pened to fall upon these accused, The sceking of eriminnl responsibility
aceording to such aceidental eircumstancos doeos not contribute to the
roalisation of justice, C:n there be any substontinl ground te detormine
the guilt of these four oarticular accused? If a person who was a momber
of a team did o certain net nt the scohe to asaist the consummation of the
execution, he can bo separatod from tho othcrs in order to be accused of
his criminal responsibility. However, the ovidonec introduced in this
court has nevor shown that thoy did sueh apoeific sects,

But the point we must note is tho fact that co-defondnnt Yokoynma has
statod in his confession ns follows: "I believe it may hawe have been
Okomura who shot the child," This, hewevor,; is moroly Yokoyama's conjec=
ture and not his definite rocolloetion. On the other hand, Okamarn states
in his omn confcssion: "I did not shoot," A confossiom, as I have a
stated, is compotont covidence only to the party who mode it, nnd cannot
be binding upon another person unlcss therc is conspiracy, Therefore, we
must give moro waight to Okonmura's own cénfession with regord to mattere
pertaining to hinm,

Their boing members of the teams, too, can not be a ground for their
punishment, The judge advocate may insist that those membars of the toams,
althcugh they did nothing at the seelle, are responsible for the execution,
since the terms had a duty to exoouto, that they were to porform the execu-
tion if their partners had failed %o do 1it, and that both of the members

v (5)"
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of the teams are collectively responsible for the exocution, Of courso

I am not denying that such nspect is not fonsiblo, But if such a viow ia
takon, the rosponsible persons were not only the members of these teams but
overy person vho nas present nt the sccne,

For the above montioned roasocn, I beligve that there is no ground to
ronder these four adsistant Kempeis particularly punishable compared with
tho others,

Thoso acgused are all in their tventies and are oromising young men,
All four mere born in farming villrges and wore brought up under simple and
humble environmentsy Thoy are now in loading positions in ench of their .
villoges,

not

Truc justice is/roalized by pointing out a trifling fault and imposing
upon them confinements of many years, I beg youreohsideration and th-t you
nill send ther homoc ns soon as possible and give them a chance to contrie
bute to the dovelopmont of agricultutre in post+ar Japan.

5, In behalf of IWAMOT®, Horukichi:

There has becn no evidence introducod in this court that the accuscd
Ivamoto narticipatod 'in the exocution of the missionaries ns a mombor of
the execcution party, Although the statements of each necused were intyos
duced into evidence, that of the acocused Iwamoto was not,

From tho hoginhing of the investigation, he hns maintained throughout
that he did neither partdeipato in the allegod erime in this casc mor go
to tho scene of the oxccution., In spitc of that, he has been eharged as
an accused in this ease, The importnnt reason for his indictment is, a8 I
bolieve, that he could not give a ecloar oxnlanaticn as to vhy he did not go
to the seecnc of tho exeeution and whot ho mas doing during that time,

Ameng many dofendants, no onc has so peor o remofy a8 Iwamoto, As he
graduntod only from grammer pohool nnd had no suffigiont oducation, it is
quite difficult for him to explain what had havpened in Scptember, 1944,
to convinpe anybody, Thus, he did not desire to takb tho witness stand,

Howewer, prosccution's #iitncsscs, Yomeda and Imaisumi, and dofense
vitness Esurc tostifiod that Iwamoto vas mroscnt ot tho secno of the exeocu-
tion, I think it 4s ontircly up to the commission whothor or not this tes~
timony is to bo givon weight,

The argument is, 28 I mentionod beforc, that a meroc presence at the
scene of the execcutdon is not sufficlent to find him guilty, Even if we
assume that Imamote was at thoe scone of the execution, wo can not determipe
that ho nided in the porformance of the execution or he did nothing at all,
It is an established prineiple in the criminal oases of any.country that a
crimincl ense can not be tried by conjecture or inference, and there is no
Judicial preccdent in the history of the Judieig]l system of any cogntry
that a person mas ounished by such copjogture of inference. Inference
or conjecture is pormissible only within a very steict limitation, ns is
provided in Nawvnl Courts and Boards, Thorefore, if Inomoto was prescnt ‘ot
the sconpe of the execution, no ehc can dotorrine that ho ras a mombor of
the execution party,
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At lbawt, the judge advocate will be unable to claim that he has proved {
the guilt of the accused Iwamoto beyond reasonable doubt, I firmly believe
that Iwamoto in ¢his case ean mot be found guilty by such vagué evidence.

I hold, therefore, that Iwamoto is not guilty of Charge I and II,

I have argued ip the above in behalf of each of the aceused specifical-
1y; I will now cohtinue to argue in behalf of all the acecused, en bleec, who
were present at tbe scene of the execution, particularly these eight defens
dants,

The evidemce showed that this exeoutien was carried out under the
direct command of Colonel Miyasaki, the comranding officer of the South Sens
Military Police, by orders of 1jth Division Headquarters, and we need not
argue any further coneerning that peoint,

It is also uacontradicted that all of these eight accused, except
Kawaguchi, wers low-ranking auxiliary Kempeis, attached to the Kempeitai
| under the command of Oolomel Miyazaki, Now, the mere rresence of these lowe
| ranking assistant Kempedis at the scebe of the execution im accordance with
the orders of their immediate superiocr, Commanding Officer Miyasaki, is it
suffieient to eonstitute n erime? In other words, are soldiers whe have
committed unlawful aets, egpecially criminal acts, in accordance with
orders of their superior, responsible fis war criminnls?

Different views are taken of this problem in legislation of various
nations, and this problem is still a subject of discussion among scholars
\ of jurisprudence, I have po time to enumerate this legislation and the
theoriep right now, and examine and cfitieize them, but I believe these
views onn be claassified in three categories: |

According to the first view, orders of superiors are absolutely bind-
ing on their subordinates, and whenever subordinates receive their orders
they must obey them, but the subordimates who acted in accordance with
orders of their superiors are never held respensible for what they did.

An express provision concerning this point is Article 366 of Rules of
Land Warfare, 1914, which reads:

"Individuals of the armed forses will not be punished for these offens
ses in case they are committed under the orders or sanction of their govern+
ment or commanders, The gommanders ordering the sommission of such acts,

f or under whose authority they are committed I:l; their troops, may be punished

. by the belligerent into whose hands they may all,"”

If, however, accerding to this view, subordimates are not absolutely
responsible for their acts committed in aceerdance with orders of their
superiors, there arises a danger that they will violate laws and customs
of way without hesitation, thus tepding to ipcrease the possibility of
war grimes, The officers who gawe such orders are, of course, responsible
and will be punished when they arp held captive by the belligerent,
Superior officers, however, seldom have direct participation in battles,
so still less is tho chanece of their sapture., Therefore, there is little
actual vossibdlity to accuse and punish these suporiors, especially,

' rankipng offieers. If subordinates have no responsibility, both they
eir officers will not be punished after all, Thus the lams and customs
war will easily be viclated, and it will beeome diffieult to maintain
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striet observatiod of the intornational law in time of war,

Therofore, if war crimes are to be punished at all, this first view
can not be adopted,

The seeond vidw is entirely different from the first ome, that is,
subordinantes have the right duty to examine ordars of their superiors
and that they have no obligatidn to obey unlawful orders, As the natural
donolusion of this theory, suberdinates who obeyed uilawful orders of his
superiors, are always respohsible for their act. However, if subordinates
oan always refuse to obey orders because of their opinien and interpreta-
tion gained from examining his superior's orders, the effect of order will
be lost, Undubitably, the admihistrotive chain of commatd will be dise
ordered and normal performance of administration will not be achieved,
%ig@ul?!.lar is this true in the military where diseipline is regarded as its
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Therefore this ¥iow too, is not. appropriate,

In order to aveid improper results eaused by the above two views, we
hnve a third theory. According to this theory a superior order is not
binding upon the subordinates if its defect is so apparont that a man of
ordinary sense nnd understanding would know ns socns as he heard the order
read or given that it was illegal, If an order has n grave and anparent
illegality on its face, a subordinate receiving such an order may refuse
to obey it according to his own discretion, But if its illegality is not
apparent on its face, it is binding on the subordinate who has then no
right to judge the illegality, and cannot refuse it, Then to what extent
must an order be illegal in order for it to be refused by ansubordinate?
If the illegality can be understood by a man of crdinary sense and undere

| standing he can refuse the order, while if he recognizes it to be legal he

should obey it,

Clark and Marshall, A Treatise on the Law of Crimes, reads: "Section
71. Compulsion or Command,.. An order given by an officer to his private,
which does not expressly and clearly show on its face its own illegality,
the soldier is entitled to cbey and such order is his full protection,"

Section 72, 26 American Jurisprudence, Homicide, provides: "Persons
in Military or Naval Service, - Persons in the military or maval service
of a nation, when acting in the line of their duty, are goverhed by very
different rules from those governing citisens generally, This is true with
respect to the erime predicable of hemicide, The private soldier may rely
on the fact that he 1s acting pursuant to the orders of a superior officer,
But an order which is illegal itself, and not justified by the rules and
usages of war, or which is in its substance, clearly illagal; go that o mar
Bl B AT [deta, A B §ole) ] ol RO B il [ -.‘.-.

bection for a

may be chargel has all the ingred

», Frovided the act with

ients in it which may be necessary to constitute the same a crime in law,”

36 American Jurisprudence, Mildtary, Section 123, states: "Acte done
purspant to Orders. 4 In oriminal prossoution for acts done in obedience to
orders of a superior offiser the same rule is applied as in a civil sult for
damage for such acts, and an order given by a military officer to a sub=
ordinate officer or private soldier should be obeyed by the subordinate and
will fully protect him in a eriminal presecution, unless the illegality of
such order is so clearly shown on its face that a man of ordinary sense and
understanding would have known when he heard it read or given that it was
illegal. In this regard a subordinate standsin different position from his
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superior when he obeys, and may bo absolved from liability for executing an
order which it was eriminal to give."

Oppenheim says in Section 253 of his International Law, Vol, 2: "The
fact that a rule of warfare has been violated in pursuance of an order of
the belligerent government or of an individual belligerent commander doem
not deprive the act in question of its character as a war erime; neither
does it, in prineciple, confer upon the perpetrator immunity from punishment
by the injured belligerent., A different viem has occasionnlly been ndopted
in military menmals and by writers, but it difficult to regard it as ex=
pressing a sound logal principle, Undoubtedly, a court eonfronted with the
plea of superior orders adduced in justifieation of n war érime is bound to
take into consideration the fact that obedience to military orders, not
obviously unlanful, is the duty of every member of the armed forces nnd
that the latter cannot, in conditions of wmar diseipline, be expected to
weigh scrupulously the lognl merits of the order received; that rules of
marfare are often controversial; and that an act otherwise amounting to
a war erime may have beon executed in obedionce to orders conceived as o
measure of reprisal., Such cireumstances are probably in themselves suf=
ficient to divest the act of the stigma of a mar crime,."

In short, according to the various quotations I have cited above,
an order which is so clearly illegal on its frece that a man of
sonse and understanding would have known its illogality should not be
obeyed. If a subordinate obeys such an order he should take resnonsibility
for what he did,

It seems to me thot the third view is the prevailing one with regards
to the binding of superior orders toward the subordinates,

The American Rule of Land Warfore, 1914, has lately been revised by
Chief of Staff Marshall, and is now as follovs:

"Individunls and organizations vho violated laws and customs of war
may be punished therefor. Homever, the fact that the ncts complained of
were done pursuant te order of a superior or govermment sanction may be
taken into considerztion in determingng culpability either by way of de-
fense or in mitigntion of punishment, The perscn giving such orders may
alsc be punished.,”

I think this is due to the transition of thought regards this point,

Not only this military commission but war eriminnl courts in general
have taken the view that orders of superiors can not be a defense, but '
that it may be considered in mitigation of punishment, as Article 6 of
the Charter of International Military Tribumal for the Far Bast reads:
"Neither the offiecial pcsition, at any time, of an ndeused, nor the fact,
that an acocused asted pursuant to order of his govermment or of a superior
shall, of itself, be sufficient to free such nccused from responsibility
for any crime with which he is charged, but such circumstances may be con-
sidered in mitigation of punishment if the Tribunal determines that justie
so roquires,”

Thon, does this provision apply the secord vien, instead of the
present sstablished nrineiple, the third view?

To this question, mc answer 'in the negative, We should %ike notioce
of the words "of itself" found in this provision, That an accused acted
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pursuant to order of a superior shall not, of itself, be sufficient to
free such accused from reaponsibility for any erime with which he is
charged means that a mere pleading cf an accused that he is not responsible
boecause he aeted pursunnt to orders of his superior ean not be an excuse,
That is to say, this provision is after all a negation of the first view
cited above, Therefore, this provision is not inconeistont with tho assere
tion of Kenny in his Outline of Criminal Law (Ibid., 15th ed. 1936 p, 8),
"If an accused believes by mistnke that an illegal order is legnl, and if
there is reasonabbe grounds for his belief, he is free from responsibility’

The Nuremberg Internationnl Military Tribumal, upon its decision set
forth a remarkable interprotation of Article B of tho Charter, "The fact
that the defendant neted pursuant to order ef his govermment or cf a sup~
ericr shall nct free him from rosponsibility, but may be considered in mitis
gation of punishment." It announced, "The provisions of this charter are
in conformity with the laws of all nations, That a scldier was ordered to
kill or torture in violation of tho intermational law of war has never
been reccgnised as a defense to such nots of Brutality, though, as the
Charter here provides, the crder may be urged in mitigation of the punish-
ment, The true test, whioh.is found in varying degreocs in the oriminanl law
of most naticns, is not the existence of the crder, but vhether meral
choice wns in faet possible,”

According to this view, a subordinate soldier who acted in obedicnce
to absolute orders cf his superior and who eoculd not act ctherwise in view
of varicus circumstances at that time is not responsible for what he did,
Because the moral choice for him to take other actiocns are in fact impos-
sible and no cne can expeet him to act ctherwise,

I believe that the meaning of Article 6, Charter cf the Intermational
Military Tribunnl for the Far East, that an order of superior officer can
not be defense, is as follows:

If there 1s o possibility that a subordinate can criticise and judge
the order of his superior, it can not be his protecticn, But if there is
no room for moral cholce of the crder given tc the soldier, the crder
operatos as the defense of the accused and will free him from guilt,

Now, let us lock back to this case, As Nakamura, Kasgd; Sano, Giichd;
and many other witnosses testified, it is uncontradieted that the orime in
this case wns committed by orders of, and under the direct command and
supervision of, Colonel Miynsaki, the commanding officer of the South Seas
Kempeitai, who was the superior officer of the accused,

In addition to that, hovw were the battle conditicns cn Palau Islands,
at the time of the commission of the crime in this case, namely on or
about 18 Soptember, 19447

At that time, the Japanese foroes on Saipan and Tinian were annihilae
ted, and the outleoock of the battle in tho Middle Pacific became unfavess
able for Japan day by day. Peleliu Island, which is one of the Palaug,
had already been invaded by the American forces. American planes con
ly bombed these islands day ond night; shortoge of provisions and
tion became serious; communications to and from Japan were completely cht




O ¢ t 3

off. On Babelthuap, thesc accused were possessed with fear and dospera-
tion, Morning found them still alive but who could forotell that death
rould not be their fate before night., The ccnditicns mere such.

These ciroumstances nro fully deseribed in the testimony of prosecu=
tion's witnesses, Nokamura, Kamuo and Sano, Giichi, Especially, witness
Nekamura, vhen he was cross-oxamined by the defense vhat wns the battle
conditicn at that time, testified: (Answer to Q. 125) "The nir raids were
very furious and we were always in the air raid shelter, We only came out
for a 1ittle while to eat, but even nt these times we were raided, sc most
of the time ve were in the air raid shelter. I heard from Commanding Offi-
cer Miyasaki that the forces on other islands mere completely wiped out,
so as Commanding Officer Miyazaki snid, I felt that the American forees
would land here in the near future,®

Under such critical battle conditions, these accused were tcld by
Commonding Officer Miynzaki that the vietims in this casa nere spy sus-
pects. The background of this incident mas such vhen the commanding of fi-
cor, Miynsaki, gave orders tc the accused in this case that these missicn-
aries were to be exccuted by orders of Division Hendquarters.

In view of these variocus circumstances, me must make an examination
to see if there mas any fault on the part of these accused vhen they
judged that the orders of Commanding Officer Miyazaki were legeal,

Wle must alsc make an oxamination to see if there was any peossibility
of meral chelce of sush crders given to these nccused,

Commanding Officer Miyasaki stated in an address that the crders for
the executicn originnted from Division Headquarters,

The accused in this case, especially low ranking noncommissioned offi-
cers and nuxilisry Kempeis, were hardly in a position toc search for any
ground for the legnlity of the orders, the orders given by Division Heads
quarters, These aeccused eculd not have knomn under vhat eircumstances
the Army Headquarters of the Middle Pacific Command issued such orders,
Besides, this division order was given to them by Commending Officer Miyae
soki, whom they hod respected and trusted as their immediate superior.
Furthermore, the above mentionod urgent battle condition and the fact that
they were apy suspects tended to justify the orders, It is dlmost impcs-
sible that there was any blameworthy mistake on the part of these accused
when they believed that there was nc grave and clear illegality on thc
face c¢f these orders and cbeyed them,

And once again, when they were given these orders for the exesution
by Commanding Officer Miyasaki, and were teold the detailed instructions
from Detachment Commander Nakamura, they had no alternative of moral
choice in regard to these orders,

I beliewe ]FD? have understcod that it was quite impossiblc to oxpept
these accused to find ocut any clear, grave illegality in the exocution
orders and refuse to cbey them, No one can think that justice can be
roalised by foreing the impessible upon a person.

For the yeascns I have mentiomed above, I maintain that the accused
had no eriminal responsibility so that they sheuld bo nequitted,

In conclusion:

Tho judge advceate could not prove the guilt of each aceused beyond
reasonable doubt, and it was oven made clear that some of the ncoused did
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not ge to the scene of the execution.

The other acoused who were mnde to gc to the scene cf the executibn
and who were teamed wp had nct any means tc resist absolute crdefs of
their superior, MWe cannot therefore imposc eriminal responsibility of
this incident upon these defendnnts.

Having viewed this cnse, I Bolicve it is o travesty cn the-name of
war erimes trial to prosecute £hese auxiliary Kempeis For priminal respon-
gibility boecause cf the exoccution,

The judge ndvcea'e has often said thnt these persons should be pund
ished in crder to roalige justice. But does justice require 2 perscn te

| do impossible things? I do not Selieve so, The quality of justice com=

sists of the fact that it can be dene and vracticed by any ordinary -:veﬂr-m:.'-l:t1Ir
That is to say, the limit of requirement of justice is equal to that of
human capacity. Then what is the standard limit of his capacity? I think
there may be some differcnce acecording to customs, habits, educaticn, and
civilisntion of varicus countries,

No one can think thnt the realisation of justice in war erimes trials
is to demand a person do the impossible, To burden the assistant Kempels
in this case with tho criminal responsibility for the oxeeution of the
missionaries is just forcing them to do the impossible.

As I have ofton stated in the latter part of ry argument, these
ossistant Kempols just cculd not refuse to obey the orders cf Commanding
Officer Miynzaki, There was no blamable roason on their mart that they
could not refuse, I can not bolieve it contributes to the roalization of
Justice to punish these acoused for their obedience tc orders by saying
that it 1s in violation of tho requirements of justice. I do not mean
by my contention that superior orders can almays be protection for subore
dinate scldiers,

Article 6, Charters of the International Military Tribunal for the
Far East: "The fact that an accused acted pursuant tc order.,.shall cf
itself not be sufficient to free sueh nccused from responsibility,.." doea
not prevent the realization of justico, I mean that it is o mistake to
take it for a golden rule and give a conventional interpretation thereof
that a superior order shall, in any ease, not free such accused from re-
sponeibility, because such a misinterpretation is enlarging the scope of
war criminal trials in vain, I think that the punishment of the ngsistant
Kempeis in this case would be cne instance of suchk vain attempt,

Hewever, I regret and must apologise for the killing of these mise
sionaries, the interpreter and his family, I, together with the accused,
am very regretful that sych acts were committed by the wills of certain
Jopanese, But the expintion which should be paid for thosc misconducts . .
should not be imposed upon these accused,

A victoricus notion with its power ean impose freely any bunishment
upon a defeatod mation, while en the other hand they can freely emoloy
benevolence and tolerange,

I beliewe you are familiar with the allegorical story of =ind and Sum:

.




Once upon o time, Wind and Sun had a competition to cause n man who
mas travelling along a road to take off his oveteoat, Wind tried first,
but the harder he blew the tighter the man held the overcoat on and he
failed at last., Then Sun with his bright warm sunshine easily tock off his
overcoat,

As this tale teaches us, cn infinite love is mightier than any pomer. |

Gentlemen of the commission, in coneluding my argument, I sincerely
hope that ycu will be as hencvolent and warm toward thesc aoeused as the
Sun,

/8/ Takami Karasawa,
Counsel for the Aceused.

I hereby certify the foregoing, consisting of twelve and one quarter
typewritten pages, to be a true and complete translaticn, tc the best._of
my ability, of the originzl document in Japanese,

E. KERRICK, Jr.,
Lieu » U.8. Navnl Reserwe,

Interproter,
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FINAL ARGUMENT
in behalf of the acoused YAMLMOTO, Kasuharu, et rls,

Delivered by

Commander Martin E, Carlsony U, 8. Novel Reserve,
Counsel for the Acoused

Hendqunrters ma Commander Maricnos,

Guam, Marianns Is March 23, 1948,

S

Moy 1t plfase the Commissioms

On Jonunry 31, 1948 it wos docided that these twenty ncoused were to
be tried for the exsoution of ten persons. The tem persons verc exeseuted
on Bobelthwap Islend on or about September 18, 1944, more than throe and
ome half years ngo, But is this any reasson that the persons respensible
for this exseution nre not the ncoused and nre not being tried for the
killing of the ton persons?

The investigntion mo doubt showed that tenms of tro persons verc ore
f@ered to gunrd each of the prisopers, There vwns som. evidence even inkro
the mmber of persons vho vere detrnilod =s
guards, Shere ia some comflict of testimomy rnd therefore thore must heove

point im the investigrtion, Horewver, since|
the ten victims apd there vos mention of teams
gﬂw pereons, it folloved that there must be twenty nocused. Consisten
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. is the Jopanesc custom
né bo detallod rs gunrds over o child

the perscns respopsible, €ie war criminsls, nre not on trisl,
These tremty nre acoused of tho : of temn persopa. ofid lot us lock at
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Does the Judge mdvocate sav that these siv sceused Aid not™writé’ |
stafements, ns A1 the fourteen nroused? Nel Those six ~censéd Teo
made written statements, It is most certeinlv trho thet the Tn'en od-
voote need not intreduce any statements of ncensed {hfe nﬂ*nhﬂ‘g‘:_-vﬂ
we objected to the sevemtoon at-tements made hw “ourtoen of thesd
nooused being admitted fnte evidonoe, but since he Atdn't introtucd
the stotememts which Tamamoto, Tuiitani, Ando, Hevaghi, Twicto, oA
Sagarm wnde, we foe)! that the fulwe advorate shon'd o""er soke o¥nTae
nat¥on for not doing so, apd for hrineine Them te triRY, mnlean fhé ™
evidence 1s strong = cogent arainst these six mcomsed that theav come
mitted the erime charged,

Let us lock at the evidence first as nn!n-t_ttmuﬁ alw -miumﬂ.

First, as to the evidence contained Tn tha seventeen a*atemiiffe
admitted into evidence agninst the fourtden makers an?/or afffahtd] and
to prove tho corvus Aelicti, an? ns ovidence a~ninst esnh of tmenty
nocused, . o

we Md ohject to the introdnection into evidence rf +he a¥ieged cone
fossions of Yokoyama (Wyhihit 6), of Tsure [Frhimit 7). of TighiAn (Tve
hihit R), of Tshiywme (Pvhihit 9), of Sugimoto (Evhi™it M), of Sneie"
moto (Exhibit 11), of Widaka (Pxhihit 12), of Yovovama (RyhinMt Y1), of
Okamura (Exhibit 14), of Nakamurn (Pvhind‘ 15), of Yawneuchi (Tvhiwi+ *
16), of Ichikawa (Bvhibvit 17), of Ichimiwa (T"shinit 12), of Yamamots ™
Exhibit 1°), of Tto (Pxhihit 20), of Ynmamoto (Twhi™Mt 22),7of MFAkL]
| Exhibit 23), but follo=ins the opinion of thé Tudsd advoonte eivén to |
i ‘ the commission in oven court the cormission rulled =e Son'A not ohffe™ T |

| the contonts of thoss alleme? confossiona, hu* wa ware Ti=itnA fo obie
| mont as to the contonta of the=o Aceuments when ma¥ine cnr PfnY afef="
ments. Tho fudge advooate agked that the Aoouments he nAmittod not onY
ns evidence against the mnkers of the Aocuments, ‘mt ns ae~inat A'Y Ehn |
other nineteen acemsed, The juiec ndvocate in his ATeiimont ro¥hAraEad |

his opinion that 2%V eonfeasi~ns shon'A he so considered hv the commise
sion in arriving ~t their findines,
I‘ We ebjocted that the Yleged confessions shou'd not ho adpittid 4F |
| evidence ngninst any of the ninoteen co-defendsnta, ™o won™d Fnin V{kad
to have had time to Yook un the court martia' order =hich =n hareh® ETin
as our authority for not admittine the ~"eged conPoseion of rned Anfoh=
dant aeninst nny of his co-defend-nts, "1 1a the Taw ' not on'v in *tha |
Favy courts, hut in AY) lar courts of the mited Stntes, '
CH.0. 51947 nt ~apo 1090-711: "A Bomer~l cour® matrtia) conwlicted
seven nccused, versonnel of the JTananese mivitrry servien, tried In-

Joinder, of tho charge of "murder.” The evidenee AdEcYoend FThut &N~ 7
body of Sne ¥, n Japenese civilinn n1leged te haye heen =mvlarad hy £he
soven ncoused, ench nnd toeothor, wne fonn? "vinn in a Mtak meer g
home in n Jananese civilian comvound on Tinian Ta'and,,,."

. 'H-:l trinl, 4fer plens of wot puld¥iv %af hosli anteBad "o Hha -
charge nnf to the greelfientien W the apoused, the indce Fdwp-
&<te #MPodod ™h ovifonec am evirn confogeden or angh of *Fp ~ i
neeused confessing o pryt db the murder, Ench of tho aconeed ohiaghnd #¢ !
their admission into evidence on the fromd thet it wad obtaine? imder™
the influemce of & suverior offiser. The cotrt e=c'nded The confension
of 0, but ndmitted imto ovidence the confossirms of the remainine ady

.
1 .

"The record Aiswlosod the cireumatencos anrrpupding the =nline nf the
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confessions to be as follows: the two Japanese officors who surrenderd
ed with the nccused were promisod by an investieatine officer nnd come
manding officer of the Military Govermment that they would be sent hom¢
if they solved the cxsey the accused, 0, was interrogated by the two
Japanese officers in an abindoned house with no other witnesses present
and obt:ined information implicating the six other accused; the same .
officers then questioned I, N. and M in private and S, T, and L in the
presence of an investigating officer; the confossions were written by
each accased and the signin- witnesscs; about two months later each

accused ackmonlod~ed his confession as voluntary at a rewitnoasing.

"A confession, to be admissible as evidenco, must “e affirmitively
shown to have beon entirely voluntary on the oart of the nosused (¥,c,
& B,, Soc 174). Morcover, the burden is upon the side wishing to in-
troduce a confession to show that it was r oluntarily made (N.C,88,,
Sec 177). Purthormore, tho statements of = conspirator, made after thq
common dosign 1s accomplished or abandoned, are not admissible againat
his co-conspirators, except statemonts made in furtherance of an es-
cape. (N.C. & B,, Sec 186),

"Somotime after thoir questioning of ench of the aceused, and .
before tri=1, the two Japanese officers werc returned to Japan, and '
therefore were mmavailable for examination at the trial as to the cire|
cumst-nces surrounding their obtaining each of the confessions, In |
view of the promise mnde by the commanding of ficer of the military
government administration to return them te Japan &f they solved the
case, these Japanese officers had a strong motive to securc confes-
sions from the accused irrespoctive of their g'ilt, and should hawve '
been retained as necessary witnesses until each of the accused had
been brought to trial, Under the circumstanccs, the fadts in tho

record were insufficiont to indicate that the confessions mere in
legal sense "voluntary,"

"Accordingly, tho court crred in admitting into evidence the con-
fessions of I, N. M, S, T, and L, which were not satisfoctorily shown
by the prosecuticen to have been voluntorily made, It furthor Srred in

e gontainod 1p the confessions of goecone
a

Singe the other evidence adduced by the prosecution was insufficient to
sustain the conviction of onct accused, the findings on the charge and
the specification thereundor, and the sentences, and the action of the |
convening authority thercon in the case of each agcused were set aside,|
(File: MM Iwase, Eiichi et n1/A17-20, 9 April 1947)." 1

This was a trial involving Japanese prisoners of war and certainly
the same rules of evidence  nd the same law should apply in trying
thesc twenty nccused, None of the seventeen nlleged confessions shor'*
be admitted ~gainst any of the co-defondints., To do se according %o
this Court Martial Ordor 5-1947 is in error; .

nature of a confoseion must beo establishod bofore introduction,

C.M.0, 2-1943 is horoby eited 25 to the admissibility of confogs f
slons made to persons in authority; (C,M,0, 2-1 43, pp 66, 67) '
"CONFESSIONS, Admissibdlity: Made to porson in position of authority,
During n genoral court martdal trial a writteh confession was received
in ovidence ovor the objection of the ndoused, The evidence clearly
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showed thet the alleged confession was obtained while the conduct of
the ascused was the subject of investigotion, The investigating offie
cer prepired and dictated the confession, inecorporating therein 'the .
substance of our interview' as well ag other information which he had
in his posscssion., He included therein an assertion that the stateme
was voluntarily made without any threats or oromises having been used,’
All witpesses who testifiod as to the conditions under which the con-

told the aceused the truth was the more desmirable procedure in any sity
ation, Confessions made by enlisted men to officers or petty officers,
though not shown to have been made under influence of threats or vromi-
ses, should, nevertheless, in view of the military relaticns of the i
parties, be received with caution, The statement appearing in the
paper that the accused confessod voluntarily without any threats or
promises having been used is gat conclusive that the confession was, ag
a matter of fact, 'mlunt.nry.ﬁ' 'The requisito of voluntoriness is not |
satisfied by establishing merely that the confession was not induced ng
a promiec or a threat, A confession is voluntary in law if, and only
if, it’was, in faot, voluntarily made,?64 Advice or ongouragement to |

(L] R O "0e « LEgW LY aja £l EL] L) e =l A

& Since the evidence, aside from the cony

fession, was not sufficient to establish a prima facie case as to

cither of the two specifications found proved under the charge, the

findings on the charge and specifications thercunder and the sentences

;gru set .‘;side. (File: MM--Tombs, Buford A/A17-20, April 30 and’ May
s 1943.)"

"63 N,C,&B., sec 174.
64 WVan v, U.8,, 266 U,S, 1, 1.
65 C.M,0,'s 12-1931, 13-14; 11-1932, 6-7."

Two mavcl officers, Lieutenant Kenny,“tBe judre ndvocate of this
trinl, and Commondor Ogden, an investigator in tho War Crimes Office,
Comnandor Marianas, Guam, both tostified regarding the taking of affi-
davits by which they said the persons who had made stotements in Tokyo
now incorporated these statements into an affidavit made hore on Guam,
All affiants were held in solitary confinement here at Guam at the
time and both the officers interviewed them ns officers of the Unitod
States Navy, Commander Ogden and Lieutenant Kenny were both persons in
authority ot the time thoy took these affidavits, The affinnts wore
still being investignted and no charges had been oreferred against ther

In this cise the judge advocate has taken the statements made
vhile these persons werc held in confinement at Sugamo Prison and
attempted to incorporate thom into an affidavit made here on Guom,
Knoving nothing of the circumstances surrounding the taking of the
statemepts at Sugamo =nd not oroducing any vritnosses who could testify
as to the edreumstances at Sugamo Prison, the judge ndwocate testified

bhe made no promises or inducements or any threats, so if he made no
promiscs or inducoments or threats, then none mere made at Sugamo
Prison, Tokyo, This doos not follow, And we maintain 4t is incum-
bent upon the prosecution to prove that the original statement made
at Sugamo Prison wons made voluntarily, They have not done 80,

In C.M,0. 2=1947 (Feb) p. 26; the court ruled that the oral

confession made to the eivildan police was involuntary and ipddmise
sible (N.C.&8., sec. 17, C.M.0.'s 2, 1944, 2665 2, 1943, 66),,..
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"In the proscnee =nd ot the request of his commanding officer, thel
accusod dictdtod a writton confession, At this time, the aecused was
informed of his rights and no promises, threats, or other duress were |
evident from the record.,.. The court ruled that this widitten confess
sion was admissible,"”

« "The Jwige Advocate General, Navy Department, homever, held:
"There n confession which is obtained by methods thnt render it invol-
untary is followed by a subsequent confession, a presumption ariscs
that the lattor confession vas motd¥ated by the same considerations,
even though made to a different person thon the one te whom the first
was made, and the burden is on the prosecution to shor that the undue
influence that oroduced the first confession had been removed prior
to the subsequont confession, It wns not sherm in this canso that the
threats made by a eivilian polico had coased tocperate in the mind of
the accused at the time he signed the vritten confession (Mangum v,
U.S., 289 Fed, 213; Stato v, E11is, 294 Mo. 269, 242, S5.V. 952; 24

, L.R.A, 689; C,M,0, 9-1945, 386), Undor the circumstances in this case
the seccond confession was not free from the atmosphere of undue influpe
ence and threats that made the first confossion inadmissible. The
vhole confession technique used hero constituted one sinecle continuing
transnction, Therefore the court erred in admitting the vrritten cone
fession. Lyons v, Oklahoma, 322 U.S, 596; Mangum v, U.S., 289 Fed,
213; State v. Ellis, 249 Mo, 269, 242 5,%, 952, 24 L.R.A. 689)."

] . So the Judge Advoeatc General of the Mavy ruled: "Innsmuch as
the ovidence indopendent of the extra=-judicial written confession I
hereinabove determined t6 be inadmiseible was insufficient to cstablis
a prima faele case supporting tho charge and specification preforred
against the accused, the findings and sentence, and the action of the
convening authority thereon, mere sot askide, (File: M¥-Fyntt, Ro-
5 1land/A17-20, 4 Nov, 1946)."

On the thirteenth day of the trial the judge advopate offercd
"into cvidence the confessions of the nooused Yokoyama, Uchida, Hidaks,
| Ezurc, Ishiyama, and tro statements of Sugimoto." Shortly after the
no' n reecss, "the judre advoente requested permission to offer im
evidence seven additiona] statements, namely, those of Ichikawa, Yoe
kichi; Ichimiyn, Masao; Yamomoto, Kasuharuj Yokoyamz, Kyohisaj Oka~-
mura, Gintaro; Nakamura, Jiro; and Kavaguohi, "ahel,”

"Mr Kumata, o counscl for tho accused moved that the commission
grant the accused one hour in vhieh to study the documents offered by
the judge adveocate in evidence in order to allow time to vrepare an
objection to their “eing rdmitted into cvidence," Wo are sure the
commission would have granted our request bocouse Just to rend over
hurriedly foyrtcon documents would require at least an hour, but the
judge advoocte objected to cvon granting us ope hour., "The judge
advocate replied, poluping out that tho accused could objeet only to
the admissibility of these documents ip evidepoo and not as to their
content,” He went on to oxplain that the only question mas whether
the documents were made veluntarily and Be had nrovoed they mere alll
made voluntarily so no time should be giwen the defense,

The commission announced the motion onc hour's rocess wos not
marranted, We did get a ch-neco to object, Wit never did get an opnere
tunity to even resd those nlloged confos before ther vere ade .
mitted and rend into evidenco, and we hod mp chance to interpesc an
objection to tho contepts of the dooumengs,
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side (N.C.&B,, sec. 422), In the instont come the authorities did not
differ on the rulg ¢ pat the acts 3ng gmonta of a conapirg=
m (] At ng o O [ » r v w

O ¢ *t 0

Our objeetion was denied and the documents mere 2"l admitted inte
ovidence, not only against the affiants, but against all the other
nineteen aceused and also to nrove tho corous deliecti,

I should like to call tho commission's attention to C,M,0, 11-194%
(Nov.) pp 382, 383: "A gemeral court martial convicted three aceused,
tried in joinder, of the charge of "Conspiraey'.. As to the three ac- }
cused, tho orosceution offered in evidence voluntary »ritten extra-
judicin)l statements made by onch of the accused individually, Each
statement, vwhich implicated onc or more of the accused, wna made and
signed out of the presence of the others, znd none of them nssented to
the admissions of any other. The court admitted these documents over
objection,"

Tho Judgo Rdvegqote Genoral of the Navy stated: "It was noted thof
gounsel for the acgused, in bis argument, -
Bl 88 < 1 0 (1 M 8 L6 GO ) e  COLLE™ O ’ C LO8E |
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mado aftor the Hw‘“&?‘“ QE the conspirscy. In his closing argument|
the judge advocate adwised the court that ecach statement could he

applicd without restriction against all of the accused, and quoted fr
"igmore on Evidence to the gsame effect. The prssages vhich the judge
advocate quoted (3rd Editioh, Sections 1077 and 1079) concern either
eivil cases or eriminal conspirncies where the admissions are made in
pursuance of the conapiracy, and have no ammlieation tb the case at
hand, The applicable section of 7igmore is section 1076 (Admissions of
other parties to the Litigation;...Confessions of a Co-Defcnadant),
vhich the judge adveceate foiled te read to the coart. The principle
thorein sot forth is covercd in Naval Courts and Boarda, Section 186,"

ey

In the next paragraph the Judge Advececate General, Navy Department
cloarly and unequivoc:lly defines the status and duty of the judge
advocate of a Navy court:

"The judge ndvocate should exercime care not to moke misstatementd
of the appliecable larm in his argument, because of Fis status as advisex
to the court in mattors of ford and of law and boeause of his duty to
safeguard tho ends of justice (C,M.0, 7=1932, 16). It is improper for
either the judge rdvocate or counsel for the acgused to misstate any
mattor of law in an argumont, but on matters about which authorities
differ, o party may properly state only the viems favorable to his

- . g - - . soc ; Wigmore
3 ed,, sec. 1%; Wharton, 11th ed,, scc, 722),"

o s~y that the allegod confessions eannot be admitted against an;
of the other nineteen accused according to the abovo citations and all
of the zlleged confesaions should be stricken from the rocoerd on tha
initiative of the Commission at this time, There should not be one
law for Americans apd another law for Japanose who are tried in Amor{=
can uuln'tl,

All of the confessions imnlicatc others of the nccused, We poinmt
out several instances such aa: Esure's confession (Exhibit ¥) which ime
plicates Tapamote, 2nd men of the Sumida Unit, and Lieutenant Yamamotoj
Uchida's oonfession (Exhibit 8) which implicates enlisted men from the
Sumidn Unit; Sugimoto's confossion (Exhibit 10) implicetes Ichikama,
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Tamamote, Yokoyana, Ishiyama, Ichimiyn, Ozcki, Esure, Sumida Unit mefi,
and Liocuntonant Yamamoto,

Suginoto's confossion (Exhibit 11) nhich implientos Ichiknra,
Taknhashi not sure (Taknhnshi as a nrosccution witness testified he
did not go), Yokoyama, Tamamoto, Ichiyama, Ozaki, Yamamoto, n few en
listed non from the Sumida Unit.

Hidokn's confession (Exhibdt 12) which implicntos Yokoyamn,

Yokoynma's confossion (Exhibit 13) which inr~licates Tamamoto and
Okomura,

Okamura's confession (Exhibit 14) which implicates Esure, Adjus
tont Ichikawa, Yokoyama, Tamamoto, not clear as to Fujitani, Ando,
Sagara, Naksmurn, Ivamoto, Uchida, Ito, Hidaka, Haynshi, Suginmoto and
Ichimiyn creo also namod, In fact, Oknmura names everyone who was ever
attached to tho Kempeit2i ~nd explnins that, "Corporal Baba -=s dead
at this time and v2s nct proscnt, Baba died with Serg: ant Ikushima
at Kerer from the explosicn cf a mine 124d by the army." Sergeant
Ogalkd and Serg-ant Tnkahashi he is alsc nct clear cn.

Sergeint Major Ishiyama is the perscn vhem he dcos nct reeall ,
boing there at the exocution, He thinks s¢ldiers from the Sumida Udit
vwere guarding. MNakamura's confessicn (Exhibit 15) ~hich implicates |
Ichikara, Osclkd, Ando, Tea'd:, TItc, and the Adjuta=t of the Sumida
Unit.

1

Kawaguchi's ccnfesasicn (£xhibit 16) which implic~tes Ichiriya, !

and Yemancto,

Ichikava, Yokichi's ccnfeseion (Exhibit 17) vhich implicated
Sugimoto and/or Yckoyams (4t wns either cne cf ther that Ichikam
he ordered to gc tc holp pclice), Yamamotc, tvo or three scldiers fro
tho Sumida Unit (Ichikavwa says, "I do nct reecll but I heard lator
thore mere trc er three scldiers from the Sumida Unit"), He says,
"I think nlmest all of the Kempoie and deputy Kempeis verec present.”
Sergeant Yokcynma, Ckomurn, Fujitani; five cr six scldiers cf the
Sumida Unit, This cconfessicn is not ~ confessicn bat ~ declaration
against the cthor eco-defondants and shculd never kave beon admitted,
Heving boon admitted it shculd be stricken,

Ichimiya, Masac's ¢ nfession (Exhibit 18) names perscnnel of the
unit including Ichiknma, Sugimoto, Tamamoto, Yokoyamn, Ishiyama, and
Ozaki; ton cnlisted men of the Sumida Unit had rifles (this is clearly
sclf-serving ~nd an attempt by the Kempel to pass off scme responsi-
bility on tc the Sumidz Unit,

Yapamoto's stotement (Exhibit 19) which immlicates sdjutant Iehd-
kava,

Ito's confossion (Exhibdt 20) vhich implieates Ozaki, one officer
apd four or five enlisted men from Sbge other unit,

Yamamoto's statement (Exhinit 22) implicates Adjutant Ichikava
of the Kempeitni,

The alleged confessicn of Osgld (Exhibit R3) vhich implicates

" (7)e




T o L ¢

fivé or six perscna from the Sumida Unit; Sugimoto, Ishiyama, and
Yokoyama,

Artigles IV, V, and VI of the Censtitution of the United States
mokes no distinetion betmcen Japonese and Americans,

The alleged confessions now evidence in this e-se ecntain mueh
hearsay, ruch opinion and the statements of theso "Kompei,"show bl
and a definite pattern of blamine the Sumida Unit men for doing the
shocting, Some of tho affinnts think thore vere as many as ten"8umida
Unit mon present, Tostimoenv from the witness stand -roves there were
only two known Sumidn Unit men at the sceme. Lioutenant Yomemoto
tostificd that his crderly, Kum~gai, accompanicd him ~nd one of the
assistont driver, Nomekn'n, mns ordered to gc along te tho scene, The
tro drivers and one other assistant driver vere ordored tc remain with
the tue trucks by Colonol Miy-~sald,

No evidence was submitted thot Kavaruchi, the Sumida Unit man
detailed tc the Kempeitai ns 2 driver for Licutenant Nakamura, did
anything at the sconc, And yet Ichimiyz in his zlleged confession soj@
"at the time of our doparturc, I rent vith an enlisted man ~hcse name
I do not romombor, Ho eamo tc the road vith me nt the rear of the
rank, Tvo trucks wore there, Ten enlistod men of the Sumida Unit had
rifles,”

Doce anyone who h=s Yir'cned to this trial “elieve that Ichimiyn
gav ten enlisted men from th: Samida Unit with rifles?

Such evidence has no plac in = court of law notwithat~nding vhat
the 2CA? rules permit. Ye do cbjeet to the contents cf Ichimiyn's
statoment ns oyvidence and tc the contonts cf all seventeen decuments
said to be confossions of fourteen of these nceused, The judge ad-
voente introduced two documents of Yamamoto, Sugimoto, and Yokoyazma,
and onc each from eloven cther accused,

We particularly cbjoct to such statements as ~re ccntained in
Sugimoto's statements, "Tho above personnel ~re men vhom I believe I
sav cither on the way to the scene or in the trusks,” He listed 19
;m::.mu and stated, "five cr six enlisted men." those from the Sumida

te

"o chjoot to the statoment, "™ith my own eyes I savw scldiers of
the Sumida Unit executo," This i1s testimony by cne not even accused
of the erime at the time of ris confessicn azainst perscns from anotha
unit, the Sumidn Unit., Without ccunsel tho affiant mokes st-tements
against cther persons but dcesn't nome them, It is most prejudicial
to a1l non ef the Sumida Unit and Lieutenant Yamamoto. The affiant
further says, "When I reminisced rith my buddies," Cleafly this
is not men fyom the Sunida Unit but the Kempei, It is self-semving
and shuuld pot be permitted,

The affjgnt further states: "I heard” and "Agecrding te the
stories, thoy vere saying.." To permit $his kind of evidence ie con=
trary to 2ll the known rules of evidenee, Court martis]l crders are
replete and vould bo qucted if tdme | tted .adequate preparatien bo
bexr out apd substontizte cur ebjecticn that Sugimoto's affidavit and
statenent should not be admitted into evidence because of h
opinion evidence, sheer ecnjecture, self-sorving statements, and {n-
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cause it oontnins tostimony gainst persons now joined vith him 28 oco-
defendants,

"e maintoin that cnee these statements, affidavits, and other dogp

ments are admitted inte evidenee they 're then in evidence and the

domage of ~1lewing dmproper ovidencc has alrendy been done, Buch dn.;

age is irreparable, It is of 1ittlo consequonce that we even move to
strike tho documents once they are admitted,

In the statoment with a date 17 Mareh, Sugoame Prilson, Sugimoto
makos stotoments neainst his co-defendant Ichikawa: "I beliewe,® "I
=lso think." "My momorics of that time nre not wery clear, but I thidk

in genoral," "I am not absolutely elear about the executioners in eack

tean but since.,.," To allow such evidence is contrary to the rulop of
ovidence and we object on the grcund of hearsay, that 1% is opinden,
that it is guossing, and theot it is solf-serving,

Ishiyamn's statomont contzins such things 28, "I am prone to fm‘-!
get things;" "On the ship on the may home it hapnened that I shered I
signe of mentcl derangoment... Thot is to say, I entered the Natiomnl
Hospit=l nt Uragn. I still don't knom what kind of things I 4id oh th
ship;" "I think;" Yot his statemont is admittod into ovidence to prove
the corpus delicti, 2nd to convict Ishiyama and the cther nineteen
accused., Te ploaded Ichiynno insane but our plezc in bar wns denied,
Teo auvw ncke him tostify -~g-inst himself, and the other ninotcen mith-
ont honefit of ecunsel, is most unfortunate and prejudicial to his sub
atantlvn rights. !

ime Constitution of the Ui ted States of America, the 4th Amende
nent  roads: "“he risht of Lue people to e secure" And the fth
Kiominegnt reads: "No porson shall e held to answer for o capltal op
othervise infamcus erime."” And the Sixth Amondment reads: "In all
eriminal prosccutions the cccused shall enjoy the right to a spoedy
and public tri=l,..,; to be confrontod with the =itness arcinst him,*

This is the Comstitution apd this is the law, the Ameriean lam
under which this Navy convoned Military Commission is epercting.
Supreme Commandey Allied Povers or no other perscn can change this,
our Aperican Conatituticn, "hich proteets all nersons, nct only Ameri-
cnns,from tyrany ond opprossion,

@ cannpt believe that it vwns the intent of the Suprome Commander
Allied Povers to take amay from these ~ccused Japancse the rights
guaranteed by the Constitution cf the United States of Amerien, and
vou'd like the judge ndvecente to be specifiec. "e objoct to the judge

ptating thot the nrcdodurc he has followed apd the lam he oltes
n"oding confessions tc e introduced ag-inst co-defendants {s allowec
by tho relaxed SCAP rules, Specificclly, vhat is thés SCAP rule, and
what esourt hos appreved such 2 rule? And so it L8 with arrest of theb
acoused tithout narrant, Just vhat ia the SCAP rulc thot allome?

Remember there vere no confessions introdused agrinst six of
these nooused: Tamamoto, Tadashiy Fujitani, Yodhio; Ando, Fukuichdj
Hayeshi, Umcji; Ivdmoto, Hourkichi; and Sagarn, Masashiro,

How gan there bo convietion of thesc six aceused against whom
%" ore 48 mo confession introduced and 1ittle if any ﬂ'ﬁm‘l Many
of the aopused, sovoral of whem in statemepte denied thot they
vere even at the scone, did not take SHE standi This procedure is
in nceord vith whot the Judge Advoecate Uehoral of the Navy sadd in
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Court Martial Ordor 3-1944, We cite this C.M.0. 3-1544¢ "™Confossions;
Court criticised for convicting accused #oley uppn his oxtrajudicinl
confession and statement on tho stand. The nccused pleaded not guilty
to two specifications alleging theft and wns convicted by o surrary
court nmartial, The evidence introduced by the vrosecution in support
of the offenses nlloged in the snecificctions consisted cenly of sworn
statements in thg form of quostions and ans-ers, nade by the accused to
his commonding officer. In one statement the nccused admitted taking -
the roney ~nd wateh from an onlisted man of the Army, The prosecution
then rosted without ealling witnosses or introducing any other evidence
The prosccution, at the time it rosted, had nct introdueced sufficient
evidence to conviet tre accusod of theft, since it did not introduce,
ae 1t should have done, any cvidonce tending to corroborate his con-
fession, Other than tho confession there n~s no evidence rhataocever
that the alleged thefts evor verc committed, An cecused may not be
convieted on his extrajudicinl confession alone. It rust bo corrcbors
~tod bv some independont ovidence (N,C.&B., scc., 176). Had the defense
intreduced no evidenco the court nocessarily ould have had to aequit
the aceuscd beecause of the lnck of evidence to support any other find=-
ing. Tho accused, homever, took the stand at his orn request and in
hia o'n bLehalf, His testinony, by way of judicia) ~dmissicns, upon his
on exaninnticn, vas sufficient to support the conviction, The pro-
codure Tollomod by tho recorder and the counscl for the accused and
permittod by the court in tids ense was highly irregular and indieated
a loo¥ of their rospoctivo duties in conncetion :ith tho trial, It
amruaod to tho aecused boin' doorived of the defense ho was cntitled
to hove und, in effect, to boirz opposod by two orosceutors, Tho ag-
cused b his plee of not guilt c~1lled upon the prosecution to orove
all shc averments of the spocificition preferred agoinst him, Farther-
moré, a0 accused was cntitled to be confronted with the vitnessos
a%:1ast him and to have opportunity to cross-exomine them faco to face,
Until the prosccutioh hnd shon by proper evidence that the alleged
offenso had been committod, and thit the accused, having tho requisite
erimincl intent, committod 1t, tho accused was not roquired to produce
any ovidonce whatever, The recorder, by failing to confront the ae-
cused with witnoss for the nrosccutién and to introduce otherrise suf- |
Tieicnt ovidence after a plea of not guilty to establish a ~rima facie |
ease, was derolict in his duty to the Govornment. Counsel for the
2ccused by permitting the accused to take the stand and 4n the absence
of such ovidence thus nlloming hir to convict himself cn his onn testi-
mony, fzilod in his duty to protect the accused's interests. If the
procedure followed in this case ore allo-ed to apss unnoticed, it
would tend to destroy the confidonce which an enlisted man should feel
in the compotoncy of an officer to represent him as counsel before o
court martial, Regardless, therefors, of the guilt of the agcused

the findings and sentence, and the action of tho revieving authori
vere sot aside (C.M.O.'s 12, 1922, 7; 1, 1931, 31; 7, 1931, 1819; 2,
1939, 2055 1, 1942, 157; 4, 1943, 20-21) (P§le: MN/Williars, George
W/A17-21, 4 December 1944)." ,

At tho timo these twenty aceused were arrested in Japan, nono of
thom were accused of the crime for which they are nor being tried, -
Most of them wero held in solitary gonfinement for rany months before
they were ower served with tho charges and specifications on February
2, 1948, Theso tronty acoused persops were all extradited from Japan
to Guam without charges being preforred against thom. Not until Fobe
ruary 2, 1948 en Guam mere any of thes=e persons accused.of this crime.
Such o procedute is at varinnee, yes, in contradietdon, to Article 43,
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Articles for tho Government cf the United States Navy. In C,K,0,
11-1947 the Judgo Advocato’ Goneral, Navy Department, lays down the rul
of procodure to bo followed =t the time of arrest. Yefuote from C,M,O
11-1947: In C,H.0, 11-187 it was hold: "Article 43, Articles for th
Government of tho-Navy, provides that the perscn accused shall he fure
nished with a truc copy of "the charges, =ith the specifications, nt
time ho is out under arrest; and no other chargos than these sc fur-
nished shnll be utged ngainst him at the trial, unless it shall apmear
to the court that intelligence of such ofher charge hnd nct reached the
officor ordoring the court when the accused was put under arrost, or
that scme witness material to the support of such ghargos was at that
tim® cbeent and can be produced at the trifl; in which ease reoascnable
tire chall be givon to the accused to make his dofense agninst such
new chargo,"

As tc the accused Hayashi, Umoji, tho defonse brought dewn from
Japan Gomi, Risaku, vho testified on the sixteonth doy of the trial
that while tho assistant Kempois roro amay from thoir barracks attond-
ing the excaution of the mission:iries, Haynshi was in bed, unable te
rwalk, bechuse of n wound causod by stepping on a nail abcut a woek
provicus. See ansvers to Quostions 16, 17, 18, 18, and 20,

Hayashi himself then took the witness stond, He testifiod that he
was the orderly to Captain Nakemura, but that about September 10, 1944,
he hurt his foot and kad to be rolieved of duty., Uchida relioved him
as Captain Noknmura's orderly, Sce answer to Q. 6,

Heyashi further testified thot he was in bod all that day vhen the
missionaries mere executod, Ho didn't attend any of the nssemblics.
Ho was sick with yellow jaundice after the weund on his foot healed apd
was therefore sigk in “ed :::il aboat October 1, 1944, See his mﬁi
to Q. 13, ¥, 15, and 20, particularly the answer %o Q. it Wit
time I was suffering from a very high fever and it scemed I had dezod
oﬂnﬁlﬁdmhﬂnbnﬁturm but Anto that night when th
asphstant Kompods came brok (I do siob reme'l m-tlfi : ﬁnk it ::

M [

lsodipe priycte Esure sho there al
missionaries move mﬁm I'-:&':w this,"

On erose~cxamination Baynshi nz?u lied Bhint % was dofindtely sure h
didn't attend the gencral asserbly that day, and that he wag definitely
sure he didn't ~ttend the orocution of tho miseionaries and the Honden~
ero family, See answor to Q, 29 and 30,

Hayashi testified he denied attending the execution at the time he
was lnvestigated in Tokyo. Ho oven wroto a statemont to thip effect,
Soo answers to Q. 39, 49, A1, and 42,

Wo ask that tho commiseion find Hayashi, Umeji not gidlty of speci
E’icatim 1 and 2 of Charge I, ~nd not guilty of tho specificatien of -
harge II,

"o ask that the eommission fully acquit Hayashi, Umeji of the
charge of violation of the law and customs of war, and fully aoquit him
of tho charge of murdor, : .

Although Sogara lnmhinhudthudutrunﬂudlnow_utt
' withthu—::r

Kompeitad Hoodquartors that ovening, he too is charged
of ten persons, ;
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Sagara, Masashiro we say, anmd ‘ot Sagwra, Seishiro, 28 he was ofigine
ally ¢harged. How 4s it that bhe, ‘too, is charged when not n single
witness testified Sagara was eveh at the seene of the exeqution?

On January 21, 1948:the police called him on the phone and told
him to come to the Sakai-machi policé station, At the police station
they toid him to be ready to go to the Home Ministry Office in Tokyo
the next day, So on the next day, January 22, 1948, n noliceman from
his viilage came and without any warrant of arrest took him te Tokyo,
AL Tckwo he was questioned and although he insisted that his name was
Sugnie, Masashire and not Sagara, Sedghire, and that he was pot guilty
6f aur crime, nevertheless he was sent to Sugamo Prisepn, Tokjo, and
thesa hald without any warrant of arrest. No charges were preferred
agail st hin, On January 29, 1948, he was sent by nlane to Guam ahd
icre ivtoly upon arriving here he was put idto solitary confinement,

On Feburary 2, 1948 he was for the first time served with chatges
and specifications, still under the name of Sagara, Seishire, ale
though he insisted this wns not his name. He wns then for the first
time told that he could have counsel,

On the sixtoenth dny of this trial Sagara, Masashiro took the
stand as o witness in his own behalf, He testified that he had duty
at the Kempeltnoi heagqm.rt rs as a ronod lookout during the time of the
exeqution, In his answer Q) Sagara says: "I did not particie
pate in the execution becnuse I wns assigned to road lookout duty on
that day,"

By Q. 14 he was asked: "Phon how do Yyou know that the execution
was carried out?" Sag answered: "I know that the execution was
carried out because unﬂzﬁnt ddy Wheh I was standing on duty ns read
lookout at the Gasupan Highway in front of the Kempeitai quarters I
saw Commanding Officer Miynsald with many members of the Kemped tai
leave the barracks. Further, because after they all returned I hoard
from someone whose namo I have forgotten (I heard from no ome im pars
ticular) that the miauidtnrin Kol been executed,” Sagnrn testified
he was on duty that night froh dix o'clock untdl ten o'clock, See
nnswers to Q, 18 and 19;

Sogara isn't guilty the orime charged. We ask that the coms
mission find him not guiipy of clf:lda':tou 1 and 2 of Charge I and
of the specification of go f 4 We ask that the commission
acquit Sagara, Masashiro of ‘the dharge of wiolation of the law and
customs of war and of the chhrge of of,

Then there is Iwamoto, Harukichi, who eame to Guam on December

10, 1947 as o prosecution witness, He hns always denied that he woe
even at the scene of the execution. He pleaded "Not guilty" to the
charges and specifications, On January 28, 1948 he was suddetly apd
without any explanation nut into solitary confinement. Not antil
Pebruary 2, 1948 was he for the first time charged with n orime when
he mas served with the charges and specifications. Is it any wonder
that he is confused, amxious and concerned,

You may ask, why didn't he tale the witpess stand theh, and
that he was oven present ot the executiof? We remind you that it ism*t
hecessary that am aeccused prowe that he is innboent, Under our Ameris
can court procedure o person is considered immotent until he is woven
guilty, There has been no evidehas to conviot Iwmmoto,
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Me again remind the commission of what the Judge Advoente Gon-
oral Navy Department said in C.M,0, 3-1944. In that case the neeused
did take the stand after the introduction by the prosecution of smworh \
statements in the form of quostions and answers made by the accused,
The Judge Advocate General, Navy Department, said: "The prosecution,
at the time it rested, had not intreduced sufficient evidence to con-
vict the accused of theft since it did not introduce, as it should haw
done, any evidence tending to corroborate his confossion, Other than
the confession there was no evidenee whatsoever that the alleged
thofts ever wore committed. An accused may not be convicted on his
extrajudicial confossion alone. It must be corroborated by some in-
dependent evidence (N.C.&B,, sec 176), Had the defonse introduced no
| evidence the eourt necbssarily would have had to nequit the accused
because of the lack of evidence to sunport any other finding, The
acoused, howéver, took tho stand at hiw own request and in his own ben
half, His testimony, by way of judieinl ndmissions, upon his own*
examination, wos sufficient to support the conviction, The proceddrsc
followed by the recomder and the counsel for the accused and vermitted
by tho court in this case was highly irroegular and indicated a lack of
theif respective duties in connection with the trial, It amdunted to
the accused being deprived of the defense he was entitled to have and,
| in effect, to “eing opposed by two orosecutors, The accused by his
Il Plea of not guilty called upon the nroseeution to prove all the avere
|' ments of the snocification proferred against him, Furthermore, the
accused was entitled to be confronted with the witnesses ngainst him
' and to have opportunity to cross-oxamime them face to face., Until the
prosecution had shown bv propor ovidence that the alleged offense had
boen committed and that the accused, having the requisite erimipal ip-
tent, committed it, the accused was not required to produce any cvi-
dence whatever, The recorder, by failing to confront the accused with |
Witness for the prosccution and to introduce otherwise sufficient ovi- 1 |
denee after a plea of not ruilty to establish n prima facie ease, was |
dorelict in bis duty to the Government, Counsel for the accused, by
permitting the aceused to take the stand in the absence of such avi-
dence, thus allowing him to conviet himself on his own tostimony,
failed in his duty to protect the accused's intorests, If the pro-
cedure followed in this casc were allowed to pass unnoticed, it weuld
I tend to destroy the confidence which an enlisted man should foel in
! the competeney of an officer to represent him as counsel before a court
i martial. Regardless, therefore, of the guilt of the accused, the find-
- ings and sentence, and the action of the reviewing authorities were set
' aside (C.M.0.'s 12, 1922, 7 1. X 31; 7, 1931, 18-19; 2, 1939, 205;
| 1, 1942, 157; 4, 1943, 20-21) (File i1liams, George W/A17-21, 4
December 1944), "

| J In the alleged confession of Okamura (Exhibit 14) Okamura writes:
"My recollection as to the nssistant Kempeis at the entrance of the
assistant Kompois' barracks mear the road is not clear, but I meeq1l it |
as follows: Corporal Ezure, Leading Private Fujitani, Superfor Brivate
Ando, Superior Private Gomi, Superior Private Sagara, Superior Private {
| Nakamura, Superior Private Iwvamoto, Private First Class Kawashima,
Superior Private Uchidn.,, I do not know whether the following nersons
,’ came from the barracks near the office of headquarters, They were:
Corporal Imaizumi, Corporal Hidakn, Superi®r Private Haynshi, "

Gontlemen of the commission, that is the kind of evidence the
prosecution asks you to comviot Imamots on, Me have eited the rule of
evidence which holds that 4 confession is not good na against the eone
fossor,

It is true the prosecution had n witness who testified apninst [
Iwamoto, Butwhntndm—m,mhndhuntrhdmtmd -
guilty of murder by this same commission, and who admdtted he was at
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the scene of this exeoution and was ordered to shoot one of the vie-
tims. (See answers to Q, 54, 101, 278, 284),

Yomoda testified he saw Iwamoto at an assembly, the so-called
first assembly, at about 3 p.m. that day (Seo nsnwer to Q. 35, 230,
231). But after this assekbly, Yomadn says everyone returned to thei

uarters, He sald Iwamoto was mresent at the scene of the execution
See asmwer to Q, 64 wherein he names eighteen persons as being at the
scene of the execution). This prosecution witness cannot remember
that Ando, Fujitani, Haynshi, or Sagara was present at the scene of
the execution (See answers to Q. 81, 82, 83, &, and 133).

It was Yamada who had the day duty that day from 5 p.m. until 8
a.,m, the next morning, and who was supposed to actually stand duty
from midnight until 8 a.m., but was so tired out after he had attended
the execution that he nsked to be excused from his so-called day duty
that night from midnight until 8 a.m., and he was excused, but doesn't
remomber who stood his duty. (Sce his ansvers to Q. 87, 88, 89, 90, 91
92, W’ MI’ m}l

Yomada remembers he was ordered to shoot with his nistol at the
execution by Ccptain Naknmura (See his answer to Q, 279, 280, 283),

Yamada couldn't testify that Iwamoto did anything at the mam.'
He wos nsked Q. 185: "What did Iwamoto do at the scene?" Answer: "I
have no recollection,”

Gentlemen of the commission, on that bit of evidence by n person
whom you have found guilty of murder and sentenced, you are asked to
find Iwamoto guilty of murder, Yamada cannot testify that Iwamoto did
a single thing at the execution, How is it that Yamadn is the only
proscoution witness who says Iwaftoto was nt the scene of the execcu=- |
tion, Not another prosecution witness testified that Iwamoto wns at
the scene, We Hold that the prosecution have not introduced a single |
word of testimony or evidence even to show that Iwamoto did an overt
act., They have not shown that Iwamoto had a criminal intent or had
malice aforethought.

In view of the lack of evidence ngninst him, remembering that Iwey
moto doesn't have to take the stand to prove his innccence, we ask
that the commission find Iwamoto not guilty of specifientions 1 and 2
of Charge I and mot guilty of the specification of Charge II, amd
that the commission does therefore acquit Iwamoto of the crime of
violation of the law and customs of war and of the crime of murder,

Fujitani, Yoshio is also accused of mirder, although in his case
also there was no so-called confession introduced by the judge advo-
cate, N.C.&B,, seo 158 rends: "If there is a reasonable doubt as to
the guilt of the accused, he must be aocquitted, The Judge advocate
as in the case of Iwamoto had o written statement from Fujitani, but
didn't offer it into evidence, This faet, tobgether with the very
scanty bit evjdence against Fujitapd, oreates a reasonable doubt
as to the 1t of Fujitani,

C.M,0, 5-1921 quotes Clark and Marshall in The law of Crimes,
stating: "The distingulshing charncteristie of murder is malise
aforethought,,.. And if n man voluntarily apd wilfully does an act,
the natural and probable consequence of which is to caupe onother's
death, an intent to kill will be prosumed, " '
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The ewidence shows that nll the enlisted men who did attend the
exeéution were ordered to attend the execution. There was no wilful
act on their part, In fact, the testimony shows th-t they were reluce
tant to go but this was a military organization and the enlisted men
were ordered, yes, were ordered, to go to the evecution,

Did Colonel Miynsaki nsk for volunteers? No! He issued the ordef
and persons mot on watch or sick or otherwise exaused went along,

This case is not analagous to a lynching mob and it im no way
resembles a mob, These persons were ordered to attend. Those that di
attend were all subject to Colonel Miynsmaki's orders and he became
regponsible for their actions when he issued orders to shoot nnd they
shot, But these accused did not became responsible for his sptions
simply because they were at the scene. Remember, it is was Colomel
Miyagaki who gave the orders that night, not any of these accused, ee-
pecially persons who were only spectators ordered to be there,

Then when theme is a reasonable doubt that one of these accused,
Fujitani, was even there, as to Fujitani there must be an acquitidl,

The judge advocate hasn't much evidence against the accused !uji—.
tani, Only Captain Nakamura said Fujitani was at the scene of She

execution, buk he didn't say Fujitani was o member of one of the teams,

It was the witness Captain Nakamura, against whom everybody else testi-
fied that he is was who wolked up and down the line ordering men to
shoot to kill the missionaries amd the other victims., Captain Nakamur:
has already been tried and sentenced for a similar execution and has

previously testified against enlisted men of his own detachment, men
whom he as an officer ordered to do thé very things he now testified
they did.

The evidence in this cnse clearly shows that Captain Nekamura |
should “e tried for this execution and not these enlisted men,

Even were the commission to believe Nakamura that Fujitani was at
;hhu u::na, h:t cannot convict Fujitani of the murder of ten nersens,
ere hos been no proof that Fujitani had the necessary eriminnl
or that he had malice aforethought, 4 . a—

Imaizumi, Keishiro testified that Fujitani wasn't at the seene

;;;u}une he had just returned from the hospital (See answer to Q, 212,

t-hnur;thn ndﬂ ntrnmnhlunht.hzt. the .judge adveente ndvances and o new
© advances when he nsks the commission to find Fujitani guil
ﬂt:u -rduﬂn:ti:::m:: ﬂnptu.it? Enkn-t m-.'; hum Fujitani was at the lcﬂnE ar”
executlion at which he, Ca N,
' o gu.vn'a.ll N . ptain Nokamura, and Colonel

We shall atick by the rule that the courts have followed for bup~

of years and is still the lam in a1l the .Americanm courts that we
Jmow about; the rule set forth in Section 159 of N,C,&B. : "If thero 4s
o reagonable doubt ag to the guilt of bhe accused, he must be acquitted,

Specifically, Mr, Judgo Advecate, what is the relased SCAP rule

which changes this yule ap " ;
?lljitnﬂm;l.t:of ) Mhmmmmmmturm
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We say that aceqrding to the evidense Fyjitani should be necquitted

Then there is Ando. Apdo is blind {n one eyes There wis no eon
fession of Ando's introduced by.tho judgp advocatoi Two of the proe
secution witnesses, Imaisumi and Yamoda, asked leading, guostions by th
Judge ndvocate, testified thoy had no rocollestion of -Abdo being at th
scene, And yet the judge advocate asks that Ando be found guilty of
murder, e say when there is a rensomable doubt and the evidence
leaves a reasonable doubt that Ande was ever at the scehe of the execys
tion, that the commission should find Ando mot guilty and slould aaquit
h

——

Nor did the judge advocate introduce any confession agninst Tamn-
moto, He evidently reliocs on the testimony of Lieutonant Sano, who
tostified that Tamamoto was at the scene of the execution, beecause
Lieutenant Sano ordored him to go to the scene, :

We take issue with the judge advocate when he statea to the com=
mission that tho lav is that all porsons who were at this scene of
the excoution must be found guilty of murder, Lot him ecite a ninﬂn

Nome has been proved,

*hat of the charges and specifications, Tamomoto isn't Just
c¢harged with being present., The specificatiens rend: "ddd milfully,
foloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, and without
Justifiable eause, assault, strike, kill, and cause to be killed, by
shooting with firearmas,"”

These are the allegntions not only ngninst Tamamoto but agninst
all twenty accused, It isn't onough, we maintain, that the judee ade |
vocate just orove that these nceused were at the scene, when these
accused are charged with deing an overt act,

The prosccution hosn't proved that Tamamoto did a single overt act
at the sceno of the execution, We ask that the commission find Tamne
moto, Tadashi not guilty and ncquit him of the charge of murder and of
the violatien of Article 199 of the Criminal Code of Japan, and vio-
lation of the low and customs of mar,

Instead of trying Colonel Miyaaghi nnd Captain Nakamura for this
erime, the prosecution decided that the adjutant of the Kompeital amd

the adjutant of the Sumida Unit should be joined wit* these eighteen
enlisted mgn, notwithstanding thnt both these officers were staff offi-
cers :md/ﬁi ARy army. or navy had no commapd responsibility, This faet
is s0 well kmomto 211 military men that we should not even have to
mention it. Yet the judge advogate has likened the adjutant of the
Sumida Unit to that Japanese general, General Tomoyuki Yamashita, and
likened the responsibility of Lieutennnt Yomamoto, ‘a staff officer,

to the same command rosponaipility as General Yamashita., We have made
ropeated attempts to got Lieutemant General Inoue as a defense witnops
knowing he was here op Guam, T4 4s difficult for us to understand why
the prosecution do not enll Lioutenant Gemeral Inoue,who was the Come
manding Goneral in the Palau Islands at the time of this incident, as a
prosecution witness or as a witness of the court in order that we might
have the facts testified to by o witpess who ghould know something abou
these alleged spies and why they were executed,
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At least Goneral Ineue could testify as to nho had a command respar
sibility in the Palau Islands, comparable to Ggonergl Yamashita's -e |
General Inoue, or the adjutant of the Kempeital, Lieutenant Iuhiknm,
or tho adjutant of the Sumida Unit, Lieutenant Yamamoto, i

Lieutenant Ichikama docs not deny that he was at the scene of the
execution., He was there because he was the adjutent of the Kempeitad
and his commanding officer, Colomel Miyamaki, ordered him to be there,

Lieutenant Yamamoto testified he couldn't say who was on tho other
end of the telephone mhen somecone from the Kempeitai called him and
asked for the use of a truck,

Lieutenant Yamamoto did, homever, testify that Adjutant Ichikawa
cameé ovor to sec him about the use of tho trucks to escort sples, But
Ichikawa came to the Sumida Unit in the capacity eof a staff offiecer,
He only earried a message from his chief, Colonel Miynzaki, to the -
transportation batallion, the Sumida Unit,

We take issue with Judge advoeate when he says the adjutant, -
Ichikama, made plans for the oxecution; he made prelimimary nlans not
for execution but for the trucks, Evidence shows missionaries took pery
soncl belongines with them in the truck, This shows plainly the mise
sionaries were not on their may to their execution but to a nlace of
safety. Hov can anyope know mhat Colencl Miyrzaki had in mind? It is
true the evidence shows thnt Colonel Miyazaki said the missionaries
must bo executed because they rere spies and that the execution had bee|
ordored by Division Headquarters, But all this evidence is only hear-
say. It is but what these persons think thoy heard some three and one |
half yoars age and vhen ther say that Colonel Miynszald said something |
thoy do mhat all persons do: they put their omn interpretation on the l
words.,

Why, as we have said, doesn't the prosccution put on the stand or
make available as a witness the Commanding General of the 14th Division
and the Commanding Gemeral of the Palou Islonds? He can testify vho it/
was that planned this. It surely rasn't Ichikawa, |

The judge advocate hns rskod this commission to find Ichiknwa
guilty of murder beeause he rent over to the Sumida Unit and asked for
a truck. But Ichikawn didn't ask for this truck in his own nome, He
said that his commanding officer, Colonol Miyazaki, was requesting the
use of two trucks,

Division Headquarters order the Sumida Unit to provide the trucks, If
there is any doubt the judge adveecate can call the Commanding General
of the lith Division, Liecutenant General Inoue, or his chief of staff,
Colonel Tada,

Thore should he no dout on this poiht because Lieutennnt Yamamotc
testified that when he returned that night he found the Division Head-
quartera' order on his dosk, This opder road as folloma: "On Sentembe:
18, 1944, nt 1800, the commanding officer of the Sumida Unit will dis-
patch one truck with driver and assistant driver to the Kempeitai and
flr:ca them under the orders of the commandine officer of the Kempeitad,
Seo answer to Q. 75 on the nineteenth day).
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So mwe say that Lieutenant Ichikawn did not do an overt aet when b
roelayed Colonel Miyasald's request for the use of n truck nor did Lie
tenant Ichikawn do an overt aot when he went along to the scene of the|
oxecution. Lieutenant Ichiknwa d4id not pass on any emders that pight,
The only persons to give orders that night were the commanding offie
Colonel Miynsald, amd the officer in aharge of the Firat Dotachment,
Captain Naokomura,

Lieutenant Ichikawa is, as are the other nineteen acoused, charg
with wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforetheught
and without justifiable enuse, that he did assault, strike, kill, apd:
cause to be killed, by shooting with firearms, This is what is nlleg
and this is what must be proved ns to Lieutonant Ichikawa. 3

The ten victims didn't die because Lieutenant Ichikamwa went over
o the Sumidn Unit and askod for the use of trucks, They didn't die
beeause Ichikawn attended the execution,

Gentlemen of the commission, do not allow the judge advocnte to
confuse you. Persons were executed that night and they were killed
because Colonel Miynzaki and Captain Nakamura ordered members of the
Kempeitai to shoot, No one was killed because Lieutenant Ichikawn wns
there or because he held a candle, There must be an overt act and
Iieutenant Ichiknwa did not commit an overt act that night,

We ask thot the commission remember the diference and the dis- |
tinction in the Japanese law between the crime of wounding and the
cripe of murder. On page 149 and on page 48 of Sebald's book, The
Criminnl Code of Japan is cited the case 72 S.C. 9428, which reads:
"The crime of wmounding and the erime of murder are not only not pro=-
vided for in the same article, hut differ in criminal nature, one bein|
o crime agninst 1ife and the other a crime against the person, There-
fore, the two crimes cannot be dealt with as two consecutive acts
falling under the same criminal ecategory,"

But the judge advoeate says in effect, disregard Japanese law eve
if you are trying theme accused for violation of Article 199 of the
Criminal Cede of Japan because you tried and convicted Inoue, Fumio
Furuki, Hidesaku for violatien of Article 199 and those cases have beef
approved. This is prejudicial to the rights of all of these accused,
If the commission 1s to have made avallable to it the review of simila
cases tried by this same commission and sueh aoprovals and reviews nz:
denied to the defense counsel, we maintain that such a procedure is
the prejudice of these trenty nccused, !

We have yet to see the remarks of the convening authority, the
remarks of the Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet, or the ruling of the
Judge Advocate General, Navy Department, on a single of these war
erimes trials here at Guam,

We hold that it is . mest prejudicial, therefore, for the judge
advoeate to call the comnmission's attention to any ruling or any re-
marks of the eonvening authority or the yeviewing authority without
making available the complete reviewm to the defense counsel,

Sueh a vroeedure is more projudicial than the -roeedure sted
by the judge advooate regarding classified matter on the first ny of
the trial, I read from the record of the first day of the trialt "Th
judge advocate requested that the commissien approve the wnrocedute
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wherein classified dispatches are referred to during the course of the
proceedings of this commission, reforence only to the content and suby
otance of theso dispatchos would be made in open court," :

We hold that if this commission is to have available any matter
to be used by thom in determining the guilt or innocence of any or all
of these twenty ncousod that this material should also be made availe
able to defense counscl, and it should be put into evidence,

Lot there be no mistake about the issues in this canse or as to
what the mrosecution must prove, prove beyond a reasonable doubt, In
the case of Licutonant Iehikawn the nrosecution have not proved wha
they alleged and we ask that Lieutenant Ichikawa be found not guilt
and that the commission acquit Ichiknwa, Yokichi,

Then there is Lieutenant Yamamoto, Kasuharu, whom the Judge
advocate characterises as having more kmowledge than he admits, Lieu.
tenant Yamamoto plended not guilty and he took the stand to refute the
innuendoes and the opinions, exagerations, and deliberate falsehoods
that some of these Kempei made in their confessions against the men of
the Sumida Unit, If Lieutenant Yamamoto didn't tell nll it is only
because the judge ndvocate objected to him telling more, Although
Lieutenant Yamamoto's personal declaration is not evidence, the come-
mission heard it and they observed Lieutenant Yamamoto these twenty
some days in court and heard him and saw him on the witness stand,

protect the victims of the execution, instend of trying Colonel Miyne
zaki and Captain Nakamura that doesn't make Lieutenant Yamamoto guilty.

It doesn't give Lieutenant Yamamoto, the adjutant of n transpor-
tation unit, the status and comrand authority and responsibility of
Gonoral Yamashita, because the Judge advocate says so,

The judge ndvocate would further confuse the commission by
all the guilty are not Joined in this trial, Hec would infer that if
the commission would only find all twenty of these accused guilty then
others will be tried nt a 1ater date,

defendant," On page 45 we read this regarding such statutes in erimi-
nal cases: "Here the State is the grantor, swrrendering by agt of
grace its rights to prosecute, and declaring the offense to be no
longer the subject of prosecution. The statute is not a statute of
process, to be scantily and grudgingly applied, but an amnesty, de-
- elaring that dfter a certain time bblivion shall be cast over the
offense; that the offender shall be at liberty to returm to his coun-
» 3and regume his lmmunities as a citizen; and that from henceforth
he may cease to presérve the proofs of his innocence, for the proofs
of his guilt are blot out, Hence it is that statutes of limitation
are to be Iiberally construed in favor of the defendant, not only be=
cause such Iiberility of construction belongs to:all acts of amensty
udpmhntmmth-mu:llum of the statute is a recognd-
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tion and notification by the legislature of the fact that time, while
it gradually wears out proofs of innocence, hng nulq it fixed and
positive periods in which it dest proofs of guilt(<)." Plunkett
of which it said by Lord Broughman (Works, etc,, Edinb, ed, of 1872,
IV 341) that "It can not be too mudh admired for the perfeot appropri-
ateness of the figure, its striking and vohplete resemblance as well
as its raising before us an image previcusly familin® to the mind in
all particulars, except its conhection with the subject for which it 4}
80 unexpectedly but-maturnlly introduced," "Time! so runs this cele-
brated passage, "with his soythe ip his hand, is ever mowing down the
evidence of title; wherefore the wisdem of the law plants in hia other
hand the hour glass, by which he metes out the periods of that possess
sion that shall supply the place of the muniments his scythe has des«"

troyed,"

In other words, the defense of the statute of limitations is one
not merely of technioal process, to be grudgingly applied, but of right
and wise reason, and, therefere, to he generously dispensed, The game
thought is to be found in another great orator, Democathenes, pro Phorm,
ed, Rediske, p., 952: r

"Independently of these views, it must be remembered that delay in
instituting prosecutions is not only productive of exvense to the State
but of peril to public justice in the attenuation and distortion even
by mere natural lapse of memory, of testimony, It is the policy of thd
law that prosecutions should be prompt, and that statutes enforoing
such promptitude should be vigorously maintained, They are not merely
acte of grace but checks imposed by the state upon itself to exnct
vigilant activity from its subalterns, ~nd to secure for criminal
trinls the best evidence that can be obtained. "

It was decided that it was to be Lieutenant Yamamoto and not
Captain Nakamura who was to be the chief offender at this trial,

Let that be the issue, then, Was it Lieutenant Yamamoto who made
pogsible the killing of these victims eor was it Colonel Miyazaki and
his henchman, Captain Nakamura?

Gentlemen of the commission, those missionary spies would have
been killed that night whether or not Lieutenant Yamamoto carried out
Division Headquarters orders and sent over a truck to the Kempeitad,
That wasn't the overt act., That isn't what Lisutenant Yamamoto is
charged with doing. Look at the charges ngainst him, Without hearing
the evidence one would think it was Lieutenant Yamamoto who gave the
orders, he it was who kllled and he it was who had a duty to protect .
these persons and who failed to control the executioners and failed to
protect the missionardes. And why? All because someone decides to
try Lieutenant Yamamoto instead of Captain Nakamurd for this crime,

But I say to you that unless the evidence shows that Lieutemant
Yamamoto did an overt act, did what he is charged with doing, that you
cannot find him guilty of murder and that unless the evidence shows
Lieutonant Yamamoto, a staff officer of a trgnaportation unit, had a .
duty to protect and a duty to control, that you cannot f£ind him guilty
of neglect of duty, ' C

Not a single witness could testify that Lieutenant Yamamoto did o
single act nt the scene of the exeoution, In fact there is testimopy
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that Lieutenant Yamamoto tried to persuade Colonel Miyasaki not to i
carry out the execution, but that if it was a lawful evecution then 1
was police work and not something that should he done by a member of

the Sumida Unit, a transportation company.

The prosecution introdwced an alleged confession of Lieutenant
Yamamoto into evidence. We weren't even allowed ‘to objeet to the con-
tents of this document., The commission remembers well the dramatic
revelation that the document had been translated incorrectly,

Lieutenant Yamamoto was testifying to the effeat that Colonel Miyd
gaki hnd tapped Namekawa, ono of the two Sumidn Unit men, on the shouly
der and said: "This guy will shoot."

Lieutenant Sano, a prosecution witness testified on the sixth day
of the trial to Question 285: "Weren't the men of the Sumida Unit who
were at the scene under the command of Lieutennnt Colonel Miyaznlkil"

An gwer by Lieutenant Sano: "Yes, they were," Captain Nakamura,
another prosecution witnees, nnswered that Coclonel Miynzaki was in
command at the scene of the execution, See answer to Q, 205 on the 4Lth
Doy, HNokamura testified that Commanding Officer Miyanzaki gnve the or-
der to shoot to the Sumida Unit men, See anawer to Q, 288,

Imaizumi, Kelshiro, n prosecution witness, testified on the 1llth
day of this trial that Lieutenant Yamamoto refused to approve the order
of Colonel Miyazaki that Sumida Unit men shoot, Licutenant Yamameto
also refused to assent to the order of Captain Nakamura that the Sumidc
Unit men shoot, See answers to Q. 120, 122, 123, 125,
|

Imaizumi, Keishiro, a prosecution witness, testified on the 12th
day that Colonel Miynzaki ordered the two men from the Sumida Unit to
step forwnard, See Answers to N, 294 and 295,

Kumagad, Satoshi, a prosecution witness,testified that Lieutenant

Yamamoto did mot shoot at the scene, See answer to N, B4, Neither di
Yamamoto hold n candle (See answer to Q. 86). Xumngni testified that
Lieutenant Yomnmoto did not do anything at the scene. See answer to |
Q. 92,

Egure, Shigeru, testifyin~ cs n witness in his own behalf, on
cross-examinntion said that Colonel Miynsaki ordered Lieutenant Yamamot!
to have Sumide Unit men shoot, but Lieutenant Yamamoto refused. See
answers te Q. 129, 130, 131,

This Colonel Miynzmaki directly toldthe men nearby, "You shoot|"
See answer to-Q. 133, and only one or two men stepped forward,

These men, as far as Ezure know,at that time were only men from
Ahother unit., He didn't know from what unit, See answer to Q. 187,

Lieutenant Yomamoto took the stand as a witness in his own behalf
on the 18th day of the trial, He explained how it was that ho came to
go with one of the trucks to the scene of the execution, He was
troubled that he had received no written orders from the Division Heade
quarters for the use of the truck by the Kempeital that night; so he
wont out to the highwey about thirty meters from his office where the
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trucks were supposed to be, There he met Colonel Miynsaki who began
to berate him because the truck nas 1ate., Ilieutensmt Yamamoto told
Colonel Miyasaki that no written orders had as yet come from the Divi-
sion Headouarters for the use of the trucks by the Kempeitai, Celonel
limuumnrruprmtnmuauhmtnmtomttumrnahﬂ
such a detail and when Lioutenmant Yomamoto persisted in this matter
Coloenl Miyasaki ordered him to stop quibbling and come nlong, See
answers to Q. 26 through 36, inclusive,

Lieutenant Yamamoto testified that there were two drivers, two
assistant drivers, one orderly, and himself there on the highway from
the Sumida Unit, So there were only the regularly assigned Sumida Unit
men to the trucks and Lieutenant Yomamoto's erderly, seeing him leave
his office,follomed along with him,

It wos on orders of Colonel Miynsaki that the two trucks started
out., Colonel Miynsald took complete charge of the trucks and the dri-
vors, This was in accordance with the usual Division Headquarters'
orders when a truck was assigned to another unit, See answer to Q, 39;
‘-2' 75.

"hen the trucks stopped, Colonel Miyasaki,completely in charge, -
ordered three Sumida Unit men to remain with the two trucks and every-
one else to follow him, Lieutemant Yamamoto, his orderly, and a Sumidn
Unit man by the name of Nomekawe, followed along, See answer to Q. 46,
When they stopped in a clearing Miynzaki again giving the orders, touche
ing Namekawa said: "We will ask the Sumida Unit men to help in the
execution,”™ See answer to Q. 50,

Lieutenant Yamamoto, shocked at this, said to Coloenl Miynsaki: "I
nust refuse tha® men from my unit, which is a transportation unit, par-
ticipate in accordance with your request. Ewen though I am the adjutant
of the Sumida Unit, I have no authority to order Sumida Unit men to
assist you,"

Miyasaki was to have his way, and notwithstanding the repeated
objectionh of Lieutenant Yomamoto, Colonel Miynsaki, touching Namekawa!s
shoulder, said: '"This is by order of Division Hendquarters, Do you
men to say yoy are not going to obey those Division Headquarters orders?
Fo are in the face of the enemy, you fool," Miyngaki then pushed Hame-
kawa forward, telling him to shoot. See answers to Q, 52, 54, 55, 56,

Licutenagt Yamamoto testified he did not fire por did he shoot, nor
did he kill, nor did he receive orders to shoot, nor did he kill anyone
that night, See answers to Q, 64 and 65, '

Neither was Lioutenant Yamamoto ip Uh-urga of the execution or in
charge of the Sumida Unit men that night at the execution,

To Q, 66, Lisutenant Yamamoto ! "The men from the Sumidn
Uuitwho-mthnrethntmhtm”hmmmunmthqnm
under the command of Colomel Miynsaki, On that night I was placed in
such a pn:u.:lu as to be subordinate o the exacting erders of Colonel

Remomber Licutenant Yamamoto was the adjutant of a transportation
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battalion of 800 men, He didn't even kmer Kavapuchi wns n Sumdida
Unit man that night, Karaguchi had boem assigned to htgba.t the Nem-
peital and came undor the command of Colonel Miynzakd, ddd the
drivers and assistant drivers who came with the two tmucks Shat night,
So did Lieutenant Yamamoto nnd hia orderly, :

Since Lieutenaht Yamamoto did mo ovemt aot that night and sinre
he protested theuse of Namekawa, he, licutemant Temamoto, 1s guiltlopsy
There has boen no showing that e ¥nd weddge toward those viotins,
Quite to the contrary he falt only pity for them, :

Lieutenant Yamamotp wap in o precardous situation that night,
He i1s in just as precarious a situntfon now,

Because he did pothine to aid in the execution, did no overt aet
and had no criminal intemt, his conscionce is clear. He knows he is.'
guiltless, You gontlement of* the commission, reaffirm his faith in
Justice, in Ameprican justice, Find him not guilty on all counts,
Acquit him fully of the charges.

The Japanesc counsel have covered so fully the lack of evidence
against the othor accused, Ishiyamn, Sugimoto, Ichimiyn, Osaki, Yokoe
yoma, Kawaguchi, Hidaka, Ito, Nakamura, and Okamurn, that I will omly
add that it would be in keeping with the policy of trial of war erimi-
nals if you acquitted all twenty of thesc accused, particularly since
there has been no evideonce that a single one of these accused did am
overt act, whereby nny of the ten victims came to his death,

This execution was earried out by a military organization headed
by Colonel Miyasaki, who was the duly ordered commranding officer, Of
the twenty accused here being tried for the execution there are only
two very junior officers, one the adjutant of the Sumida Unit, Firgt
Lieutenant Yamamoto, Kazuharu, and the other the adjutant of the Keme ‘
peitai, Second Lieutennnt Ichikawn, Yokichi, The other eighteen
aceused are all enlisted men, most of them conscripted for the war apd
therefore vory low rated enlisted men. In Section 1079(b), Wigmore
on Evidence, 3rd edition, Extrajudicial Admissions, the rule of evie
dence is based on 1 question purely of eriminal law: "Where the ale
leged conspiraey was carried into effect by the ancts of a mob or other
riotous nssembly or seditious society, the defendant whose inatigation
and leadership are nroved becomes liable for the mob's acts, and thus

the conduet nnd statements of any and all persons in the mob, whether
identified or not, become a proper subject of consideration; and n
field of somewhat indefinite extent s oponed, "

And what of this present case, The evidence is clear that Colp=
nel Miynzaki and not any of these twenty nccused was the person at
whose instigation the axecution was carried out and his leadership
was never questioned, because he wae the commanding officer of the
Kompeitai, These twonty, with the exception of the two lieutenants,
are all enlisted men, All twenty defendants were subjost to Colomel
Miyngoki's orders, He was the loader, Colonel Miyasaki was 1iable
For tho acts of these defendnnts, if they did act, and the conduct apd
statements of apy and/or all twenty defendants are o propet subjest of
consideration as to Colenel Miygsaki, but not ns to eagh other,

)




(.

In Section 1076, Wigmore on Evidence, Wigmore explains very clearly
why neither confessions or testimony are admitted agninst o co-defendnnt

unless theres

"the situation has often heen obscured by the circumstances that the
co-party's admissions are received against himself, and that they sare .some~
times received nlso inst the other co-party because of n privity of ob-
ligation or of title (on the prineiple of PP 1077 £f), But it is not by
virtue of the person's relation to the litigntion that this can be done; it
must be because of some privity of title or of obligation, which would
indeed have ndmitted the statements even had the declarant not been mnde n '

co-party,"
Wigmore

Rattenbury and Stover {Notable British Trinls Series in 1935: "I will tei]

the jury now,

understand it, Members of the jury, documents written by A in the absence
of B are never evidence against B, merely because B happens to be sitting
in the dock and 1s being tried with A, Statements made by A under these
ircumstances

when evidence of this sort is being given, whether for the prosecution or
defense, of some statement mode by one of the persons in the absence of the
other, you will understand that statement is evidence in regard to-- I do
not say for or ngainst, it does not matter -- that particular person who
made the statement, It is not evidence against his or her co-defender,”

", he principle is particularly i1lustrated by the rule in regard to t
adnissions of a j -here it has always been
conceded that the admissions of one is receivable against himself only;
(eiting in footnote 10 the following cases: England 1664, Tong's Case,

Kelyng 18,

Cannda:
adul tﬂr’} *

United States: Hawaii: 1902, Terr, v. Castro, 14 Haw, 131 (adultery),

Iowa: 1924 State v, Martin, 199 Towa, 643, 200 N,7, 213 (adultery),

Massnchusetts: 1868, Com, v. Thompson, 99 Mass, 444,

Minnesota: 1928, State v, Allison, 175 Minn, 218, 220 N,7, 563,

Penn, :1930, Com, v, Epps, 298, Pa, 377, 18 Atl, 523,

Philippine Islands: 1903, U,S. v. Caligan, 2 P.I. 433; 1908, U.8, v,
Paete, 6 P,I, 105; 1906, U,S. v, Monalo, 6 P,I, 364; 1098, 0.5, v,
Sstabillo, 8 P.I, 67; 1922, U.S, v. Vega, 43 P.I, 41; 1924, People

v. Tn

Peopl

F.I.
thus where A"

is allowed to he read ngninst A, under express instructions to the jury not

to consider 4

tice of omitting the name of B, or any other co-defendant, in the proof of
the confession,"” Footnote 11 states that the cases are collected post parn-
graph 2100 because they are concerned primarily with the principle of com-

pletenesa, th

In the pocked supplement P,1076 on nage 31, there are listed seven
cases where the co-parties or confessions of a co-defendant were evoluded,

Canada:

(prior examination of officers in Bankruptcy Court held inmndmissible

in proceeding
Canada:
178 (personal

United States: Federal: 1939, Napier v. Bossard,

24 467 (death
deposition of

¢luded after cuoting portion of Paragraph 304 of the New York Civil

O O ,"'", -"

is a privity of obligntion or of title,

cites the ruling of Mr. Justice Humphrey in the Trial of Mrs,
if you like, but I have not a shadow of doubt they theroughly

are not admissible agninst B for the same reason, Therefore,

Ontario: 1931 Harris v, Harris (1931) 4D.L,R, 933 (divorce for

buche, 46 P.I, 28; 192, People v. Manalo, 46 P,I. 572 1925,
e v. Durante, 47 P.I, 654, 658; 1924, People v. Orenciada, 47
I70, 975; 1927, People v, Bande, 50 P,I, 37 (murder).) and

8 confession for example, implicates also a co-defendant B, it

t as affecting B; and some Judges at one time favored the prac-
ere discussed,"

Ontario: 1941 Re Fox Johnson & Co, (1942)(HC) 2 D,L,R, T84

against corporation),
Manitoba: 1941, Birsmeck v, Hollingsworth, (1941) 4 D.L.R, :
injuriep; Co-defendant's answers on diunworg. not ndmissible
2nd C,C.A,, 102 Fed,
of strian struck by taxi, which had collided with trusk;
driver, defendant, takeh at instance of nlaintiff u-m;'
Frnot-
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Act; L. Hand J,, 468, Literally, it is true that Ragone's deposition was
that of a party thken at the instance of an adverse party; but plainly it
was not competent againat Bossard as an odaigsiony nnd, if competent ~t all,
it was as testimeny, for Ragone was not o party to the controversy in whioch!
it wos used -~ the plaintiff's suit against Bossard"), :

Arisonn: 1940, Bristol v, Moser, 55 Aris. 185, 99 Pne, 24 706, 709
(Lockwood, J.:"It 48 true that the admission of one defendant may be offer |
ed in evidence or gainst a co-defendant and whose interest in the trans- |
action is the same, but when the interest or 1iabildty of the co=parties is !
several, the admission of one is got competent agaitist the others"),

Iowa: 1940, Graham v, Willinms, 228 Ia, 1261; 293 N.F, 562 (to estab-
lish ownership of note and mortgage; admission of nominal party defendant,
after he had lost all right,title and intefest in noto and mortgnge, held
Apodmissible ngninst co-defendant).

New Tork: )944, Framer v. Trovellers' Insurance Co,, Misec,, 46 N.Y,
Suppl, 24 167, {ﬁonamrth, J.:'"An ndmission by one defendant, not
Joined in interest with the others, is evidence against the one that makes
it but not against the others who heppen to be co-defendants, Under sugh
eiroumstances, the court must instruct the Jury ns to its Yimited use and
effect; "eiting above text),

Puerto Rico: 1935, People v, Coto, 48 P,R. 142 (admissions of a coe |
defendant not testifying, excluded),
New Hompshire: 1946, State v, Capp,--N.H., 46 Atl, 2d 119 (stealing
| lumber; declaration of eo-defendant m~de months after offense was committed.
and not in the presence of defendant, excluded).

. C.M,0, 51945, p, 192, reiterntes the law regarding conviction by don
| fession: "It is n well estahblished principle of ds% that an nccused may no.
be convicted on his extrajudicinl confession alens, Independent evidence As
required to corroborate the confession (N.C.&B,, Secs., 149, 176; C.M.0. 2-
1943, 66, 68; 1-1942, 118, 164)."

! Gentlemen of the commission you have listened mtiently throughout the
| twenty-some dnys of this trial, the trial of twenty little men for a war

| erime, You have heard the prosecution witnesses, three of them officers,

| all trying Bard to abgsolve themsolves of any responsibility for the inci-

| dent and perfeetly willing to let these twenty little men shoulder all the
| responsibllity,

! The judge advoeate sgrees that the real oulprit isn't being tried for
this offense, Colomel Miynzaki, the Judge advoeate says, is dead, so he
cannot be tried; amd Captain Nakamura hns alrendy been tried for two other
crimes and sentenced to hand, nnd therefore he isn't being tried. And so

| we try twenty little men for other men's crimes, Some of these twenty were
| not even at the sceno,

As to these twenty accused, they are not the war eriminala, They wer«
| but twenty innocent persons who had no erimina) intent, most of them boys

who had been conseripted for the war, These twenty all moved at the com= '
mand of Colonel Miynsaki, They had no malice; they had no criminal intent, | |
Many of these boys hnd come to know the missionaries and 1iked them, They |
“ looked upon the mission~ries ns their friends. |
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Do you think that they could, therefore, willingly, vith premeditatiop|

and malice aforethought kill them?

Some of these twenty acoused may have been ordered to shoot, Yes;
Some ‘were ordered to shoot, But nome of them have been proved to have. shet
Why? Because although they were ordered to shoot they just couldn't ki1l '
their frienda and they avoided deing so, Pistols jammed! There mere mis-
fires! The evidence shows that Colonel Miynsaki was forced to shoot mony
of the victims and that Warrant Officer Nakamura shot others, !

Because of the lack of evidence, nnd in koeping with the poliey ﬁ
punish only the war criminals, the persons who ordered the killings and who
were responsible, we ask that the commission acquit all twenty accused |

5 égﬁr
- CARLSON, i

Commonder, U.S, Naval Reserwe,
Counse! for the Accused,




CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THE PROSI'C'TTION
Dolivered by
Licutcnant Comm~nder Joscph A, Rogan, USN.
24 March 1948

If it pleasc the commission:

As the judme ndvoezto ndvised the commission in his ovening stateront
though there are many defendants, their number would not complicate the
ense and their number has not.

It was the contontion of the prosccution that all twenty of those
nccused wore guilty of the murder of tho Honmdonoro fomily and of the six
unfortuncte missionarics, But the proof did not meot the expectations of
tho nrosccution, and in tho casc of two of the accused, Hoyashi and
Sagara, it is oxtromcly doubtful that their guilt hcs boen establishod
beyond a roasonable dout, Howover, thorc is no doubt in the minds of th
prosocution concerning tho guilt of tho romaining eighteon, Their guilt
hes boon cstablished and tho prosccution has no qualms in askine tho
commission by its findings to confirm thoir guilt and to hold them rospon
sible for their nctions on that 18th day of Scptombor, 1944.

In o erimina)l prosccutien, =s this cosc is, the obligation is upon
the prosceution to prove its ensc boyond n ronsonablo doubt, What is a

reasonablo doubt? Thero is olmost ns mugh confusion in tho law concorn-
ing a propor definition as thoro is eoncorning the torm maliec, Accordin
to Black's Law Dietionary, Third Editien, "It docs not mcan a moro pos-
aible doubt, bocausc cvorything rolating to human affairs, deponding on
moral ovidenco, is opon to somo possiblo or imaginary doubt," Thus proo.
'boyond a reasonablc doubt! is not beyond 2l possihle or imaginary doubt
but such proof as procludces cvory roasconable hynothcsis oxeont that which
it tonds to support. A "rcasonablc doubt" is such o doubt as would eausc
a roascnable and prodont man in tho graver and morc important affairs of
1life to pansc and hositatc to net uvon the truth of tho mattor charged.
But a roasonablo doubt is not o morc nossibi'ity of innoconec, nor a en-
pricc, shadow or apcculntion as to innmoconoc not arisine cut of the
ovidonco or tho want of it," (Stoto v, Forkins, 21 N.M, 135), A ronson-
ablc doubt is such a doubt as an uoright man might ontortain in an honcst
invostigation aftor truth, ( Potorson v. Stato, 47 Ga, 524(5). A "rcoson-
ablc doubt is onc for which a roason con be givon, (Louis Ding v. U.S5,
(C.C.A.) 246 F, 80)., Somo jurisdictions say, "Tho torm ncods no dofi-
nition," (324 I11, 224), And in Oklaohoma, ~ court has said, "Tho ox-
p{ngﬂ.on 'roasonablo doubt' is its own host dofinition," (12 A.R.L, Cr,
417).

In the proscnt casc thoro ean bo no roasonable doubt axecopt in tho
cosc of Sogarn and Hoyashi that all thosc acecusod Were members of an oxo-
cution party.

By this timo the commission is quito familinr with tho ofton-usod

definition of murdor, From Navnl Courts nnd Bonrds comcs the simplost onr
Sootion 53: "Murder is tho unlowful killing of a human boing with maliec
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aforothobight.” Yhat does malice mean? Malico is the doing of a wrong=
ful nct ihtontionally, without just cause or cxcuse, (Nelson v, Nelson
(C.C.A.)296 F, 369), Malice in the law of murdor, means that condition
of mind vhich prompts one to take tho life of another without just
cause or provocation, (State v, Moyniham 93 N.J, Law 253), In the
definition of "murder," malice aforcthought oxists where tho porson
doing tho act which causos death has an intontion te causc doath or
griovious bodily harm to any nerson (whother tho person 1s actually
killed or not) or to commit ony folony whatover, or has tho knomledge
that the act will probably cause tho death of or griovious bodily horm
to some person, althoogh he doca not dosirc it,

or ovon nishos that 1t
MLE&"]&_EM- (Steph. Crim, Die, 144) The words "malice aforo-
thought" long ago acquired in law a scttled meaning, somewhnt difforent

from the popular one. In thoir legal scnse they de not import an
actunl intontion to kill tho dodcased. The idea is not spite or male-
volencd to the docoasod in particular, but ovil design in gemoral, the
dictate of o wieked, dopraved and malignant heart; not promeditatod
poersonal hatrod or revenge tomords the person killed, but that kind of
unlawful purpesc which, if perscvered in, must produco mischief,

(Statd v, Pilo, 49 N,H, 399, 6 Am, Rep. 533), Surely in this case, the
commidsion eAn reecognize that the unlamful purpose was persovered in
and the mischief, to use a very mild word, was producecd,

As the prosecution expleinoed in its opening statement, no attempt

be made ‘to point out tho actual porsons who fired the fatal shots
into the bound bodies of the victims, and no attompt was made. But
merely because tho prosecution witncssos did not give the names of the
actunl woapon usors, there has been no failuro in the proof of the
gilt of thesc oightoen accused, It was the contontion of the prose-
cution; ns it 41s how, that all of thesc nccused arc guilty of murder
oven though somo of thom only fired tho shots. Wero only tho persons
who firod the guilty ones, thonthere would have been little point in
indicting all cighteen of these nccused,for the ovidence is clear that
not all of these nccused used weapons, No, they didn't all use wenpons,
but thesc eighteon are all just as guilty as though they had each put
a pistol or rifle bullet into the hecds of the ten victims, For all
eightoen were members of an exocution party,

As the commission well knows, one can be guilty of an murder
though ono uses no weapon at all, and one may even be found guilty of
murder though the porson be not oven prescnt at tho scenes of the mur-
der, Over the pasaage of years the courts and the legislntures have by
their actions showod that any partieipation, hovever slight, in a mur-
der renders one responsible for that murder. There is no such thing in
the law as slight or little participation when it comes to being guilty
in relation to murder. If one im any woy alds or abets in a murder one
is guilty, To speak of slight partieipation in a murder is ns incone
gruous as to say that an cnimal is slightly pregnant, It is all or
nothing when it cemes to being guilty. The degreo of perticination may
only be considored in relation to the amount of punishmenk te bo ase
signed, after the findings of guilty. And this is corr for life is
procious the world over, and no one has the right to take life and es-
cape unscathed from punishmont rogardless of the reasoms that motivated
them in tho act of uvhlawfully taking life.
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From the argumcnts of defensc counsel, they would have the cour
believe that only the woapon usors should be found guilty. And why?
Beeause thoy aren't kmown, The prosecution isn't interested in which
of these accusod used wonpons, and it is fortunate that the nprosecution
thoory is nét so limiting ns the dofense., For who used meapona? Cer-
tainly not thesoc accusod, Thoy have said it from the stapd. Thoy hawve
said it in thoir statements, Thoy have said it in the arguments of
dofense counscl, Certainly none of these accused fired the fatal shots
Anyvone definitely on the firing line was rolioved by some persons un-
known, Yokoyama shot, but he missed. Ishiyoma's pistol miafired,
Homever, it has nover been the prosccution's belief that only the toame
can be considored as boing guilty of the murder., All cighteen of thesc
accused aro guilty and so they should be found, because they werc nll
mombers of an exccution party.

Let me rond to the commission from 26 American Jurisprudepece;
pp 197 and 198: "According to the commen-law refinements, partiocipante
in erime arc eithor principals or aeccssoriecs, Principals arc divided
into tmo dogrees, and accossories, dopending upon whether their parti-
cipation procodes or succeeds tho faect of doath, arc denmominated acces-
sorice beforc the faect, and accossoriocs aftor the faet, Principals of
the first dogroo arc persons who do thc homicidal act, cithor in per-
gon or throuygh an innocont agoent, and principals of the second degroe
are thoae who are present, lending thoir countenance, aid, oncourage-
ment, or other mental aid, while another does tho act. Accessories in-
clude persons who in some manner are connected with a crimo, cithor
before or after its porpetration, but who are not oroscnt at the time
the crime is committod, Howaver, the common-law distinctions botween
principals in the first and sccon? degroes and neccssories beforo the
fact have boen vory generzlly nbolished by statutes which rrovide tha'
all persons concorned in tho commiseion of any felchy, whether direets
ly committing the nect or aiding and abotting its commission, although
not prosont, shall be indicted, tried, and punished as principals,
The early rules, however, as woll as the statutory modifieations there
of, have boon applied in prosecutions for homicide. Under the modern
law, he who is present at a homicide, aiding and abetting, is guilty
of the homicide as a prineipal., He is a principal cven though another
does the killing. Prescnecc, cither actunl or construttive, where
couplod with an aiding or obetting, n counseling, inciting, hiring, ot
in any manner assisting in the commission of a felony will make o per-
son o prineipal in the offense.,”

Mr, Kuwata, in his argumont, quoted from 26 American Jurispru-
dence, Section 60, that, "In the absence of preconcert or conspiracy,
the inactive presenco of tho accused, rith intent to render aid if
nocossary, is not sufficient.” But the remainder of that sentence
goes on, "although in somo cases, the rule is qualified by holdine the
inactive prescnce, with intent to ronder aid Af necessary, sufficient
if the orinecipal knew of the presence with intent to aid," 12 A,L.R,
282, And who can doubt that all present were aware that each one
would aid as was nocessary.

"A1d" and "obet" are ncorly synonymous terms as generally used;
but strictly speaking, the former term does not imply guilty knowlodge
or felonious intent, whereas the word "abot" includes knowledge of the
wrongful and counsel and encouragoment in the commission of
g mmm,mt'l Law Dictionary, Third Edition, People v. Dolo,
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Section 550 of the U, S, Criminal Code exemmlifies the statements {
I made above, that the common law view has been changed. It states:
“Whoever directly commits any nct constituting an offense defined in
any law of the United Stntes, or aids, abets, counsels, commands, ine
duces, or procures its commission, is a principal,”

Those who advise, encourage, nid, or abet the killing of another
are as gullty as though they toke the person's life with their own
hands." (Johnsen v, U.S, 157 U.S. 320),

— The principles of law in this case are as have been given above,
and the commission should utilize these orinciples in arriving 2t thel
findings,

! In all cases the law is usually clenr, but the difficulty comes
about through fitting the facte to the law,

This commission has heard many cases, In some, the deeds have
been even stranger than the murders complained of in this case., In
others, the proof haos been more direct and of a greater compelling
nature, but this crse should be viewed on its own facts and the com=
mission should not view it through jaded eyes.

What are the facts in this c2se? Simply that eighteen or more mer
went out one evening with the exprces design of unlawfully executing °
ten individunls, And they accomplished this design. As h~s been
| pointed out by my collengue, Mr, Kenny, they all had knowledge of what
! vas to be done and they all nided in some manner. Some cry, like Yamo
. moto and Uchidn, that they went alonmg without knowing what was involve |

in the going., The commission, as military and nawval officers of tany

years service, ean readily understcnd from their own expericnce how
, untrue is such o claim, Ipdividunls, much less members of the militar:
| are invarianbly curious and it is most unlikely that either Yomamoto or

Uchida moved very far that night without assunging their curicsity,
The commission is not bound to beliewe Yamamoto and Uchida merely be-
couse they exercised their prerogntive to be witnesses in their own
behalf, In the case of Uchida, he at least was on the truck containim
Sano and Miynszaki; and as the evidence showed, severzl times during the
ride Miynsaki eautioned all present not to let the missionaries know
that they were going to bo executed. Eesure, one of the accused, tosti-
fied to this, It is most probably that Uchida knew, ot least from
this, what was involved.

Yamamoto was an officer concerned with the despatching of over onr
_ hundred and fifty trucks., The EKempeltal was only one hundred meters
| away from the Sumida Unit, yet Yomamoto would have you believe that it
was his concern over one truck that led *him to accompany the execution
; party, for one of the two trucks had already been assigned to the Kem-
| peital, Does this seem credible to the commission? In his statement,
Yamamoto wrote down that he requested permission from Miynzaki to
accompany the party, From the stand he claised that he went along only
because ho was ordered by Miyagaki, Yamamoto knew what was involved
before he ever left the Sumida Unit, for he told his orderly, Kumagni,
that they were going to escert splea, It is most probable that Yama- ‘
moto knom that the execution was to be porformed and he desired to .par- |
ticipate, else why should he volunteer to accompany the clready large '
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execution party and bring Sumida men with him,

In juiging a case of this kind, where the only witnosses are fel«
low nationnls of the nccused, the commissicn ean hardly oxpect a2 com=
plete and sccurate account of the doings of encn of the accused, We
produced many witnesses, nearly all of whom wore present that night 4in
Septomber, Thoy testifled, but not ns ful'y as they might have, Nokn=
mura surclv ployed o more importont role in the exccutlon than he waa
willing to admit from the stand, Yot he told the truth, when the tell-
ing didA't involve himself, for he wns corroborated by other witnesses;
and from Naokamura you hear nothing of Yamamote's supposedly brave stand
cgninat Miyasaki,

The defense has asked why weren't Sano and Imaizumi amd the other
Japanesc witnosses also tried for their participrtion? Vhy try Esure,
the orderly, and not Sano, the officer. And if Uchida, the orderly of
Nokamura, is to bo tried, why not Imnigumi, the orderly for Miynzaki?
We ngrec thot as far as agtions are concerted they might all well have
been tried, Sano and Imnigzumi could have been tried for they, nlong
with Naokamura, are nlso reaponsible for the murder, for they also alded
end abetted, But if anyone was to be punished for the murders, as
indeed we hopc these eighteon will be, the vrosecution must olaee its
cascs before the commission., Sano and Imaisumi vwere not included as
sgcused becnuse they ndmitted the facts and the nrosecution needed wite
nossos, And after all, isn't any question of their guilt complutely
irrelovant? Saying others are guilty, and wo admit they are, in no way
contradicts our claim that these eighteen who are accused are also
guilty. This is surcly not a case vhen tho elaim of gnilty can only be
raised agoainst persons not present in court, No, vwe admit that others
are equally guilty, but we also insist that these eighteen nre not
thereby excusod, There were no spectators in connoction with this ease.
They were all membors of an execution party,

Once aogain the elaim of "superior orders" has been ralsed, as it
is in nearly all of theso trials. We hrnwve admitted that superior orders
wore involved, for Miynszaki was o liecutenant colenel and we do beliewe
that the idea of the exocution came from the hendquarters of Lieutenant
General Inows, But superior ordors, as the commission mell knows, is
no defense in a war crimes trial. It vmas not accepted in Nuremberg, it
was not accopted im prior trianls beforc this commission, and it should
not be accepted hero, It is an olomont to be considered, not in the
findings, but in tho sentences to be allocated,

SCAP rules provide: "The official pesition of the accused shnll
not absolve him from responsibility, nor be cohsidered in mitigation of
punishment, - Purther, actien pursuant to ordors of the accused's super-
for, or of his govermmept, shall not constitute a defeonhse, but may be
considered in mitigatien of punishment if tho commissibn detormines
that jdstice so requires.," Noto from this that there is no statement
that superior prders of themselves arc A defense, There arc no
qualifying words; tho statement is clear, Superior orders nre no
dofonse,

In this ease the accused cannot even elaim that they didn't know
that the order was illegal, The missionarics were in the custody of
the Kempeitaj and had boen for some time, The members of the Kempeitad
had guarded »&nd Commander Oarleon even says were fricndly to
them, Tho mombefs of the Kempeitad knem with vhom they were dealing
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and they also know tho reason for the exceutlon. The renson given for
the exccution wes not that the missionarice were splos or dangorous
but thnt ~n American landing was imminen* and therefore the mission-
aries should ba cxecuted,

Imnisuml tostifind: "Q. 25. Lieuterarni Colonmel Miyazoki sald
the folloving: !Tho American forces have landed om Peleliu ~nd con-
ditions arc such that they may nttempt a landine on Babelthucp. By
ordors of Division Headquarters the missionarics will bo executed.'™

Ezurc sald in his confession: "%e were instructed vhat to take
in regard to the incident of the murder of the missionarios."

Sugimoto in his statement said: "We more told by Miyasaki we arec

going to dispose of the missicnaries and not to tell anyone else of
this affair,”

Yokoynma said in his statement that at the assembly they were
told to shoot tho missionaries in the bock of the hond.

Ichiknma in his stnotement snid: "I recall that on that day, by
ordors of the commanding offider, the noncommissioned officers and
deputy Kempeis of the headquarters were assembled and the commanding
officer gave words in rogard to the losing battle and one's attitude
toward this, and the disposal of the missionaries;”

They all know the reason for the execution and they must have
known that the order wns impropor, And as a concluding factor,
remember that two of the victims mere children under the age of fives-
ope so young ita mother carried it on her back, How could an order to
executo a baby bo legal?

The refusal of courts and commissions to anccept th-ot defense is
proper, for rarely are crimes committed directly b+ high ranking offi-
cers not acting through subordinates, and quite possibly, if the sub-
ordinates exeroiscd duc discrotien, oven though the choice might have
boen hard, the erimes would not have been committed., Let the commis~
sion remomber their plea of superior orders, But let tho commission
also romember that Ichikavn and Yamamoto mere officors and in the par-
ticulnr onse of Ynmamoto, since he was of o different unit, he did haw
somc discretion. Hemember hor Uchida and Ezure claimed that Miyngaki
would not give them orders dircctly, but only through their officers?
And yot Yamomoto claimed that when it dome to the Sumida men, he mas
ignored and the ordors given directly by Miyasaki to privates in a
different unit, Ve hold nith Ezure and Uchida that in the Japanese
army, as in the American armed forces, whore there is an intermediate
officer present, the scenior officer does not deal directly with pri-
vates, and, therefore, Yamamoto, by saying, You and you," and "It ean':
be helpod, Nameckawa," surely neither controlled the Sumida men nor pro-
tected the vietims, He was the senlor officer present of the Sumida
mon and he didn't have to follow the directions of the Kempeitail leader

In this case, the prosecution has no qualms in stating that all
eighteen of thesc accused are guiltye-all except Hayashi and Sagara.
Lieutenant Kenny pointed out what the evidence showed concerning their

o8scnoo their deeds, But even more, they can all be found guilty,
E:r ir W% else, and there were other things, thoy all acted ns
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guards that night, Imcisumi told the commission, and hc mas corrobor-
ated by the accuscd themsclves, that Miyazaki had ordered that the
prisonore rere o bo guarded and they vorc not to be pormittod to os=
cope., Thia aiwcac would be sufficiont to conctitute them aidors and
abettore, and thin, ccunled with 2ll that —cnu befere, 1s sfficlont to
varrant =nrt “ho prosceution urges, ¢ findin: of gallty of all eightee:

It wns clienrly intondod by tho Potadam !cclaration of 26 July
1945, whereoin it states, "....stern justicc shall be meted out to all
t1ar eriminnls, including thosc who have wisited cruelties upon our
priscners...," that n1l aiders and abeottors in the murder of unarmed
prisoners of var and those t~ken prisoner ns an incident to the nar
should be punished. In this conncetion many pronouncemonts have been
made by Alliod statesmen ns to vhom would be punished for war crimes
(Par Criminnls « Their Prosccution and Punishment, by Sheldon Glueck,
p. 191), Both Presidont Roosevelt and Prime Ministor Churchill, on
24 March 1944, roponted .thomsclves in proclaiming punishment for war
eriminala, Churchill included not only the miscreants but also their
agents; and Rooscvelt promised that the subordinntes and function-
arios as woll as the leaders having = mart in nar crime acte would be
punished, But evon bofore this, the United States Senate unanimoualy
adopted tho econcurrent resolution oresented by Senctor Barkley to the
effect that: "The dictatos of h-manity and honorable conduct in rar
demand that this inoscusable slaughter and rmistreatment shall cease
amd that it is the secnse of this Conpress that those guilty, directly
QL_W, of thope criminnl nets shall be held acdountable and
punished in a mahner commonsurate with tho offonscs for which they
are rosponsible." (Cong. Roc. Senate, 9 March 1943, p. 1773).

Can this commission believe that these men ~re not the arents of
misercants? That those men are not the subdrdinctes and functionaries
talked of by Preosident Roosevelt? Thot those mon arc not guilty direc’
ly or indirocetly of the donth of the ten innocont victims, twe of them
children?

We doubt thc commission can sc beliove and we therefore urge that
the commission find these cighteen guilty, Tho de~th of the ten
should be wvindleated, and ng-in the morld should bo advised that
though the deed m~y take place on g daork night in a lomely far amy
place, in time a war erime will and must be paid for,

Y

~Licutenant Gmarﬂur, U. 5. Navy,
Judgo Advoecito,.




U'. S. NAVAL HOSPITAL, NAVY NO. 926
GUAM, M. I.

9 February 1948

To1 Medical Officer, Marine Barracks, Guam, M. I.
Subjt ISHIYAMA, Zenszo Ex-Sgt Major, Imperial Japanese Army

1, The subject man was interviewed and examined at the War
Crimes Stockade at the request of the Marine Barracks Medical
Officer this ‘date, Interviewed with the aid of two interpreters.
No information concerning the request for the examination was
glven.

2., The subject for examination is polite and cooperative.
Face is without change of expression.’

3. According to his own statements he is a L5 year old
Sgt. Major in the Imperial Japanese Arny.. Has been on Guam since
20 January, 1948. He has been confined since September, 1947.
States that he has been charged in connection with an alleged Wnr
Crime. Maintains that he 1s innocent and feels that he will get

a falr trial,

Ls He complains of a tingling sensation over the back of his
neck and the occiput; particularily on the left. This has been
eontinuous since he had typhus in December, 1944. He has no other
physical somplaints. Fis only other complaint is that he is at
times slow in remembering detall and in making up his mind. He
gives a history of being sick enroute back to Japan in January,
1946, Was hospitalized about one week after his ship returned to
Japan. He is unable to state what his illness at that time was.
States that he suffered and could not remember anything for a few
days, These questions were answered promptly and to the point.

5. There is no evidence of delusion or hallucinations. Affect
Ls appropriate to the situation. COrientated. Memory apparently
intact except for a few days aboard ship, 1946. HNo evidence of
defective judgement.

6. General physical and neurclogical examination asre essentially
normai except for alight swaying to the left in the Romberg test and
a sharply demarcated area of hypemasthesia over occiput which extends
almost to the external ear on the right.

7. IMPRESSION: I find no evidence of psychosis or lack of
responsibllity or ability to cooperate in his own defense. Lumbar
puncture and Skull X-Rays are indicated as further workup.

kA

L
Lt. MC, U.S.N.

(Baclogure ¥) "Exhirdt 1"
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\ ! U. S. NAVAL HOSPITAL, MNAVY NO. 926 -
d oA GUAM, M. I. o

9 February 1948

Tot Medical Officer, Marine Barracks, Guam, M. I.
Subj: FUJITANI, Yoshie Ex~Leading Private, Imperial Japanese Apmy

l. The subject named man examined at the War Crimes Stockade
this date at the request of the Marine Barracks Medical Officer,

2. No information was avallable except that the subject tried
to hang himself on 28 Jamary, 1948. He hes been on Phenocbarbital
grains one and half at bed time and grains one half every morning.
Interviewed through two interpretars,

3. The subject 1a polite and cooperative. No show of emotion
on face. He complains only of a tired feeling which has been
persistent about ten days.

L. According to the subject he 18 a 28 year old Leading Private
in the Imperial Japanese Army. He has been on Guam for 28 days
and was under confinement about three months prior to this, He
states that he is confined in connection with the missonary incident.
It is alledized that he took part in a murder. Fis answers are
rather slow but are coherent and to the point. He appears to study
his answer a time 1n order to say exactly what he means. When asked
directly why he tried to kill himself he gave a long detalled
narrative of the events leading up to his being brought to Cuam feor
trial. States that he becams depressed because he was afraid that
he made statements that might implicate friends and that he was
worried about whet his family would think. He denles that he wants
to ki1l himself now. Stetes that he felt "agony" when attempt was
frustrated and does not want to dis now. He persista in his plea of
innocence; that he was a duty soldier on that particular day. Admits
that his rifle was borrowed by another man at the time. He admits
that it 1s loglcal that he is a suspect under the clrcumstances.
Thinks he will receive a fair trial.

5. No evidence of hallucinations or delusions. Affect is in
keeping with the situation. Well orientated. Judgement is apparently
intact now,

6. OGeneral physical and neurologlcal examination are essentially
negative through out.

7. IMPRESSION: It is my opinion that this man is not psychotic
from the findings of this short interview and examination. There is
no evidence of depression or suicidal intent at this time, It is my

impression that he had a reactive depresalon on situational ‘n
factors. o A% Cﬂt’) 3

R. E. SWITZER
Lt. ¥C, U.3.N.
(Baclosure D) "Exhihit 2"




Ty

Nacid en Ve i
diciembre de 155
fila el 7 de diclem

" ..
L™

e

-

L -

P. ELIAS FERNANDEZ

la Mikidn 196

P, LUIS BLANCO SUAREZ

(Ledn ) el 1§ de
read e [a Compa-
e 1008 g marchd a

H, FRANCISCO HERNANDEE
‘n. RERNARDO DE LA ESPRIELLA

Nacld en Pasta (Co ia) el 12 de ages- Nacié en Zaf adajoz) el 28 de

to de 185, - Ingreagen la Compafila el ectubre de 187X Ingresd en la Com-

3 de agosto de 19§60, ghen octubre 4:& pafiia el ¢ do ochbre de 1912, p en
marchd a la Mimidn

- ectubre de 911 marchd a la Hi“II

" H. EMILIO VILLAR
P. MARINO DE LA HOZ

Nacid en V

o del Valle {Awi-
Nacld eu Joakillasde las Matas

fajel 3 de Jril de 1803, —Ingresd
(Ledm ) o 7 agoste de 1880, en la Co el 7 de Dctubre do
Ingresd sn [ pafifa el 17T de 1 g en 1931 i & la Misldn
Julio de 1903 §f marché a La Misidn ‘
en 19

"Exhibit 3."




; i' .. .
1 Navd D .rll'.l‘ﬂlh“r
; .0p21C=pd OFFICE OF THE 'OF NAVAL OPERATIONS
Seriel 3693F21 W. Tom 25, D. C.

Fromg Chief of Nawval Opersations.
Tos Commander Marianas,

Subjs Spanish Priests exeouted by the Japanese.

Ref's {-; ComMarianas disp 160127 of Sep 1947 to CNO.
(b) CNO disp 191546 of Sep 1947 to Comliarisnas.
(e) CNO ser 481P21 of 19 Sep 1947 to Apostolic Delegate,
wesh. D. C.

Enol, (A) Apostolic Delegate Wash D C ltr 272/46-6 of 20 Oot 1847 to
Vadm MeCrea and enclosures thereto,

1. Reference (&) requested information concerning nationality,
citigenship and other information regarding status and positions at time
of doath of six Catholioc Priests. Heference (b) furnished awailable
. information concerning Bernardo de la Espriella. Reference (c) request-
S ed the 4postolic Delegate, Washington, D. C. to ascertain the desired
information concerning the other five priests.

2. Enclosure (A) which is the &postolic Delegate's reply to reference
(e) is forwarded herewith for such action as you may deem appropriate.

J’:':__‘..,...G_-l—-_ |

A i

CCy DOEN L. WeCREL
CinCPac (with 1ist of priests killed b Chisf of Movel Gpusations (aduluiontion)
Jupanese = a part of encl (A)
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UNTTED STATES OF AMERICA

THIE HO. FHOULD BE PREFIXED TO THE ANGWES

3339 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE
WasamcTon 8, D. C

October 30, 1947.

Vice Admiral John L. McCrea, U.S.N.
Deputy Chief of Naval Operations

Navy Department
Washington, B. C.

My dear Admiral McCrea:

With reference to your letter

of September 19, 1947, I &m encloaing information about
the Missionary Fathers Elias Fernandez, Marine de la

Hoz, Emilio Villar, Luis Blanco y Suarez and Francisco
Hernandez. This information was transmttted to me by

the Apostolie Nuncio in Madrid, Spain. If further details
are required, I shall be pleased to assist in attempting

to secure them.

With sentiments of esteem and every best wish, I

‘-remain

» & Nov iy

Sincerely yours,

ol &

Archbishop of Lgodicea
Apostolle Delegate

oA
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RELACIO RELIGIOS0S MUERTOS POR LOS3
JAPONESES

FERNANDEZ GONZALEZ, Elias

Nacio el afio 1880, en Vegamian (Ledn). Profeso el afio 1908, en
Carpion de 1lgs Condes (Palencia) Institucion, en la C a de
Jesms. Despues de sus estudios fue destinado a Santiago de Cuba
(Cuba). E1 afio 1926 pasoc a la Mision de Palaos (I. Carolinas)
siendo asesinado en Korreor (Carolinas).

Se mostro incansable en la evangelizacion de aquellasg islas,
visitando la de leprosos mientras se lo permitieron. Fue preso
por las autoridades Japongses, y asesinado por los soldadols.

Dio su vida llena de meritos y trabajos,.

DE LA HOZ, Marino

Nacio en 1856 en Joarilla de la Mata {Leon}. Profeso el -no
190%, Estudio en cnrriun de los Condes (Palencia) Instituecion,
en la Compafila de Jesus. Fue destinado a la Mision de Palaos
el afo 1921.

Asesinado por los Japoneses en Korreor (I. Carolinas).

Est( misionerc sufrio muchos naufragios en recorrer las
islas del Archiplelago eh pequefias embarcaciones.

VILLAR, Emilio

chio el afio 1893, en Villare jo del Valle (Avila). Profeso
el afio 1911. Novieclado de Carrion de los Condes (Palencla)
\ Instd tucion, en la Compafila de Jesul.
Fue destinado a I. Carolinas el afio 1921, Fué asesinado
por los Japoneses el afio 19l; en Korreor (I. Carolinas),.

BLANCO Y SUAREZ, Luls

Nacio el afio 1896 en Las Palmas (I. Canarias). Frnfugo el afio
1915. Eltyﬂio en (Granada, Cglg. Areneros Madrid y Sarria Barcelona
' EEstitucinn Compania de Jesus., Fue destinado a I. Carolinas el :
| o 19%32.

! Asesinado por los Japoneses en Yap el afno 194l.

HERNANDEZ Y ESCUDERO, Pranclsco

Nacio el 28 de Octubre de 1887 en Zafra (Bada joz). Profesc el
" . afio 1912 en Grapada. Noviciado de Cartuja (CGranada) Institucion

s Companisa de Jesus. Condicion Hermano.

: Marcho a la Mision de I. Marshall y Truk el afio 1921. Fue
destinado a Yap (I. Carolinas) donde hizo votos. Le detuvieron
¥y trasladaron a Palaos, donde despues de muchos sufrimientos,
murio decapitado por los Japoneses, el afio 19l;.
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<~ v "L36¥ OF MEMBERS OF RELIGIOUS ORDERS KILLED BY THE JAPANESE ;
_ Born in 1880, at Vegamisn (Leon). Entered the Order in 1908, at )
Carrion de los Condes (Palencia), Institution: Soolety of Jesus,
After completing his studies he was sent to Santiago de Cuba (Cuba).
In 1926 he was transferred to the Mission of Palsos (Caroline Islands).
Killed at Korreor (Carolines).
He was tireless in hies missionary work and intensely devoted to
the task of bringing the Gospel to the islands, He visited the lepers
as long as he was permitted to do so., He was taken in custody by the

Japanese authoritiees and was killed by the soldiers,

He gave his life full of devotion and work,
DE LA HOZ, Marino

Born in 1886, at Joarilla de la Mata (Leon), Entered the Order
in 1903, Studied at Cartion de los Condes (Palencia). Institution:

Soclety of Jesus, Was sent to the Miession of Palaos in 1921,

Killed by the Japanese in EKorreor (Caroline Islands).

This miselonary suffered many shipwrecks while going sbout in small
boate, visiting the various islande of the Archipelago.

VILLAR, Emilio _

Born in 1893, at Villarego del Valle (Svila), Entered the Order
in 1911, Novitiate at Carrion de los Condes (Palencia), Institution:
Soclety of Jesus.

Was sent to the Caroline Islands in 1921, Was killed by the
Japanese in 1944 at Korreor (Caroline Islands),

BLANGO Y SUAREZ B
~ Born in 1896, at Las Palmas (Oanary Ielands), Entered the Order
. in 1915, Studied at Grandada,-Arenercs College, Ma#rid, and Sarria

; lﬂLop. Barcelona, Institution: Boolety of Jesus. WVas sent to P
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SCUDERO, Pranciso
‘ldn‘ll October 1887, at Zafra (Badajoz), Entered the Order in
1912 at Granada, Novitiate of Cartuja (Granada)., Institution:
Soclety of Jesus, Rank: Brother,
¥ent to the Marshall Islands and Truk Mission in 1921, WVas sent
to Yap (Carolines), where he was ordained, Was taken in custody and taken

to Palaos, where after enduring much suffering he was decapitated by the
Japanese in 1944,

Ty

R el linasste: Spemish
rruﬁ!hm ‘br:.l:‘.r: :ut
« Date: & November 1947
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: n.trmma.1mum1m.t-.'
mrod stolic Administrator of the Roman Catholic
ariate the Carolines, Marianas and Marshalls,

. the Western Paoific, which included Koror Island, h
Iﬂ-ﬂﬂ. Salpan, 'Hnian Rota (not Guam), Truk

hpi.nf—nnnit, and all the lu'-hn}.l fﬂ ﬁu.
My dutial as Apostolic Administrator included the

Eccleslastical administration and direction of Catholic
life and activities in the above named areas,

That from 1935 until January 1946, I served as
Regular Superior of all Jesult Priests and Brothefs
acting as missionaries in the same areas mentioned in
above paragraph. My dutlies as Jesult Superior in-
cluded the immediate administration and supervision of
. the entire Cathollic missionary e reonnel, male, in these
i above mentioned islands. All male missionardes therein
; were Jesuit Priests or Brothers,

erdod u.f combined administrations,
r.,m;-.mnra ESPRIELLA, DE LA HOZ
FERNANDEZ

GONZALEE, and Brotharn HERNANDEZ ¥ ESCUDERO
. and VILLAR gerved und.nr me in this area. The following
A : information concerning them is true and correctt

| Luis BLANCO Y SUAREZ, Catholic Priest, Jesuit, Spanish
- natlonal, resident of Yap Island,

Bernardo DE LA ESPRIELLA, Catholic Priest, Jesuit, Colom-
bian national, resident of Yap Island,

- 4 o Marino DE LA HOZ, Catholic Priest, Jesuit, Spanish nation-
i o al, resident of EKoror Island,

Elias FERNANDEZ GONZALEZ, Oatholic Priest, Jesuit, Spanish
national, resident of Koror Island,

Francisco HERNANDEZ Y ESOUDERO, Catholic Brother, Jesuit,
f } Spahish national, resident of Yap Island,

Emilio VILLAR, Catholic Brother, Jesuit Ipnnhh nltionﬂ.,
resident of lnm Il.'l.lnd. ; $
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Subscribod and sworn to boforo mo this _2'_'__ day of dé—‘# ’
1948, at Guam, Marianas Islands. &’

: |
g Lioned -
Goam, M.I, :
¢ s intorproter, boing duly sworh
on onth , stato that'l uly tod tho above statomont and ogth

to tho tltnnu and that the witnoss thoroupon in my presonco affisod
his signature thoroto.

{ mtu-'t‘.

:[..jt W E‘"% y have roread tho forogoing stato-
mont oconsisting of __4Z pagos in Japanosc, mado and written by mo

on tho _ 4~ m;ur_m,,_.mg?z.
wﬂ;ﬂzmmtummmmnmnmm_ﬁ_

1 is troo and corroct to tho bost of
knowledgo and Bolief; and that no promiscs or throats wore mado at
any time in order to induco mé to make thoso statomonts, \

B W E &
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ATTIDAVIT

- - -

Flace of registration: Kagawa-ken,
Mitoyo—gun, Kii-mura, 1
670-1 banchi
Prosent addresst Same as above 1
TOKD hisa
- Bora on smber 1919

J| In this document I will tell about the case of the shooting of
the Spanish missionaries and others,

1. I believe the incident happened in July or August 1544, It was '
carried out in the middle of a dense forest on Gasupan Hill, |

2. That day in the evening I fell in according to orders at the place '
vhich was the unit provisions storehouse at that time. There we -
received orders from the unit commander (Iientenant Colonel
MIYAZAKI) for the shooting of the missionaries.

3. After receiving the orders I followed along with the rest who
going. VWe got into trucks and departed from the road in froant of
the billet.

4. . We stopped first at the Alkokn Bridge in Gasunpan and as the Spanisgh
\ nissionaries came after we had waited a while, we had them elimd ¥rd
. aboard and ascended ll.#an H11.,.

The trucks stopped at a place about 200 meters from the sceme.
At this place all personnsl got off. A% this time I thought 1
would 1like S0 get away from this somehow or other snd I remained |
behind until the very last, However, as there was one woman (x
thought she was & native of that island) left over, there was no
way out of it and I sccompanied her into the forest.

Be A bhole had already besn dug 2t the sceme,

Following the example of those who arrived firet I faged the
woman toward the holé and had her squat dowm, Then I
oyes and walted for the next order,

elo
i The missionaries were chanting and presently ths unit commander,
4 I believe, gave the order %o fire. Therefore I tock out the model
14 pietel whioch I owmed and fired from a place about two meters
awmy from the woman., However, at that moment I was filled with
smotion, my hand trembled and the tullet missed the weman,

At that time the woman was lihud.hlﬂ'ul;‘.
surprised at the rifle fire, that d suddenly bdegan te ory.

Hearing the oryiag I suddenly felt that 1% was wery pitiful and
vithdrew two or three steps.

'h-mﬂﬂrlntﬂn‘dh-t-{“ﬂlmn
rifle) shot the child with a rifle, At that moment the womsn fell
backwards.

I was the firet %o leave the forest after that and I waited

"Exhibdt 6(a)(1)"




for everyons to come out, {

I make ny affidavit as above.
5 May 1947
Pereson makking the affidavit = TOKOTAMA, Xyohiss.

1 heredy certify the foregoing to be & true and complete
tranglation, to the bdest of my ability, of the original documemt in

Japanese,
L
ook Ppemspe
Lientensat (jumior grade), -
United States Naval Reserve, '

Ili-rpﬂhh
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! Subseribed ond sworn to boforo mo this -; £ doy of )
‘ 1948, at Guam, Marianas Islands, {
\ i . i /,,; ; '
|! ry

Guam, M,I.

| 1, M‘i&«_«mﬂ_ intorproter, hoing duly swern
; on oath , stato that I truly translatod tho above statomont and olth

fi to tho witmsu and that tho witnoses thoroupon in my presonec affixcd
his signaturc thorote.

i W
Il A
; > '
; ; Ty o I LE ?%, » have roread tho forcgoing statos
| mont econsisting of pagos in Japaneso, made and written by mo
, on tho _/3 Zday of ’ 1?-{7’1-
I horchy r that eaid forcgoing statomont made on tho _ /34, |
day of Iq%intruunnd corroct to tho bost of my
t

knowledge and ‘:haliuf. hat no promisce or threats wore mado at
any time in order to inducc me to mako thoso statomonts,

xz ¥ R

e —
e
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I STATRMENT {

'| There were no orders, eto,., relating to the incident of the murder of
I|thu missionaries about 1500 of that day but at 1600 there was an assembly of
| Kempeis only at the unit commander's room. We awdiliary Kempels waited
|tensely in our quarters as we surmised the inception of the incident, How-
ever, about 1700 of the same day there was an assembly of everyone and we
wers instruoted by the detachment commanding officer, NAKANURA, as to the
' organisation of the group and what to take in regard to the ineident of the
|| murder of the missionaries, :

As to what to take: Fiwve rounds for each person. One repe for each ;
person, i

Time and place of assembly: On the road of Misusu Bridge at 2000 on
that day,

| The crder was to the effect that details would be given at the time of
|departure. We were told at this time that I was to be the orderly for Second
| Idisutenant SANO and Leading Private IMAIZUMI orderly for the unit commander, |
|MIYAZAKI, Each individual began his preparations according to orders and |

division of labor. Soon the time approached., At the time we assembled at the
| assembly point, when the group under detachment commanding officer, NAKANMURA,

'was organized, there was a total of fifteen or sixteen Kempeis and awxlliary

'Kempels. The detachment commanding officer inspected our uniforms and what
A we had,

The unit commander, the adjutant and Second Lieutenant SANO approached on I
i= foot and started out, Leading Private IMAIZUMI and I followed. On the way
from Misusu Bridge to where the missionaries lived (about fifteen kilometers)
| we were warned by the conversation of the unit commander, the adjutant and
| Second Lieutenant SANO as we were golng shead to the missicnaries not to let
them lnow of what was to happen. In about twenty minutes when we arrived at |
| the missionaries' quarters, it seemed that they were quite astonished at the
sudden evening visit. The unit commander, the adjutant and Second Lieutenant
| SANO said in effect the following:

"Because the war conditicns are bad, it is dangerous here, A
to intelligence, about tomorrow morning it seems an enemy task forece will
| 1and, As you will take shelter in the forrest on Gasupan Daijo (hill) wish—{${€
i the Eempelital this evening, pack up only those necessary things around you

| immediately. Thirty or forty minutes later a Kempeitai truck will come."

(
I The missionaries were greatly joyed and while they were packing, at about
|2100,thltmhuu-. I helped and loaded the gear. !h-l:l.ulnurinnﬂ1
| pat aboard with their gear., The unit commander and others inferior to him
|hnrﬂ1dt-h-ln-t-rmh I remember eight or nine Kempels and auxiliary
Eempeis. Then we left that place immediately, While we were on our way, at
‘Guwki.ju,thtmkbahdn- After it was stopped for about an hour,
| 1t started. The truck which had started ahead was at the point about five
|| hundred meters ahead of the point at which the other truck broken down.

i Then the two trucks went on all together. Soon they the point
which was our objective. We got off at the order to get also toock
off the gear, ete, When we advanced about twenty meters missionarisp

|

|

|

E

go

to
We
the
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| at the front and the Kempeis and auxiliary Kempeis to the left and right, the

|| Eempel silently arrested the missionaries., At the same time the unit com-

| mander told them they would be executed. Having been given orders by Second
ILieutenant SANO, I took a child on my back. The unit commander and Second
Lieutenant SANO were at the very end. After seven or eight minutes when we
came to the place of execution, the detachment commander caused them to be |
seated from the right facing the place of execution im order., He gave in- |
structions as to the cautions and details just before the execution., By |
order of the unit commander the shooting followed., With the order of the |
detachment commander to shoot at the same time as several shots and sounds,
they almost all fell intoc the grave. The third from the right remained seat

| a8 he was. DBecause the baby on the back of the mother at the far left sad

| erying the third one was shot by Sergeant TAMAMOTO, and the baby by an amxil-
iary Kempel by orders. Two or three men of the Smida Unit shot the mission-
ary oh the left end. I remember an officer of the Sumida Unit was talking |
with the unit commander asking that the shooting be done in order to test the
courage of the young scldiers. Then the squad leader examihed the corpees. |

. Second Lieutenant SANO, Second Iieutenant TAMANOI, four or five men f‘mlll
the Sumida Unit and I were near the light at the right end. The point at the
-ri'ht.ndnfthuluhtlndth-phuufmcnimmsliﬂtlyhmm
The Kempel unit commander and adjutant were at the center rear. The detach- |
| ment commander officer, First Lieutenant NAEANTURA was directly in command of
| the place of execution. In the work of burial by almost all the amxiliary
| Kempels and by directions of the adjutant and First Lisutenant NAEANMURA the

spot was thoroughly camouflaged, At the end all persomns left the sceme about
ons thirty and returned to their units. My memory at that time is as I have
stated above. The sketch on another plece of paper is limited to my -ur;rl
above.

That I have written above is the truth accordimg to what I remember.

September 13, 1947
/8/ BEZURE, Shigeru.
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Grave of execution.
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Subscribod and sworn to boforo mo this J4 - day of [haciemes,
1948, at Guam, Marianns Islonds. :
/ ’
ldames/ #

Guam, M.I,

: £58 y» intorpreter, hoing duly sworn
on oath , stato that I truly trafslatod tho above statomont and ocath
to tho witnoss and that the witnoss thercupon in my presoneo affixcd
his signaturoc thoroto.

1, FulR B x ZE ___, have rorend tho forcgoing stato-
mont eonsisting of pagos in Japancsc, made and written by mo
on tho _ & A day of ¢r , 19A_F¢

I hgroby ewoar that eaid foregoing statemcnt made on the
day of Ly 1947 1s true and corrocct to the bost of my
knowledge and heliof; and that no promiscs or threate wore medo at
any time in order to inducc me to make thoso statomonts,

- B X Ak
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| hurriedly and went to formatirn.

I| in the rear nesr where the officers were. Ihen I reached the spot and looked

) ¢ ¢ 9

- -

~_ jlfaa
+ .. 1 am not clear as to the date but around the middle of October as I #as
returning from work I was told by a fellow auxiliary kempel that as we were
going to evacuate the missionaries to a place that was not dangerous all
personnel were to assemble near the VNISUZU Bridge. Therefore, I ate supper

After that we got into two trucks, loaded the missionardés whom the umit
commander brought into the rear truck and the trucks went as trucks go. After
about an hour, the trucks stopped. There was the pungent odor of corpses
around and I thought it strange. When the unit commander said something
E%ﬁ missicnaries remained quiet. Then the kempeis took charge of them, one

« kempel/ to each /TN. missionary/ and bound them_with rope. Then the
euxiliary kempeis, about two to each . missianar17 took over and for the |
firet time the fact that it was a shooting became clear. I walked to a place

on there was a large oblong hole. The missionaries were lined up by it in omp

| 1ine. The kempeis who had brought them were there and behind them the

auxiliary kempeis were lined up by it in one line. I walked down about where
the unit commander was up to the second or third man from the right (as the
person used to transiit the orders of the unit commander and the detaclment

| commander). Then I recall that in amccordance with the order of the unit com-

mander to fire, they shot (I recall that four or five enlisted men from anothgr

|| unit shot). «hen it was over, everyone, namely all of the auxiliary kempeis
| together, cleaned up the remains and returned. After the war was over, I
’ raca]_l that we were assembled and warned by the unit commander not to di‘nﬂge

| Sketch

©=m o e

anything at all concerning this affair. I do not know anything else.

(ﬂiun t d
Y uné dg ac GEE

commander e
& small hill

where I
was

? | Ggot out

o A to Gasupan

9 September 1947.
UCHIDA, Fumio,
Former Private First Class, IJAL

.

I hereby certify the foregoing to be & true and complete translation, to

the bestof my ability, of the oripginal document in Japanese. |
|

i%gﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁlhgggggigg ‘

Lieutenant (jg) U. S. Naval Rgserve
Interpreter, |
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: Subseribod and sworn to boforo mo this 4 day of __/z;—-ﬁM?__,
\ 1948, at Guam, Marianas Islands.

z; 2 I
I tarnse S Nl e
‘ P 3 A4

5. Guam, M.I.

1, FedenohA d Lavore intorproter, boing duly swotn
on nnth s Btato that I truly translated tho above statomont and oath
to tho witnoss and that tho witnoss thoroupon in my prescnec affixod
his signature thoroto.

| M_A%
[ ' Interprotor,
|

: 1, 2 v i;‘ Jﬁ_ » have roread tho forogoing stato-
i mont consisting ufr Z o8 in Japancsc, made and written by mo

| on the 28 dayo 2 19#_;.

T horeby swear that eaid forogoing statemcnt made on tho _o0
day of %‘{ s Y is truoc and corrcoct to tho bost of my

. Imowlodge and holiof; and that no promiscs or throate wore mado at
‘ any time in ordor to induco mo to mako thoso utatmunts- '

B o B G /
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Around the end of December, 1944, I contracted "A" type paratyphoid. I
wos di-charged from the hospital around the middle of Februsry the following |
year, However, since then the back of my head hurts and I am prone to forget
things. I think it is deplorable that I wes unable to give convinting repl
to your investigetlion yesterday. According to your instructions I returned
| to the hotel and thought these things over carefully but was only able to
| recall vague memories. Furthermore, as I have no intention of telling lies
| or causing you any trouble, I request that you please give me some consider-
| ation on this point. Next I will write the facts as well as I can.

1, Date and Outline of the Incident. |

The det~chment took up their position near the Misuzu Bridge in Gasupan
from May, 1944, to about the middle of December. This was a difficult .
period with the day and night air raids becoming more and more severe. During
this time slso my health wes falling and I w's in the habit of resting. As |
| you know, there is no distinction in the seasons in the south and it is always
| hot. Consequently I do not recall the day or month of the affair. However, |
there is no mistake in the fagt that 1t was dur the time the detachmeht
had taken up their position /TH. at Misuszubashi/. I am not certain whether
it was July or August but it was in the evening. As Captain NAKAMURA said,

‘| "Arm: yourselves and come out to the road," we went out to the road. As

| trucks had already come we got in and when we had gone three or four hundred

meters the trucks stopped. We waited on top of the trucks as we were. Then |

about ten persons were brought out and Captain NAKAMUMA had them get into the

trucks. We were all carried together to the hill and the truck stopped near fis |

a woods. As each of us was to take charge of one person, I to-k charge of

the second man, bound his hands bebind him and made him welk shead of me.

| There were also some men carrying lights but I dom't know exactly who they

| were. Then ifﬁ. the persons we brought with ug/ were made to squat down on

| the edge of a hole. I recall thnt when everyone had gathered elther Unit
Commander MIYAZAKI or Captain NAKAMURA said, "Shoot," At that instant, as I
was hesitating, somebody in back of me shot the man of whom I was in charge.
Thereupon, he fell forward and rolled over. He was shot in the back of the

| head. I belicve the ome who did my part of the shooting wes Unit Commander

| MIYAZAKI. I recall this because Unit Commander LIYAZAKI was in back of me, |

kftcr it was over everybody covaradlﬂfﬂ. the holg/ with dirt, got om the |

| trucks egain and returned.

| |
|2- Who were the people who went teo the scene at that time? Who was next to ,

|me? I have carefully considered these things but, »s I wrote before, I truly
| eannot recall them.

| 3. As for the detailed orders, too, since the commands were given on the
|: scene I do not remember them one by one.

!!... I tried to recall the names of those who were next to me thinking they

| could prove I didn't shoot but I just haven't eny idea who they were. There~
fore, if it is not suffiglent proof that I say I didn't shoot, it 1s the same
as ﬁﬂ. if I were one of/ those who shot. However, I am confident of the
faet that I 414 not shoot. Now, even though there is no proof that I did not
shoot, my conscience is clear,
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| On the ship on the way home it happened that I showed signs of mental ' i'
|| derangements and when we landed at URAGA I was sent home after the ~thers who

! were on the ssme ship. That is to say, I entered the national hrapital at
|| URAGA. I still don't know what kind of thiigs I did on the ship.

I think Captain NAYANU"A, First Lieutenant ICHIKAWA, and Warrant Officenr
ECIITBO also know sabout this. Ewen after I returned home I lived in a dream
for half a year. I am getting better now.

Becau-e, as mentioned above, I have no bad intentions of withholding
any information, I beg that you please take this point into consideration,

Orth

I awear that the above is true and that there are no mistakes.

. 23 April 1947.

ISHIYAMA, Jinso .
Kyoto-shi, Fushimi-ku, i
Kyo=machi, Ni-chome, |
2{.2-1' !
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U MIYAZAKI

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and complete tranalationm,

the best of my ability, of the original document in Japenese.

Lieutenant (junior grade),
United States Naval Reserwve,
Interpretor.
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&L
I Subscribod and sworn to boforc mc this M7 doy of /ﬁ—-_uu..# ’

| 1948, at Guam, Marianns Islands.

/ 1

7
T /f'\l—«-—?i
i .i’ﬂu—n‘- -jd"/
Guam, M,I,

I, Mﬁ%ﬂ%f__- intorpreter, hoing duly sworn |
on oath , stato that T truly tran€latod tho above statomont and odth

to the witnoss and that tho witnoss thoroupon in my prescneo affixcd
! his signaturc thorote.

i Interproter, ! |

., 2 F X % , have rarond tho forcgoing statos
mont consisting of pageg in Japancsc, mado and written by mo
on tho _/7 day of » 1'?471.

I horchy ewoar that eaid forcgoing statomcnt made on tho _er__
day of __ gnok, li?ia; is truc and corroct to tho bost of my

knowledge and holiof; and that no promiscs or throats wore medo at
any time in order to inducoc me to mako thoso statomonts,

¥ A %
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|
‘E 17 March
| Sogamo Prison

AFTIDAVIT

Sgt. Major SUGIMOTO, Takeji
(Headquarters, South Seas Kempeital)

le Adjutant ICHIKAMA knows the details.
3. I will tell as much as I know.

a) Date and time - One night in July or August 1944 (during the
battle of Peleliu).

b) PFlace - Gasupan Hi11, about 3,000 meters to the south
(refer to outline map on seperate paper).

¢) Persons who went to the scens:

Unit Commander = Lisutenant Colonel MIYAZAKI A Ariteuns;
Adjutant = 2nd Lieutenant ICHIEAWA, !uh:luh!.:
Head of Special Police = #md I.intmt SANO, Giiehi;
Special Police = Warrant Officer AJIOKA l.llln:
General Affairs = Sergeant Major mnmn Take ji;
Sergeant TAKAEASHI, GenJji (1) not sure;
Sergeant YOROYAMA, Kyohisa:
Sergeant TAMAMOTO, Tadashi

No. 1 Detachment Commander = lat Lieutenant NAKAMUEA, Kasuo;
Sergeant ICHIMITA, Magao;

Warrent Officer nnm Yoshitaros |

Sergeant Major KOKURO, ﬂhilﬂ.lli
Sergeant OZAKI lntnhnh.t
Sergeant unm, Kiyoehi;
Corporal NAKAGAWA, Takeo (1)
not sure;

duxiliery Kempeis - & few (2nd Lieutenant ICHIKAWA kmows
the details);

Sumida Unit = lst Lt, TAMANOTO (adjutent) (Motor Unit)
A few snlisted men.
Two truoks.

The orders were given out directly by Lieuntensant Colonel MIYAZAKI
(anit commander) but we 41d not know their purpose until we went o the
BOAR S,

The missionaries and the natives were in the Nantaku barracks at
that time.

The trucks were on the main road,

! Lieutenant -Colonel MIYAZAKI and lst Lieutenant NAKAMURA, No, 1
Detachment Commander, went to the missionaries' barracks, ‘irwcht all
Hﬁ-hﬂtlﬂﬂhmth-uihlmuh.

¥e went part way in the trucks and then two men accompanied sach
nissionary to the place wvhere we were going,

ade "Exhibit 10(a)(1)"
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At that time as I was in vhat was called the No. 3 Team, two of
us, one suxiliary kempei (I have forgotten his name) and myself, went
to the sceme third in line from the front.

¥hen we arrived at the scene we were lined up from the right in
teams, Toam No.1, Team No. 2, Team No. 3, Team ¥o. 4, Toeam No. 5, etec.

There, for the first time we received orders from the unit commande
er (Lisutenant Colonel MIYAZAKI) that the enlisted men from the Sumida
Unit were to carry out /TN -~ the execution/ for the No, 1 team, the
Fo, 2 team and the No. 3 team, counting from the right. Therefore I
vithdrev two or three meters from that place and looked on bolding &
candle in my right hand. 2nd Lieutenant ICHIEAWA was also bolding &
candle and looking on from a spot about two or three meters away from
T

If the case is thoroughly investigated 1t will be proved that I
did not participate directly.

I do nmot remember the exact appearsnce of the sceme or our relative
positions but it was genmerally ae shown on the separate paper.

After the entire execution was over we returned to the unit.

As shown above, I only went to the scene with everyone. There
is abeolutely no reason for me to have denied these facts except that
out of friendship for my btuddies and superior officers, I conld not
bear [TN - to reveal them/,

Eowever, since a statement (written in his hand) has been presented
by 3nd Lieutenant ICHIKAWA (the adjutant), I realisze it would now be
wrong %o cause the investigator any more trouble and so I have told the
truth,

Flease look at the map of the genersl location,
Heference

l. Adjotant ICHIEAWA (ICHIEAWA, Yokichi) was the wnit commander's
assistant and when the unit commander made & mistake in his actions I
believe he could volce his opinion against 1t,

I alwo think the other leaders, No, 1 Detachment Commander 1st
Lieutenant NAKAMURA, Karuo, and Head of Special Police SANO, Giichi
were able to 4o the same thing.

2. VWhen we low ranking men sald anything we were not taken

seriously. From the standpoint of decision, orders were made wp and
passed on to us,

"Exhibit 10(a)(2)"
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|
|!l. ky memories of that time -re not very clear but I think, in general, the
! relative positions were -3 they ere in the following map.
[[*= Up to the third men from the ri ht wepe members of the motor tr: naport i
' unit. From there on down the line, kempeis eorried out the execution,
3¢ I am not “haolutely ele r ‘bout the erecution rs in each eam, but since

enlisted men vho cerried it out up to the third man from the right there

; were two other /T.HN. kempeis/ besides mygelf whr did n~t take part in

; carrying out the execution,

.
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I savw with my own eyes:

Varrent Officer NAKAMURA (MAKAMURA, Yoshitare) execute with
Lisutenant Oolonel MITAZAKI's pigtol and the enlisted men of the
unit execute with rifles:

Lieutenant Colonel MIYAZAKI (anit commander) shoot last to
make sure they were dead,

As for the rest, since it was done by candle 1light because 1%
was dark, I was unable to see very far, FNor the details please in-
vestigate Adjutant ICEIKAWA (ICHIKAWA, Yokichd).

Esference:

1. On account of the intenss airraids there was quite a food
shortage going on at that time,

2 Unit Commander MITAZAXI's merves seemed to be on edge on
account of the advances on Pelelieu Island,

1 hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and complete trane~
lation, to the best of my ability, of the original document in

Japanese.
; - /2.
;zﬂﬂll‘iﬂk l' m’l

»
Lieutenant (junior lrlﬂ.l},
United States Naval Reserve,

Interpreter,
=
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n fol tatement I M11 relate the detall
“.“‘h m'th:.- ™ -w

1. Date and Time = One night in July or Augmet, 1944 (battle of
Palelin Island was in progress at that time).

2. TFlace = Gagupen Hill, Falsm Island
3. Organization and Persomnel
A) Memders of the kempeitai:
{" Unit Commander lisutemant Colonel MIYAZAKI K Artisunes
Adjutant Second lieutensant ICHINKAWA K& Yokichi IIJ
Head of Special Police Second Iigutenant Gdiechi;
Frobationary Intendance Officer TAMANOI Hiroshd;
Intendsnce Warreat Officer HASAXEYAMA  Yoshite.
Members of Bpecial Police!
Bergeant TAMAMOTO, Tadasghd.
Member of Gsneral Affairs Department:
| Sergeant YOEDYAMA, Kyohisa.
No. 1 Emmpeital Detagment Commander First lLieutenant

i

|

} NAKAMURA, Kasuo;

] ¥arrant ﬂtﬂnr HAKANURA, Yoshitaro;

Sergesnt Major EDKURO, EH.H.H;
Sergeant Major :m, Jinge;
t IOHIMIYA K Magao;

Sergeant OZAXI nt-u ahi
Corporal NAGATOME, Yoshimeri

| baxiliary Kespeist

: Leading Private IMAIZUMI;

: Leading Private RIURE;
Private First Class EAMASHINA;
Saperior Private NAKAMURA;

F . | 'fut unknown, g s
| N‘”'m Unit (Motor Tremsport Unit) W

Adjutant YAMAMOTO snd five or six emlisted men (-u-ul-
carried rifles).

The above persennsl are men vhom I believe I stw elther on the way
to the scene or ia the trucks,

-‘” m-mummmmnu-—nnu

| afterncon of the date hllr unx
a%rm'm-"“ zm

“le
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At that thiimdth.rlurunmu.

As Private First Clags nmmnmm-muxm
up with Private Firet Clase EAMASHINA,

At that time the unit commander @id not anmounce the purposs of

thig, hmtmm-mhpmmh All these men who
mm-tmu-mlmumummmm. The
mzmmm-umahummn

Then everybody fell out,

¥hen we assemdled for the second time (after the evening meal) we
were notified by the unit commsnder %o the following effect:

1. VW were going to digposs of the missionaries,

2. hhtmﬂnhhm;-q!-lhlumrhihﬁﬂuh
which the missionaries get off the $rucks snd accompany him
to the scane,

+ % ot to tell anybody elee of this affair,

4. Ve would be instructed at the spot comcerning the measures $o
be used at the scens.

At the first assembly, Adjutent ICHIKAWA was t0ld by the mnit com- |
—mnm-tmwmhmm-.-u..prm He {
made these preparations in time for the second assembly,

Bach man was provided with one candle (including one match), :
I was evening vhen we all left the unit together (after sunset).
When our party came out on the main road Adjutant TAMANOTO apd

ﬂh-rlh-nfmhl-ihthuuhnmurmuﬂ.ﬂnmd-

ready there walting on the left hand side of the read (entrance to the
Sumida Unit),

s
{ : hmin-hhlﬂmhmnnihhﬁ-umﬂlm
. missionaries barrecks (Nemtalm Barrecks), The trucks stopped oa
—l-mwthmm,unmhuhmutuﬁ.
Srucks snd wait, we got out of the trucks snd waited. The unit commend-
-ruhu_tﬂ—mmmhm}whm
of missionaries %0 the trucks themselves.

Each maa in the party of missionaries carried his baggage in Hig

head and got into a truck, After that we got into that truck and started
for the sceme.

mru-mm-mmuh—mmm

L=




g 08 ° 9

Then Private First Olase KAVASHIMA tied him up with the rope he had
provided.

After that we waited Dehind the lead-off msa (Warrants Officer
/ NAKAMURA), We arrived at our destimation after having had a great deal
of difficulsy finding the road on the way becanse 1t ws dark, {

Vaen we arrived on ths socems & hole had already beem dng.

" The nissionaries wers made $0 squat dowm in front of the hole and
the unit commander sald something im Spanish.

At that moment through Adjutant TAMAMOTO the unit commander said %o
have the soldiers of the Bumida Tnit carry out the sxecution from team
| one through team three. Therefore, I immediately stepped bdack snd looked
| on holding a candle.

’ At that time Adjutant ICHIEAVA was alse holding a candle and was
supervising the affair on ny right.

I At the soeme, Firet lisutenant NALANURA gave the signal to fire.
: The position of each man invelved at the sceme is roughly as drawm in
the sketoh.

With my owmn eyes I saw the soldiers of the Sumida Unit sxecute aad
lastly, the unit commsnder and Warrent Officer NAKAMUBA exsoute.

| That day the unit commander bdrought two pistols, a large type one
I’ and & small type one. Warraat Officer NAKANURA experimentally sxecuted
; | with the unit commsnder's small type pistel.

| Yhen the execution was over the suxiliary kempeis covered /TN, .r
\ ! the missionaries/ over with dirt under the direction of First Ideutensat
t
It was rather late vhem we got bdack to the unit {‘h.“-}o

AS that time, ﬁ-Ir-.h:l.iuudt‘hlrhIﬂnIﬂil, 'Iil-l
very fortunate that I did not shoot,.”

After that Sergeant YOKOYAMA felt sbdsolutely terridle.

I According to the stories, they were saying that Sergesnt TONUEAMA
had charge of & mative ut his bPullet had missed and therefore Warreat
Officer NALANURL sxscuted the resaining ome, 1 hsard that ths naxt
day Warrent Officer NAKAMURA, Sergeant Major KOKUBO, Sergesat OZAKI and
others burned the remaining belongings of the missionaries.

| .L hmummmu.ummﬂ-m-u‘::k-
- |ltﬂniiﬂn|irth1diu—hrhﬂtht“mlﬂl via
the Fhilippines in cese there wes sny investigation,

Some days later I heard that the plans for the carrying out of this
sxecution were all made by the unit commender.

Bhere are no errors in the sdeve,

"Exhibit 11(a)(3)"
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I do not remember the position of Probationary Infendance Officer TAMANOI.

I also do not remember the positions of Sergeant Major ISHIYAMA, Sergeant
OZAKI, and Corporal NAGATOME.

(Position from which Lieutenant Colonel MIYAZAKI said something
to the Missionaries in Spanish.)

Lieu‘l:.ennnt Gﬂ on was in this vie
@i w a& tant o e Sipk l]'nitzg nt-
"O :ﬂgu&r:r ars Ior a sol

r \ MURA
"y ”t' Lieuto nt' Htfauh‘fxéngfgfﬁmmm (adjutant of
the Sumida Un

Second Lieutenant ICHIKAWA (Kempeitadi

adjutant)
O 1. "ﬂwaﬂhinar NAKAMURA

O 2 --U) Position to which Sergeant Major SUGINOTG
7 withdrew and looked on., Sergeant Major
was elther Second or Third.

On the left of Sergeant Major SUGIMOTO

Sergeant lajor KOKUBO
Sergeant ICHILTYA

I believe Sergeant TALANCTC came in this
position

O 7. OSecond Lieutenant SANO was in this vicinity

Q Bkréargeant TOKOYAMA was in this vicinity.

////////{3///////////

Q9

s (The auxiliary kenpel member of each team pog=
sessed one candle each and 1it them at the aum-}

AT L ELPPEE VS

In each team one kempel and one awxiliary kempeiwas in attendance.

As each officer was superivising his subordinates during the carrying out
of the execution and more or less moved about to each place, their posi-

tions were not fixed; but in general, I believe they were cs shown on the
diagram.

The position of the member of each team who tonk part in earrying out the
execution in general 1s alsc as shown on the diagram.

As far as the third position, soldiers of the Sumide Unit executed (from
the right).

"Exhibit 11(a)(4)"
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I heredy certify the foregoing, consisting of three (3) type
written pages snd one (1) sketch map, to be & true and complete
Sransglation, to the dest of my ability, of the original document
in Japanese.

Lieutensat (Junior grede),

United States Naval Reserve,
Interpreter.
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Subseribod and sworn to boforo mo this {‘qunt_&égg?_._
1948, at Guam, Marianae Iglands. .

Q_.ﬂ,, /A Sz A2
Aewt- &
Guam, M.I.

1, Y M intorprotor, boing duly sworn

cath , tu}tl-t I mlﬂtrm:intz tho above statomont and egbh
tho witnhos that tho witnoss roupon in my proscnec affimod
signature thoroto. .
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I think it was about the middle of October, 1944i. We were told that by
order of the detachment commander we were to move the missionaries on GASUPAN
to a safe place because the air raids had become severe. The kempels and
auxiliary kempeis were loaded into two trucks., I honestly thought we were
going to move them to a place of safety. At the order of the detachment com-
mander we went to the place where the missionaries were. Then I heard the

detachment commander say that as the air raids here were dangerous we will
You to a safe place.

After that they got in the trucks and we went to GASUPAN Hill. There we
got out of the trucks and one the kempeis followed behind the misaionaries,
one kempei to each missiomary, At that time I followed Sergeant YOKOYAMA,

sently, the kempeis tied the missionaries with a rope and we went to the
scene., When we got to the place and looked around, a hole had been_dug which
» the
being made to sit down in front of it in ome line. At that time
I was behind Sergeant YOKDYAMA but, thinking it was dangerous to be too close,
1 moved over to the right before the orders of the unit commander ware given,
recall that at that time the unit commander was in the rear and to the righ

nd from there he gawve the order to fire, I remember that then the firing too
ace at about the same instant,

After that, at the order of the unit commander, the final dispositions

re made and all personnel returned. I recall that the trip back was made in
the trucks. -

0 Unit Commander

RO O neven O

EMEDHD ocbdid Hoeosn O




The above facta are without error.

9 September 1947
HIDAKA, Kinnosuke

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete translation,
to the best of my ability, of the original document in Japanese.

f -
Lisutenant (JG), USNR
Interpreter.

-‘1.‘










oL T |!;':'_}~},5,7

| S Y o= R e s

=















N L/
-

239 L AZZAAPE A %5 L A an R kS
3’3";7'1-\‘;., j"? ?r"iu# VXYY

€ ;-2 F. LA 78 Fa1VE~ 9 B0 PRIR B o Fo i
B4 7 (O LR Ao BB 2k et 20 FRE Z-
s k5 € 54 a0 (5] P 1 2 LT 78 RAAF 7Ry

vg3)3 2= ez,

o
mhm'ihodu.nﬁmmtohufmmthiuLdnruf_ﬂ"‘"? .

1948, at Guam, Marianas Islands, &

fLM::’tuq

m\. --I- ~
1, Mmﬁéﬁg_ intorproter, boing duly swetn
on oath , stato that I truly translatod tho above statomont and oath

f to tho witnoss and that tho witnoes thoroupon in my prescnec affimod

his signature thorote.
érpmtnr- -h?

@ have rerend tho foregoing stato-
ﬁ-’:&n mado and written Yy me

I-lt

on tho
:l: mtnumm nﬁ
day of hm-tndmthrm
ﬂu that no promisce or threate wore made at

any time in order to Mnh-hthiﬁnm“ﬁc
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of the Spanish missionaries.

1.

e

.
AFFIDAVIT
Place of reglestration: hpﬁ-?-, Mitoyo-gun, =
670=1 bamehi
Present address: Same as above
TOKOYAMA, Kyohisa,

Born en 20 November 1519,
With this document I will tell about the case of the shooting

I believe this incidemt mﬂ around July or August 1944, Ib
was carried out on »

While I was in the darracks that evening somebody came, I don's
remeuber exactly who it was, and from ountside the darracks passed
on the erder to fall in immediately at the provisions storshouse.
Therefore I fell in in froat of the provisions storehouse,

The position of the formation 1s on & ssparate paper.

Here we received orders from the unit commander, Lisutensnt
Colomel MITAZAKI. to shoot the Spanish missionaries. '

At this time we were told to shoot them in the back of the
head,

After that 1 adjusted my equipment and wemt with everybody else e
the road (it went from Gasupan to Misuho) which was about 100
maters from the barracks. Vhem we got to the road tw trucks were
there ready snd waiting, I got inte the second truck and the first
truck started om ahead, The second truck departed a 1little later,
(I velieve Second lLisutenant SANO and Sergeant TAMANOTO were among
those who got on the same truck,)

¥s stopped first at Adkokn Bridge in Gasupan, After we had waitéd
a little while the missionariss wers brought éut (I think fﬂ. they
were brought out by/ the men in the first truck but it was dark and
I don't know)., Therefore I had them get in with us sad the truck

departed immediately and went up Gagupan Hill,

The srucks stepped at & spot about two lundred meters from the scems
and we all got off together, At this time I thought I would Sxy

on’
1 accompanied her inte the forest, -
A hole had already been dug at the scens. Following the exmmple
) men £one

on ahead, I had her face the hole amd
down, Then I closed my eyes and awaited the orders which

wers chanting tut

(Considering the direction of his 1 believe the wmit

= ol | "Exhibit Is.ttoﬂil‘!l‘f
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a spot whiech I Believe wap about two meters from the woman I
aimed at the back of her head, However, at this time I we
! filled with emotion and my hand shook, I fired but the bullet
" missed.

At that time the child which the woman wasg carrying on her back
started %o ery.

At this time I suddenly felt great compassion for the child amd
took two or three steps dack,

(At this time I bBelieve the unit commander ordered an suxiliary
kempel %0 shoot those who were still alive.)

li There bdeing mo way out of 1%, I drew my model 14 pistel and from

A% the same time that I stepped bdack there were two or three
rifle shots,

The man vho was right next to me also shot the child with a
rifle,

At this momemnt the women ﬁn over backwards for the first time,

(Considering everything, I believe it may have been OEANURA whe
shot the child,)

7. 1 ismediately left the forest after that and waited for every-
one to come out,

"Exhibit 13(s)(2)"
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FPlace where unit persomnel
assembled at that time ™
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I heredy certify the foregoing, consisting of two (2) typewritten
pages and one (1) sketch map, %0 be & trus and complete translationm,
to the best of my ability, of the original document in Japanese.
fuidy
ek ¥, e,
ldeutensat (junior grade),
United States Naval Reserve,
Interpreter,
|
I
h
'r
b
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